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Glossary
Tl

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalized terms MY EZEAEN ARERE UERE TRERE BE
used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights, BimiEntT ERSHE CETRBE RE AKX
Chairlady’s Statement, Management Discussion and ERRE EENNEEEZERHS UBEHELRY
Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, ¥EAFAAERAEGUATHHNSERE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical

Information of Directors and Senior Management, Financial

Summary and Property Portfolio shall have the respective

meanings set out below.

“2018 AGM”
[T \FERRAFAE]

“AGM(s)”
[ERAFRE ]

“ASP”
[SFHEE]

“Audit Committee”

EzzE3 4

“Board”

[E%g]

“business day”
[&%H]
“Bye-Laws”

[ EUN

“Chairlady” or “Ms. Chan”
=S AE A e

“Chief Executive Officer”

[TTRR ]

“close associate(s)”
[T A1 |

”

AGM to be held on Monday, 30 July 2018
R ZE-N\FtA=+THEH ) BTHRFBFRE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARABBERBERE

average selling price

P HEER

audit committee of the Board

EFgE%LES

board of Directors

e

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB WA R T AR

bye-laws of the Company
/NG PRl

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the NED and chairlady of the Board
BRIMISE L RIFITEEREFS LR

the chief executive officer of the Company
RNRRNTEARE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LW R T AR

“Company” or “Sino Harbour Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in

Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and

traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1663)

[ARRR Sk EBEZER ] B EBEREEAERAR —HRBAREIMKIZBRAR HRE#EITR
I PREE S PT AR BT 22 5 (BRI HK5R - 1663)

“Company Secretary” company secretary of the Company
[ARIWE] B AREZAEME




“controlling shareholder(s)”

[FERR AR

“Corporate Governance Code

[fEEATA

“Davi Pharmaceutical”

[RREEEX ]

“Deputy Chairman”
[BFfE]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“EIT”
[

“ESG Report”
[ESG#E |

“Executive Director(s)’

[ITEE

“Extra Good”
[Extra Good |

“Final Dividend”
[REARE ]

“FY2017”
[ZF L84

“FY2018” or “Year”

[—ZF—\FF [ AFE ]

“GFA”
[EEEEmTE ]

“Group”
[AR&EE

“Guangxi Gangrun”

(B

HKS'
[t
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Tl

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmRBIAAE T e RE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules
AR AP 8- PUpTEL 2 1 EEIASRR

Zhejiang Davi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

TR RBEXRBER AR

deputy chairman of the Board

EXEERIER

director(s) of the Company

RRRIES

enterprise income tax

RERFER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g kELAmE

executive Director(s)

MITE=S

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share for FY2018
ZE - \BFIRN RS E .08

year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T—+F=-A=1T—HILFE

year ended 31 March 2018
HE_ZT—)\F=ZA=1T—HLFE

gross floor area
FEEEETE

Company and its subsidiaries
RATBREWBAR

Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology Limited (BEPE:&E 4T AR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BrEEBEYMRMARAG RPBEEMRZ 2 BRAR BAAFIHE
EIEREMBE A

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEAEE®
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“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Independent Auditor”
[ 98 37 1% 8RhAT |

“INED(s)”
BV IFTESR]

“JX Asia City”
DALY
WLAT

[ IR (ER |

“Listing Rules”

[ EmRAl]

“LongYu Medicine”

[RETE%]

“Model Code”
[1Z2E=F Al ]

“Mr. Wong”
[EFRAE

“NED”
[FETEE]

“Nomination Committee”

[R2R8g]

“Pan Hong Holdings”

R ETRR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEERRITHE

independent auditor of the Company
ZIN/NEIESRVR T

independent non-executive Director(s)

BYIFITES

Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (717858 Y135 iz
BEEA PR/ 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
IAEMNBEHEREERART - RPBEMX L ZBERAR Y AEAA
AMEEEEME AR

land appreciation tax

THIEER

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B2 FRE A LW AR R

Jiangxi LongYu Medicine Co., Ltd. (7L 74 #E 5° '8 22 B 1y A BR 28 #), a
company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, the issued shares
of which are traded on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
in the PRC (stock code: 837836)

IERETBERNMARAR RPEFMKZIZERAR EEETK
R E R NMEERHEERS LT (RGOSR - 837836)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIS T PE s FTREITAERETEFRHNRESTA

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the husband of Ms. Chan
SEMOKSEAE - B+ 2K

non-executive Director

FHTER

nomination committee of the Board

EFEeREZBY

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability whose issued shares are listed on the main board
of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the former
immediate controlling shareholder of the Company
NEBEZREEER AT RAREFMAIHERAR - EEETRGD
RETIKBHRZZAARRARER LT WAARRREEZERIRR




“PRC” or “China”

[FPEL )

“Register of Members”

[ R 1

“Remuneration Committee”

[HEES]

“RMB”
[ARE]

“SFO”

[ &7 R g 5H ]

“Share(s)’
[t |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A&

“Sq.m.”

[F755K]

“Stock Exchange”
[ BsE 22 Ffr

“subsidiary(ies)’
WSpEEANGIE

“Zhejiang IPS”

DT

Glossary
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the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual
report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
and Taiwan

o ARARIE AT S TREES EPHRITRERAE

register of members of the Company
RR TR A

remuneration committee of the Board

EFEEHFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AREE - hBUEEER

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
FHRHEEO(EAENEST1E)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RRFRAFEIRO.01E T2 Bk

holder(s) of the Share(s)

BIGESEEPN

square metre(s)

5k

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BRBERZSHFBR AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BA FRAIRTE T EEDRE

Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical Technology Co. Ltd. (T3 BIB &R H
R/ 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
ANIERBERFAERAG RPBEEMKZ 2 BRAR BAAFIHE
EIEREMBE A
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“Zhejiang Sino Harbour”

(B:iipan: e tc

H%l)
[%]ek[BDH] tc

Zhejiang Sino Harbour Bio Technology Limited (H751E 8 4£ YT AR
AR]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
ADEBEYRMAERAG RRBEFMEZIZERDR] BRAREHR
B2 ENEAR

per cent. or percentage
ERisd
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Corporate Information
AREHR

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Levels 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan,

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile: (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.,, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

NE M
http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
BMRPETEEE M

H

IPEMmE™

KA O R AT A KB 156855
B 24 A EE
EBYER 025 %268
EBTEEXEME

HE

JUBEALH)

5 SAE3E37-395%

AR R
BEE1215%

E:E ¢ (852) 2363 1300
fHHE : (852) 2764 2160

T EE
Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

FERMDBFERE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda
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(RMB’ 000)

(AR¥FT)
693,512

597,023
476,339 500,874
I I [ ]

2013/14  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Revenue
'ON
1,306,542
2013/14
(RMB’000)
(AR¥TFT)
264,392

222,147
183,660
119,526
67,768 I

2013/14 2014/15  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Cash and Cash Equivalents
RERASEEY

Financial Highlights
MBRE

(RMB’ 000)
(AR¥F )

143,768

92,926 94,966
52,364
4,883
|

2013/14  2014/15  2015/16  2016/17 2017/18

Profit Attributable to Owners of
the Company

AR RGER AR

(RMB’000)

(AR¥TFT)

1,697,254 1,602,106

1,628,746 I I

2014/15  2015/16  2016/17 2017/18

Net Assets

FEE

59.9%

48.0%

2013/14  2014/15  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Gearing Ratio:
Total borrowings less
related deposit collateral/Total equity

EAREAMHEER
BEE
BRI R E R AR A




Chairlady’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual report
of the Company for FY2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

In FY2018, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB134.1 milion. Gross profit margin increased to 33.4%
in FY2018, compared with 19.3% in FY2017. Meanwhile,
profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB4.9 million in FY2018. To thank our
Shareholders for their continued support to us, the Board
recommended the payment of a Final Dividend for FY2018
of HK1.0 cent per Share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group will continue to focus in property development
business as its core business while we will continue to
expand diversely the pharmaceutical inspection and stem
cell businesses.

In 2017, Zhejiang IPS had been established which aims at
setting up a leading third-party laboratories and contract
research organization in the PRC. With the completion of
the core team formation in early 2018, Zhejiang IPS had
moved forward from ramp-up period and quickly switched
its focus to medium and large scale projects.

We provides stem cell storage consultation and referral
services via our subsidiary, Guangxi Gangrun. We shall
strive to enhance the professional knowledge of our team
and grasp the demand of the stem cell market in Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC.

In FY2018, we subscribed for 1,170,000 ordinary shares
of LongYu Medicine at a consideration of approximately
RMB19.9 million. We will continue to explore appropriate
potential investment opportunities to create synergies with
our current healthcare business.

BURRE :

ANRREFE EUREEARR T \MF2FH-
MBREREZRARE

RZZF-\WF AEEESRAOARKEI341EE

T ZB— \MEENKREFAE33.4% —T—LtMFR
19.3% ° A - —F— \MFEARRBEE AREZRFHA
REAAET - REABRRUAKENHESS EFF
ERARER T \FFIRESERRO1.0EIIZ R
BB o

E 23014

AEBRBEETINROEBMEREED R HEE
BT ST EORIE AN S mie R & T AR 75 -

RIZB—tF MIEARL ZAREERIPEHEL
ME=ZNERENAOMAEB - BEXLEBR -F
—N\EVHARTR MTIERDEBERE  WillFKE
DERAFRIER

AEBFBEMBAREREERETARBEBRANL
BN IR - BB DRI BB e FE M LEP
EEFEMRE AR TARTISHER -

|=|f

[

RZT— \Bt & REBERHE1,170,0000% 78 5 58 4% &
B REBEORARKIDIBET - RMSEHERZEEN
%E&ﬁ%ﬁ* B PR A M AR AR E S & BRI

B




MARKET REVIEW

To establish a long-term effective mechanism has been
a keynote of the real estate policy. In the 19th National
Congress of Communist Party of China, President Xi
Jinping has outlined his vision for the next five years of
development in China and emphasized that “houses are
for living but not for speculation”. Meanwhile, the Central
Economic Work Conference has pointed out the importance
of “accelerating the establishment of a housing system
with multi-agent supply, multi-channel protection and co-
development of housing lease-and sales”. We believe that
the PRC central government will continue the macro-control
policies in controlling housing price, preventing market
bubbles and destocking to the real estate industry in 2018.
However, it will be positive to China’s real estate industry in
terms of a long-term macro perspective.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | hereby express
my heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, business partners
and customers of the Group for their support and trust in
the Group; also to our Directors, the management team
and the entire staff for their hard work and contributions in
the past year.

CHAN Heung Ling
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 15 June 2018

Chairlady’s Statement
FERSE

™5 8

BERYEHEXSFHEBRNN T RER - EPEL
EERFTNURAREARE L BAVFERFHPBERKAFHE
ERBLEES WRAFTEMAREN TEZAELY
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEREFN WD T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2018
COMPARED TO FY2017

Revenue

In FY2018, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB134.1 million, representing a decrease of 80.7% from
approximately RMB693.5 million in FY2017.

Revenue in FY2018 was primarily derived from the delivery
of residential units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (# M|
#:RZP%) Phase 2 and Yichun Royal Lake City (B &)
Phase 2 as well as commercial units of Fuzhou Hua Cui
Ting Yuan. In FY2017, revenue was mainly attributable to
the delivery of residential units of Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City (F8 & %5 g€ %) Zone 3, Fuzhou Hua Cui
Ting Yuan Phase 3 as well as Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2.
All the above units are located in the PRC.

TR \MER-B-tMECUBEALBROE

A

n= /\Hﬁﬁ AEBHSWALNAREISMAES
g 4*& — M FEHAREGIZSAETINB80.7% °

TE-N\HFZRAFTERARMEMEZER B R
BEEMEAY T BB A BN ER R E B - R
Tt F WAZTZREXTESEBINEN =—HEE
MINERERE — B R EEMAN — B EEN - FaE
B AR -

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (i) TREY - N\FFEROEEDE - ()BEDEL)E
residential properties, (i) commercial properties, and (i) car B ZWADHT :
parking spaces during FY2018:
Percentage
FY2018 Fy2017 change
—E-)\BF Z=—tHF 28E st
()  Residential 0 F=
— GFA sold (in sq.m.) —CEREEE
(AT KET) 18,384 131,273 (86.0%)
— ASP (RMB per sa.m.) — % E
(B FHRAR) 5,284 5,121 3.2%
— Revenue (approximately —WA(BARETT)
RMB’000) 97,145 672,227 (85.5%)
(i)  Commercial (i) EE
— GFA sold (in sq.m.) —CEREEE
(AFF %3 2,698 1,376 96.1%
— ASP (RMB per sa.m.) — % E
(BFRRARE) 11,915 12,300 (3.1%)
— Revenue (approximately —WA(BARETT)
RMB’000) 32,146 16,925 89.9%
(i) Car parking spaces (i) fFEA
— Revenue (approximately — WA (BWARETT)
RMB’000) 4,791 4,360 9.9%
Total revenue (approximately RMB’000) e A 4258 (4 AR FT) 134,082 693,512 (80.7%)




Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2018
COMPARED TO FY2017 (CONTINUED)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin

Cost of sales decreased from approximately RMB559.4
million in FY2017 to approximately RMB89.3 million in
FY2018. As a higher portion of the revenue of the Group
was attributable to the delivery of commercial units in
FY2018 as compared with FY2017, which had a higher
gross profit margin compared with residential units delivered,
gross profit margin increased from 19.3% in FY2017 to
33.4% in FY2018.

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses increased from
approximately RMB53.9 million in FY2017 to approximately
RMB63.0 million in FY2018 mainly attributable to the
increases in exchange gain as well as interest income from
bank deposit.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB17.9 million in FY2017 to approximately
RMB10.8 million in FY2018. The lower selling and
distribution expenses in FY2018 were mainly due to a
decrease in the marketing expenses incurred for Nanchang
Sino Harbour Kaixuan City as well as Yichun Royal Lake
City.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 20.8% to
approximately RMB48.8 million in FY2018 from
approximately RMB40.3 million in FY2017. The increase
was mainly attributable to an increase in staff cost as well
as rental expenses.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMB5.1 million non-
capitalised finance costs in FY2018, decreased from
approximately RMB5.9 million in FY2017.

Profit for the Year

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB41.3 million in FY2018, compared to approximately
RMB123.0 million in FY2017.

BERE WD T

CE- \MEH-_E—tHECHEEELEOE
(#&)

HERARERNE

HEXNAB Tt FHARES04EE LRI E =
T N\PFHAREEIIHEE L ML T —LEF
HR - E—N\BFRABINAEBR AR AEEEN
MR MAEEMNEEEEMELEESNEMNE R/
HEMEY - -+ F193%IEME T — N\ F
33.4% o

Hab W A SR H b e 5 % B 18

HWARREM R EMEEH Tt FOARE
539BETEME—_T— \MFHARKEI0AET =
22 O B U an M SRTT T SR B U ASE AR SR -

HERDTHER

HERDHERRA _ZT—tWFOARK1I7.98E TR
PECT ) \MFHOARK108BETL —F—/\HFH
REFHERDHERTERAEEBINE K EFMH
W RS SR SOR D TR -

EHEA

ERBEAR T EHFHARKAI0.3BETILNN20.8%
ECT-\MFEHARK4BBET  EMEEHNN
B TRARE S HEMAE -

BB AR A
AEER T \MFEEFENEBERTHARE
SAREL BT tHFOARB.OBETAFMED

FRER

AR EREZ R FE  ARER - — \F FiEK
FISHANRNHAREMN SEET HE T —+HFH
AR®123.088T -




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEREFN WD T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2018
COMPARED TO FY2017 (CONTINUED)

Profit for the Year (Continued)

Income tax expenses decreased to approximately RMB40.1
million in FY2018 from approximately RMB49.3 million
in FY2017. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in EIT in line with the decrease in taxable profits
partially offset by provision of LAT.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of
approximately RMB1.2 million in FY2018, representing a
decrease of 98.4% from FY2017.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2018

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB67.7 million, compared to
approximately RMB56.2 million as at 31 March 2017. The
increase was mainly attributable to acquisition of equipment
during FY2018.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB553.0 million, compared
to approximately RMB536.8 million as at 31 March 2017.
The increase comprised mainly the net fair value gain of the
Group’s investment properties.

Intangibles

Intangible assets represented copyright in relation to the
capital injection to a subsidiary of the Company by a non-
controlling interest.

Interest in an Associate

The Group had interest in an associate of approximately
RMB4.4 million as at 31 March 2018, compared to
approximately RMB5.7 million as at 31 March 2017, which
represented a 30% equity interest in Davi Pharmaceutical as
at 31 March 2018 and the share of results of an associate
in Fy2018.

Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets represented equity interests in a
number of entities incorporated in the PRC on which the
Group does not have control nor significant influence. Other
financial assets increased from approximately RMB8.6
million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately RMB28.4
million as at 31 March 2018 mainly attributable to the
Group’s subscription for 1,170,000 ordinary shares of
LongYu Medicine in FY2018.

CE-N\BERCF-LHEIHBXEALBRDORE
(&)
F s ()

IEHAXH —T—tHFNHARKIQOIBETHIE
“ZE-\BMFEHARB401BET - BHL T ERHNER
e MR A E R TSR D - B0 W L IR B B AT
i

A FEBR-_Z—N\FEHEBRBEEEFHARE
12BBT B+t FRMDI8.4%

REB-NF=ZA=+-HZHBRRCE

M BERRE

RIZ-N\F=ZA=1+—R rEBEEVE BELER
BOARKESTTEEBL MR-_E—+F=A=+—RHR~R
MARE62EET - RFEBBEIEHAN_—T—\MF
NE R

REME

RIZB-NF=ZA=1+—0 rEERFREVELA
MARKEE3.0BETL MR-E—tF=A=1+—8B5
MARME36.8BE T - ZFEMEEHNAKEREY
EFMEEN AR EWEFBAEC

BILEE

BIVAEREBARA KB AR — R IFZERBIRRA
ZHBRREEEEERE -

REBE QAR 2ER

RZFE-NFZA=1+—0 AEERFRERBE QR 2E
SHARBLIABET MR _FT—tF=A=1t—A0~%
MARBETEBL -PNBMERRZESE/AN _T—/\F
A=+ HRARERMI0NBELN —FT— \FF
DIEME R R ZFME

HtteMEE

Hiv e EERS TR EEMRLERBNOEE  A5H
HZRSERYBRGSAERATE N - HMSREEAN
E—tF-A=Zt - HNARKBOABTEMNEN_F
—N\F=A=+—HBNHARK28488 7T TEHANEE
BT — BT ERE1,170,0000K BEF B8 4 L MAR P B




Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increased
from approximately RMB7.1 milion as at 31 March 2017 to
approximately RMB7.7 million as at 31 March 2018, mainly
due to an increase in the fair value of the profit guarantee
as well as the put option as at 31 March 2018 in relation
to the Group’s acquisition of a 30% equity interest in Davi
Pharmaceutical.

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits increased from
approximately RMB221.6 million as at 31 March 2017 to
approximately RMB230.4 milion as at 31 March 2018. The
increase was mainly due to an increase in deposits pledged
against and secured for the bank loans to the Group.

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB1,664.4 million
from approximately RMB1,379.5 million as at 31 March
2017. The increase was in tandem with the construction
progress of Han Zhi Yun Commercial Centre (&2 BIFG %5
1) located in Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale decreased from approximately
RMB360.0 million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately
RMB243.8 million as at 31 March 2018, mainly due to the
handover of property units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan as
well as Yichun Royal Lake City to the buyers.

Accounts Receivable

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s accounts receivable
amounted to approximately RMBO0.3 million compared to
approximately RMB1.5 million as at 31 March 2017. The
decrease was mainly due to the recovery of accounts
receivable in FY2018. Since the balances were considered
fully recoverable, no impairment provision was required.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

The Group’s prepayments and other receivables amounted
to approximately RMB268.3 milion as at 31 March 2018,
compared to approximately RMB106.7 million as at 31
March 2017.

BERE WD T

RZSBE-—NE=ZRA=+—HZHHE R RO E(E)

NAERERIIRZEHEE
BARERBRIEZEREEAR -_T—LF=A
=T —HOARBTIBETENER - N\F=H
=t—HBOARB77AET TE2HR-_Z—N\F=H
=+t B EBARBEUWE AR EXI0%E 2 BRE
KRk EARE R 1 A (EAE INPTER -

T ”ﬁ\’f

N

EEFERK

EHREHCERERAR —_F—tF=ZA=+—8%
ARB216ABTENER T \F=ZA=1T—"80%
AR230.48 & T B INE B RN AEBE AR MIE
RIBITER 2 7 FIRNFAER -

S /ES

REZZE-NFZA=1t—H AEEREIYEER_-F
—tFZA=T-HHOARB13795BETEMENHA
R¥E1,664488 T MEZRUNFEIIENEZ
BEETONTIRERHR -

HEME

FEMEHN _ZE—tF=A=+—HHAR¥360.08
BLRLER—_E-N\F=A=+—HHARK243.88
BT TEAN M ERER TR EELE
RTERAE -

P W BR K

RZE-NFZA=1+—8 XEENREERIOR/AR
¥o3AEBETL MR _T—tF=ZA=T—"BHORARE
1.6B8T M EERN ZF—/\ B F U @ 8 W BR KA
B AN A AR ER A Y E - BB AL RER
o

ANREREAMERE

RZZBE-N\F=ZA=+—H0 "EENFEFNFKIELHME
WRIBEH/ARK2683BETL MR _E—+EF=A
=t—HRAKWAARK106.7AE T




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEREFN WD T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

Prepayments and Other Receivables (Continued)

On 30 March 2018, the Group and its joint venture
partner entered into a designated operating agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which subject to the fulfilment of
certain conditions, its joint venture partner will designate all
the rights and responsibilities of the management, operation
and financing of the undeveloped project of Yichun Royal
Lake City to the Group.

Prepayments and other receivables increased, mainly due
to the deposit paid in relation to the Agreement as well as
the prepayments to the contractors for the construction of
the Group’s project.

Tax Recoverable

Tax recoverable decreased to approximately RMB17.6
million as at 31 March 2018 from approximately RMB20.8
million as at 31 March 2017, mainly attributable to a
decrease in prepayments of the EIT as well as LAT during
FY2018.

Accounts Payable, Accruals, Receipts in Advance and
Other Payables

Accounts payable decreased to approximately RMB52.1
million as at 31 March 2018 from approximately RMB79.9
million as at 31 March 2017 due to a decrease in amounts
payable to the suppliers for construction costs incurred in
respect of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan and Yichun Royal
Lake City.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables mainly
comprised the advance receipts from customers in respect
of the deposits and prepayments for the Group’s property
pre-sales, the accrued construction costs and project-
related expenses that were based on the progress of
project development but were not due for payment.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables increased
to approximately RMB510.7 milion as at 31 March 2018
from approximately RMB466.8 milion as at 31 March 2017.
The increase mainly represented the advance receipts
from customers for the deposits and prepayments for the
Group’s property pre-sales in FY2018.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities increased from approximately
RMB80.0 million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately
RMB83.6 million as at 31 March 2018, mainly attributable
to the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair
value gain on investment properties.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2018, the Group had recorded a net cash outflow of
approximately RMB238.1 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to an increase in properties held under
development and properties held for sale as well as
prepayments and other receivables.

Net cash outflow from investing activities in FY2018 was
approximately RMB42.2 million, which was mainly due to
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as well as
other financial assets.

Net cash inflow from financing activities in FY2018 was
approximately RMB238.4 million, mainly attributable to the
receipts from new bank loans which were partially offset by
the repayments of loan principals and interests.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB222.1 million, of which
mostly were denominated in RMB and HK$ (31 March
2017: approximately RMB264.4 million).

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO
Bank Loans

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately RMB1,143.1 million (31 March 2017:
approximately RMB832.8 million), which were repayable as
follows:
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2018 2017
—BE-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Repayment period EEE

Within one year or on demand —FANSIREREE 458,884 228,258
More than one year, but not exceeding two years % — {2 T~ BB RN F 408,292 08,849

More than two years but not exceeding five BRF RN HEAR S
years 103,675 505,716
More than five years HRHF 172,200 -
1,143,051 832,823

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s bank loans were
denominated in RMB and HK$ and bore interest at floating
rates ranging from 2.20% to 7.50% (31 March 2017: 1.92%
to 7.50%) per annum.
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BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO (CONTINUED)
Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity.
As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio was 59.9%
(81 March 2017: 42.4%). The Group has implemented
certain loan management policies which include close
monitoring of the gearing ratio and any changes in interest
rates.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

Details of the financial guarantee of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 34 to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group are set
out in notes 18 and 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital and
other liquidity requirements principally from cash generated
from our operations and bank and other borrowings.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited
to cash generated from our operations, bank and other
borrowings as well as other external equity and debt
financing. The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent
financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits
and to maintain contingency plan for funding to ensure
that the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.
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CHANGE OF IMMEDIATE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
25 August 2017, Pan Hong Holdings proposed to
distribute, by way of a one-time dividend in specie, of all
the 1,800,000,000 Shares held by Pan Hong Holdings
(representing approximately 73.05% of the total issued
Shares) to the shareholders of Pan Hong Holdings on a pro
rata basis (but without fractional entitlements) (the “Proposed
Distribution”).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29
March 2018, the Board was notified that the Proposed
Distribution had been completed and the share certificates
in respect of the Shares distributed by Pan Hong Holdings
under the Proposed Distribution had all been despatched
to the relevant shareholders of Pan Hong Holdings on 29
March 2018.

Prior to the completion of the Proposed Distribution, Extra
Good (a company owned as to 48% and 52% equity
interest by Ms. Chan and Mr. Wong respectively), Mr. Wong
and Ms. Chan were indirectly, through Pan Hong Holdings,
interested in approximately 73.05% in the issued share
capital of the Company (the “Issued Share Capital”) and,
together with Pan Hong Holdings, were the then controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Immediately following the completion of the Proposed
Distribution, Pan Hong Holdings ceased to be a controlling
shareholder of the Company and Extra Good, Ms. Chan
and Mr. Wong have received a total of 1,153,103,153
Shares from Pan Hong Holdings, representing 46.80%
of the Issued Share Capital as at the date of this annual
report, and remain as the controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash
and bank balances, other receivables, other payables and
bank loans which are denominated in HK$. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency
exposures regularly and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group pledged its property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, properties held
under development, properties held for sale, and bank
deposits of approximately RMB1,922.0 million (31 March
2017: approximately RMB1,666.2 million) to various banks
to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did
not have any material acquisition or disposal of assets,
subsidiaries and affiiated companies during FY2018 (FY2017:
nil).

EVENT AFTER THE END OF FY2018

No important events affecting the Group have occurred
since 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in
FY2018 (FY2017: nil).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2017: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 318 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2018 (31 March 2017: 242). Staff remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions
and the performance of the individuals concerned, and
are subject to review from time to time. The Group also
provides other staff benefits including medical insurance,
and grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff
based on their performance and contributions to the Group.
Employee costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately RMB31.7 million in FY2018 (FY2017:
approximately RMB30.1 million).

STATUS OF PROFIT GUARANTEE
(@) Davi Pharmaceutical

On 26 November 2015, JX Asia City entered into
the subscription agreement (the “Davi Subscription
Agreement”) to subscribe for 30% equity interest in
Davi Pharmaceutical (the “Davi Subscription”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Davi Subscription
Agreement, JX Asia City may exit the Davi
Subscription under any one of the following
conditions:

A.  The audited net profit of Davi Pharmaceutical
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
less than RMB7.0 million (approximately HK$8.5
million); or

B.  The audited net profit of Davi Pharmaceutical
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was less
than RMB9.0 million (approximately HK$10.9
million); or

C. The audited net profit of Davi Pharmaceutical
for the year ending 31 December 2018 is less
than RMB11.0 million (approximately HK$13.4
million); or

D. The aggregate audited net profit of Davi
Pharmaceutical for the years ended/ending 31
December 2016, 2017 and 2018 is less than
RMB27.0 million (approximately HK$32.8 million)
(the “Total Profit Guarantee”).
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STATUS OF PROFIT GUARANTEE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Davi Pharmaceutical (Continued)

The audited net loss of Davi Pharmaceutical for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017
were approximately RMB2.7 million (approximately
HK$3.3 million) and approximately RMB3.4 million
(approximately HK$4.1 million) respectively. Although
the audited net profit of Davi Pharmaceutical for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 were less
than RMB7.0 million (approximately HK$8.5 million)
and RMB9.0 million (approximately HK$10.9 million)
respectively and the respective profit guarantee was
not met, the Company could still choose to execute
the exiting arrangement if the Total Profit Guarantee is
not met. The Company will enforce the obligations of
the guarantor under the Davi Subscription Agreement
if the Total Profit Guarantee is not met.

LongYu Medicine

On 28 September 2017, Zhejiang Sino Harbour
entered into the subscription agreement to subscribe
for 1,170,000 ordinary shares of LongYu Medicine (the
“LongYu Subscription Agreement”).

Pursuant to the terms of the LongYu Subscription
Agreement, the guarantor has irrevocably and
unconditionally guaranteed Zhejiang Sino Harbour
that the audited net profit of LongYu Medicine for the
financial year ending 31 December 2018 shall be at
least RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$29,404,000) and in which the non-recurring profit
or loss shall not exceed RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,881,000).

The Board will update on the performance of LongYu
Medicine as and when its audited financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2018 is available.
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COMPANY UPDATE
Property Pre-sales

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of
properties under each project up to 18 May 2018 are
summarised as follows:

DERHEE
MHAE

BE-T—\FHEA+\R SHEZNEBEERIHZ
R

Nanchang Sino Yichun Royal

Harbour Kaixuan City Lake City

Residential Units Zone 2, Part B Phase 2

MEEE

EEEN SlEEE — 4 EBIRE HEHHE =1

Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 27,885 sq.m. 104,196 sq.m.
(156 units) (1,091 units)

HEtHEE AT E v AR EmR(RBEAEE) 27,885 /52K 104,196 5 K

(1561E Bz ) (1,0911E g7 )

Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 18,863 sg.m. 103,898 sg.m.
(108 units) (1,088 units)

HEtEEE zAREmE(REVEE) 18,863 F 777K 103,898 F 77K

(1081E ) (1,0881E g L)

Percentage of pre-sale 68% 99%

TEE PTG L2 68% 99%

Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed over to buyers as at 18,863 sg.m. 5,567 sq.m.
31 March 2018/ (108 units) (56 units)

HE_Z— \F=-A=+—HHRARXNERZEBEEFRERE 18,863 5K 5,567F 15 K

(BBEEMEE )N (1081E Bz ) (561 EfL)

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers as at 31 March 20182 RMB260.48 million RMB26.2 million
HE_Z—)\F=-A=1+—"HRAXNERZEBEEFESE AREE260.48H E T AREE262HETT
ASP per sg.m.* RMB13,809 RMB4,706
BYARFHEE AER#13,8097T AR¥4,7067C

Expected completion date 2nd quarter of 2018 Completed

TEEATEAK B HA —E-N\FE_FE E5ERK
N Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as Al HABRER ZEEERBFHESETFE R FNOT  —ZF— )\

follows: Beginning of FY2018 pre-sales plus new pre-sales
during FY2018 less those handed over to buyers during
FY2018, which was recognised as sales during FY2018.

ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value
not handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not
handed over to buyers.
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CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND DEVELOPING
PROJECTS

The Group will maintain our construction scale in order
to offer enough GFA available for sale and for delivery to
support our growth in future.

LAND BANK

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had land bank with total
planned saleable GFA of approximately 2,540,872 sg.m. in
five cities in the PRC.

BEEENRFRIEER

AEBESEFERERBURHEHERERBE AT H
ERRM AIERKIE R -

T f#E

RoEBE-NEFE=ZA=+—8 AEERFTRRERTHES
IR BN ER ML 52,540,872 F K 2 LS

Planned

saleable GFA

LIREIRE

BEEE

Completed properties held for sale CRT 7 HFEME 86,967

Properties under development Rk ES 109,170

Properties held for further development EEAR KRG W 2,344,735

Total #Et 2,540,872
FUTURE OUTLOOK RREE

Looking forward to the rest of 2018, the Group remains
optimistic in relation to the economy of China. The
economic growth of China is expected to remain stable,
shifting from a rapid growth stage to a high-quality steady
growth stage.

To establish a long-term effective mechanism has been
a keynote of the real estate policy. In the 19th National
Congress of Communist Party of China, President Xi
Jinping has outlined his vision for the next five years
of development in China and emphasized that “houses
are for living but not for speculation”. Meanwhile, the
Central Economic Work Conference has pointed out the
importance of “accelerating the establishment of a housing
system with multi-agent supply, multi-channel protection
and co-development of housing lease and sales”. The
Group believes that the Chinese central government will
continue the macro-control policies in controlling housing
price, preventing market bubbles and destocking to the
real estate industry in 2018. However, it will be positive to
China’s real estate industry in terms of a long-term macro
perspective.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Apart from the property development business, the Group
will continue to expand diversely the pharmaceutical
inspection and stem cell businesses. The Group established
Zhejiang IPS since 2017, which aims at setting up a
leading third-party laboratories and contract research
organization in China. With the completion of the core team
formation in early 2018, Zhejiang IPS had moved forward
from ramp-up period and quickly switched its focus to
medium and large scale projects. The Group will increase
its investments in Zhejiang IPS continuously to support its
growth and its technical level. Currently, the quality and
efficacy consistency evaluation for generic drugs is the core
business development direction of Zhejiang IPS. Meanwhile,
the Group provides stem cell storage consultation and
referral services via its subsidiary, Guangxi Gangrun. We
shall strive to enhance the professional knowledge of our
team and grasp the demand of the stem cell market in
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, China. We are also
constantly seeking new opportunities to extend our stem
cell business into upstream and downstream sectors and
exploring appropriate potential investment opportunities to
create synergies with our current healthcare businesses.

The Group will continue to adopt a robust financial policy
and remain cautiously optimistic regarding China’s real
estate market in the rest of 2018. The Board believes that
the business of property development can still generate
strong cash inflows for the Group and continuously support
its healthcare business sector in the future.
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The Board presents this annual report and the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
85 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of
the Final Dividend (FY2017: HK1.0 cent per Share) to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members on Friday, 10 August 2018.

The proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the 2018 AGM. It is expected that the
Final Dividend would be paid to the Shareholders on Friday,
24 August 2018.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2018 AGM is scheduled to be held on Monday, 30
July 2018. A notice convening the 2018 AGM will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2018 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday,
25 July 2018 to Monday, 30 July 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of the Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2018 AGM to be held on Monday, 30 July 2018,
non-registered Shareholders must lodge all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 24 July 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(CONTINUED)

Proposed Final Dividend

Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving
the Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the 2018 AGM,
the Register of Members will be closed for determining
the Shareholders’ entitlement to the Final Dividend from
Tuesday, 7 August 2018 to Friday, 10 August 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
the Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
Final Dividend, non-registered Shareholders must lodge
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 6 August 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of
the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong),
including a fair review of the Group’s business as well
as future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the sections headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
10 and 11 and pages 12 to 25 of this annual report
respectively. The above sections form part of this report. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the
end of the Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we
are unable to acquire suitable land for property development
at prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable
returns upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to
the impact of macro-economic and industrial policies. Our
Group’s performance may be adversely affected by changes
of the political, social and economic conditions in the PRC
if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing market
condition in a timely manner.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EERERNBFEIFEGE)

BZEABRE

FRENRZZE— ) \FREAFAE HBBEBIERS
BEZRERE ARABR=_E—N\FENALRH(EH
OE—ZE- N\FNA+H(EHRE)BREEERA)EE
PIRBPERLTFE B EREWE RIS 2R - 5
MAEZERTEBRMDBE - ARFAREKEERENE
B RERRENABIEEZMNBEREERGBER
ERZE-)\FNARNB(EH ) TFOE=t+2p1%
RERNRNBZEBRNDBEER ) REERESLFELE
RAFR i ARSI AERE1485212103BE A
(SEE

R

RBBE B R RGP (BB EDI 6228 ) I RO R E LA
KEXBERY2E—FilmAEE(ERYAREER R
AEBEBARBER 2 A FER)DRIENAFRE10R
RENEZIXTFEREINRFI2EEE26E 2 [ BEEN
wR DM MES - A L BEIMERAREN —FED - AR
FRERE YERLEZEAKEIERES-

FEEHENERRARR TRERE
E 2 0

ER—REHERE AR AEEMERESES LiF
FHERENENERMNEBEHEE - MR FITEN
EAEEHERMNCEHBEFMERESSERHRE
RESES L AN EHERE  AIRMNER BB
MM EEER R R BT E

BER SRR

EATEERNESMASEEY BHETEEFER
BB RATERR S - T 8L R B TR
FOTTBIAR - AR M A R P BEOA A R
BHRE B TS -




Directors’ Report
EEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
(Continued)

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management
is disclosed in note 36 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 190 and 191 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group has
complied with the applicable laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection. The Group has submitted
environmental impact assessment report for each of the
Group’s projects before the commencement of construction
and obtained approval from the relevant environmental
protection bureau after completion of each of the projects.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 190 and 191 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows of the Group for
the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018 are set out on pages 78 to 189 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to the Shareholders for FY2018, before
dividends, of RMB4,883,000 (FY2017: RMB52,364,000) has
been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 89 of this annual report.

At 31 March 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to the Shareholders as calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda
amounted to approximately RMB22,077,000 (31 March
2017: RMB22,869,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem any of the
Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or
sell any of such Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue
of new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organized by the
municipal government of the PRC for its employees in the
PRC. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in
note 3.18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 28
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted to approximately 3.2% and
approximately 13.2% respectively of the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

During the Year, payments attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 45.6% and 74.8% of total payment under
construction contracts for the Year respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates
or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the
Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Chairlady)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. XIE Gang

Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. ZHANG Juan
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
SHI Feng (an Executive Director, Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer), Ms. Chan (the Chairlady and the
NED) as well as Mr. XIE Gang (an INED) will retire from
office by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. LEE Man To and Ms. ZHANG
Juan an annual written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 72 to 77
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Ms. Chan, Mr. SHI Feng, Mr. WONG Lui and Ms.
GAO Lan has a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 10 June 2017 and
each of these service contracts is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than six months’ written notice
to the other and retirement by rotation and re-election at
the AGM in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of one year and
thereafter shall continue year to year subject to termination
by either party giving not less than one month’s written
notice to the other and retirement by rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a service contract
or letter of appointment with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices and making recommendations to the
Board in respect thereof for its consideration and approval.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee and the Board’s approval.
The emoluments are determined by the Board by reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
respectively.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) the Listing Rules,
changes of the information of the Directors, subsequent
to the date of the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended 30 September 2017, required to be
disclosed, are set out below:

Name of Director

EEHA

Details of change

SEFE

Mr. LEE Man To

E=Hm
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—tFNANAZTHIEANEANFHRREAHEESTER
FEHE O

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of PacRay International Holdings Limited,

a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1010), with effect

from 15 April 2018.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
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Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests 3521% ﬁ’jua)\;%wﬁfrs_maﬂﬁ (c) AR IBAR AT BIZA
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to BIARRNB) R FTRER OB T ¢
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred therein or (c) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:
() Long Position in the Shares (i) REROZEFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director/ Capacity/ Shares held/ the Company’s
Chief executive Nature of interest interested Total issued Shares*
HARRRE BT
FiiHERER R 2B D
BEE TETHRASHEE B HERtME ZREE et Eb*
Ms. Chan Beneficial owner 50,746,390
PR 24 BEmaA
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note (a)) 1,011,885,120
St EEER (MitE)
Interest of spouse (Note (a)) 90,471,643 1,153,103,153 46.80%
BoisiEs (Miat(a)
Mr. SHI Feng Beneficial owner 1,665,042 1,665,042 0.06%
AlESEE EnEBA
Mr. XIE Gang Interest of spouse (Note (b)) 5,902,663 5,902,663 0.24%
FRMI S A BoisiEzs (Mfat b))
Notes: Bt

(a) 1,011,885,120 Shares are held by Extra Good, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
the issue share capital of which is owned as to 48%
and 52% by Ms. Chan and her husband, Mr. Wong
respectively. Therefore, Ms. Chan is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of Shares held by Extra
Good and Mr. Wong (whether by himself or through
his controlled corporation) under the SFO.

(b) 5,902,663 Shares are held by Ms. Wong Man Bun,
who is the wife of Mr. XIE Gang. Therefore, Mr. XIE
Gang is deemed to be interested in the same parcel
of Shares held by Ms. Wong Man Bun under the
SFO.

* The percentage represents the total number of the
Shares interested divided by the number of issued
Shares as at 31 March 2018 (i.e. 2,464,000,000
Shares).

(a) 1,011,885,1208% i 17 H1Extra Good## 75 ' Extra Good
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE (CONTINUED)

(i) Long Positions in the Shares of Associated
Corporations

Name of Director/

Name of associated Capacity/

BEERFTETHRAEZEZE)
(i) REBEZERGO2HR

Number, class and
percentage of issued
shares in associated

corporation held/

Chief executive corporation Nature of interest interested Total
Fi¥sBERERN
BEE TETHRAE HBSEEN S #TRG
H®E HEEEEE 5 ERtE HE - HAREDL et
Ms. Chan Extra Good Beneficial owner 48 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares
(48%) (100%)
PR 2z 1 Extra Good ExEBA AR E%(48%) 100R% & 3 %(100%)

Interest of spouse

(Note)

AoBiEs (Hfat)

Note: The issued share capital of Extra Good is owned as
to 48% and 52% by Ms. Chan and her husband, Mr.
Wong respectively. Under the SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Mr.
Wong in Extra Good. Mr. Wong is a sole director of
Extra Good.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

52 ordinary shares
(62%)
52K E A% (52%)

Kzt : Extra Good#) B /TR A B/ L + R EL KT 5EE£5
FIBEF48%K52% < 1RIZ( & 5 K EAIE D) IR + 1%
18 BROTF B LR Extra GoodFs B Ik 1) A B 1S < ) F
S5 AExtra Goodlff— & % o
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following person or entity other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of SFO:

Long Position in the Shares
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of Number of Shares the Company’s
Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest held/interested Total issued Shares*
Fii HERERZ A A B2 8T

BRRERE 51 REnitE R EE BE BROZBIBEIE
Extra Good Beneficial owner 1,011,885,120 1,011,885,120 41.07%
Extra Good EnEAA
Mr. Wong Beneficial owner 90,471,643
ESE E=AA

Interest of a controlled corporation 1,011,885,120

(Note)

RS EEER (Kfat)

Interest of spouse (Note) 50,746,390 1,153,103,153 46.80%

FofBfgss (Ffat)

Note: Extra Good is owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong, the husband
of Ms. Chan, and 48% by Ms. Chan. By virtue of SFO, Mr.

Wong is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of

Shares held by Extra Good and Ms. Chan (whether by
herself or through her controlled corporation).

* The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
interested divided by the number of issued Shares as at 31
March 2018 (i.e. 2,464,000,000 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, so far as
is known by or otherwise notified to the Directors, no other
person or entity (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 35
to the Consolidated Financial Statements also fell under
the definition of “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the annual amount
involved in this continuing connected transaction is
less than HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected
transaction qualifies as a de minimis transaction under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.18 AND 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 5 August 2016, Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate
Company Limited (71 M 7 Bt & % B R 2 7)) (‘Hangzhou
Ganglian”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as borrower, entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited,
Hangzhou Branch (1B & & 77(R BI)A BR 2 7 M1 M 2 17)
(the “Bank”), as lender, pursuant to which the Bank had
agreed to grant to Hangzhou Ganglian a loan of up to
RMB450 million (the “Loan”). The final maturity date of all
outstanding amounts under the Loan Agreement will be the
date faling 36 months after the first day of draw down of
the Loan by Hangzhou Ganglian or the date of termination
of the Loan Agreement for breach of the terms therein,
whichever is the earlier.

The Loan Agreement requires, among others, that Mr.
Wong and Ms. Chan retain their effective control over the
Company at any time, any failure to comply with which wil
constitute an event of default under the Loan Agreement.

As at 31 March 2018, approximately RMB310.9 million of
the Loan had been drawn and utilized.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No arrangements, transactions or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
any entity connected with a Director has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
(apart from the Group’s business) which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 June 2011, the Company and Pan Hong Holdings
entered into a non-compete undertaking (the “Non-compete
Undertaking”) to avoid any potential competitions between
the business of the Group and Pan Hong Holdings
after the spin-off and separate listing of the Company.
Information about the relevant undertakings between the
Company and Pan Hong Holdings was disclosed in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
of the Company’s prospectus dated 12 July 2011.

The Company has received a written confirmation from Pan
Hong Holdings that it had complied with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking during the period from 1 April
2017 to 29 March 2018, i.e the date on which it ceased
as a controlling shareholder of the Company. The INEDs
have also reviewed the said confirmation and are of the
view that Pan Hong Holdings had complied with the terms
of the Non-compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for
the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties.
In addition, the Company has taken out appropriate and
sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions taken against Directors arising out
of corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the
Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMBO0.2 million (FY2017: ni).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for its re-
appointment as the Independent Auditor will be proposed
at the 2018 AGM. There has been no change in the
Independent Auditor since the listing of the Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board

SHI Feng

Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

Hong Kong, 15 June 2018
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Corporate Governance Report
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and
ethical environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all of the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year except as
disclosed in this report.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that
the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives.
Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three Executive Directors, Mr. SHI Feng (the
Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED Ms. Chan (the
Chairlady) and three INEDs, Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. LEE
Man To and Ms. ZHANG Juan. Mr. WONG Lui is the
son of Ms. Chan. Save as disclosed above, there
is no family or other material relationship among the
members of the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 72 to 77 of this
annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to accomplish diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on merits while taking into account diversity
including gender diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Executive Directors and the NED have entered into
service contracts with the Company for a specific term
of three years. All INEDs have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of
one year.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three INEDs, one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and
financial management. Each of the INEDs has confirmed
his/her independence of the Company and the
Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fil a causal vacancy
or, subject to authorisation by the Shareholders in
general meeting, as an additional Director. Where
vacancies exist, the Board shall carry out selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience,
qualification, integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement from
office by rotation and re-election at each AGM provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years in accordance with the Bye-
Laws.

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given sufficient
time and effort to the affairs of the Group. The INEDs
have provided the Board with their diversified expertise,
experience and professional advice. The Board believes
that the ratio between the Executive Directors and the
INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the Group. The Board also believes
that the views and participation of the INEDs in the
Board and committee meetings provide independent
judgment on the issues relating to strategy, performance,
conflict of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all Shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses and
affairs as well as unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, who is responsible
for providing the Directors with Board papers and
related materials. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses in
carrying out their duties and responsibilities.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) (A ES=E(HE)

The Company has taken out appropriate and
sufficient insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions taken against Directors arising
out of corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with
code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development and provided a record
of training they had received for the Year to the
Company.

The individual training record of each Director received
for the Year is set out below:

ARREREFERTAREBHHERAMNE LR
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BEEAGHEETEEBRTAZEA6SETRIGX
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BEAFE SEERZEIZEAZEERTIL

A %

Reading materials and/

or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,

operations and corporate
governance matters

RMEREXE “ER

TEEAEEBRHTERR

Name of Directors BEEHR REFEEBHEE, R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman AEEE(RIERFE

and Chief Executive Officer) HENTE) v/
Mr. WONG Lui AT AE v/
Ms. GAO Lan mRZL v/
NED FHITES
Ms. Chan (Chairladly) PRz (%) 4
INEDs BIYkHTES
Mr. XIE Gang fR I 5 A4 4
Mr. LEE Man To THEERE 4
Ms. ZHANG Juan RIBZ L v

During the Year, the Board held five meetings. At
these Board meetings, the Directors discussed
and exchanged their views on significant issues
and general operations of the Group, reviewed the
financial performance and reviewed and approved the
quarterly, interim and final results.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an
agenda together with the Board papers are sent to
all Directors not less than three days before the date
of meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include in the agenda any other matter that they
would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the
Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice
or such length of notice as required by the respective
terms of reference of the Board committees is given
to all committee members.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. He also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to
all Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Chan is the Chairlady and Mr. SHI Feng is the
Chief Executive Officer. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairlady and the Chief Executive Officer
are clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

Ms. Chan, being the Chairlady, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. She would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information being
provided to the Directors and encourage the Directors
to actively participate in the Board to act in the best
interest of the Company.

Mr. SHI Feng, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives
and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board
and leading the management of the Company.

(A)

(B)
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(C) COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

(D)

(E)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). After having made a
specific enquiry by the Company with each of
the Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set
out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of
conduct throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 31 March
2018 and of the Group’s results and cash flows for
the Year then ended and are properly prepared on a
going concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their
reporting responsibility in the Independent Auditor’'s
report of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with
the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. LEE Man To
(the chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and Ms. ZHANG Juan.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to
the financial statements. Under its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is required to perform, amongst
others, the following duties:

° monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;

° reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during
the Year and all minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary. During the Year, amongst others, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group and the quarterly
results, interim results and annual results of the
Group as well as financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.
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(F)

(@)

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

Auditor’s remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong, the Independent Auditor,
in respect of the Year amounted to HK$930,000. No
non-audit service was provided by the Independent
Auditor for the Year.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the
2018 AGM.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the Remuneration Committee was established
on 4 July 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. LEE Man To and Ms.
ZHANG Juan, one NED, Ms. Chan and one Executive
Director, Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held
during the Year and all minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary. During the Year, amongst
others, the Remuneration Committee (i) evaluated
and reviewed the performance of individual Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
in respect of FY2017; and (i) recommended to the
Board for consideration on the discretionary bonus
for FY2017 of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company.
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(H NOMINATION COMMITTEE

0

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, and
to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. LEE Man To
and Ms. ZHANG Juan and two Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held during
the Year and all minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary. During the Year, amongst others, the
Nomination Committee () assessed the independence
of the INEDs; (ii) reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and the board diversity policy;
and (i) reviewed the performance of the retiring
Directors and recommended to the Board the
re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM held
on 27 July 2017 (the “2017 AGM").

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to
the Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June
2016 delegated such responsibilities to the Audit
Committee and the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were revised and adopted on 17 June
2016 to include the responsibilities on reviewing the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and performed
the corporate governance functions under code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.
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(J) ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND V) EERZEEHENERHELH
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board TRV SESEERNAFERT2EESSE
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general EELECCERARNRRE RS

meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held
HEERAY ERETRY

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpL Ezg ERZEE FMzeg REZEE RRAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. SHI Feng RS 5/5 N/A 171 N/A 1
NEA NEA
Mr. WONG Lui TaLE 3/5 N/A N/A i 1N
NEMA N
Ms. GAO Lan mEZL 5/5 N/A N/A 11 11
NEMA N
NED FHTES
Ms. Chan Bt 5/5 N/A 171 N/A 1
NEA NEA
INEDs BYFGTES
Mr. XIE Gang AR 7 5/5 5/5 111 1n N
Mr. LEE Man To TEUEEE 5/5 5/5 171 17 1
Ms. ZHANG Juan R/ T 5/5 5/5 n n 0N
Code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance PEBATRISFRANEY EAG.7TIERTE B IEHIT
Code provides that independent non-executive EENEMIERITESELRFERE A  WEHIEER
directors and other non-executive directors should NEEERATENTH ARNBEER  —&ZIB L IEH
attend general meetings and develop a balanced TESREHE - E—1+EREAFAE HihH
understanding of the views of the shareholders. One E_Z—+ERRAFTFAENESeXKECERR
INED was not able to attend the 2017 AGM due to RN RABREREARA_E—+FREAFRKE
her business engagements. Other Board members FHEYIRRT -

who attended the 2017 AGM were already of
sufficient calibre and number for answering questions
raised by the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM.
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(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management and
internal control framework. The controls are to provide
reasonable assurance to safeguard the Shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets. The systems of
risk management and internal control are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. It can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss and the review of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
should be a concerted and continuing process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
risk management and internal control systems are
built. It provides discipline and structure, setting the
tone of the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.
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(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) EEEERAIPEIZE(E)

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the risk management and internal control code
provisions set out in code provision C.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code by having adopted
a three-tier risk management approach to identify,
assess, mitigate and handle risks. The Group has
developed and adopted a strategic planning and risk
management policy, which is designed to enhance risk
management of the Group by identifying, analyzing
and evaluating the possible material risks which shall
have adverse impact on the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, including strategic risks, financial
risks, market risks, operational risks and legal and
regulatory risks. Divisions and department heads are
responsible for the first line of defence. They oversee
the daily operations of their own business units and
are accountable for the conduct and performance
of their own operations. Any incidents regarding
non-compliance of their operations with regulations
and laws, failure to identify or properly manage the
risks associated with their business units, which
might lead to financial or non-financial losses to the
Group, shall be reported to the legal and compliance
department and the internal audit department of
the Group (the “Internal Audit Function”). As the
second line of defence, the Internal Audit Function
defines rule sets and models, provides professional
advices, develops work plans of internal audit, as well
as monitor and review the processes, practices and
procedures of internal controls for all business units
on a regular basis. It annually prepares internal audit
report containing findings and recommendations for
improvements in respect of the risk management and
internal controls and submits such report to the Audit
Committee for review. It also ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of
defence is effective. As the final line of defence, the
Audit Committee, with the professional advices and
opinions from the Internal Audit Function, ensures
that the first and second lines of defence are effective
through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle
and disseminate of price-sensitive inside information
to the public, after the information has come to
the Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably
practicable.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of
the Group’s business or the expectation as to the
Group’s performance, the Board has established
a policy for appropriate and effective reporting
procedures which ensure a timely and structured flow
of relevant financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that any
potential inside information is promptly identified
and escalated;

o establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

° restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession
of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

° ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are
in place when the Group enters into significant
negotiations with the third parties;

° disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;

° develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;
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(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) EEEERAIPEIZE(E)

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

° provide regular training to relevant employees
to help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such

policy;

° document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation
up to date; and

° publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of
the Group should be reported to the Company. The
materiality of the relevant information will be assessed
and, if considered appropriate, such information will
be escalated for the attention of the Board. Before
the inside information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Company shall take reasonable measures to
preserve the confidentiality of the information. In the
opinion of the Board, where the information has not
been kept confidential or there has been a leak, the
Company must issue a public announcement by
way of the electronic publication system operated
by the Stock Exchange as soon as reasonably
practicable. If the Board needs time to clarify details
of, and the impact arising from, an event or a
set of circumstances before it is in a position to
issue a full announcement to properly inform the
public, the Board shall consider issuing a “holding
announcement”. There are circumstances where
confidentiality has not been maintained and the Board
is not able to make a full announcement or a holding
announcement, the Board shall consider applying
for a trading halt in its securities until disclosure can
be made. All announcements in relation to inside
information disclosure should be properly approved by
the Board and issued to the public without delay.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Independent Auditor has, during the course of
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant
to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements within the scope of their audit.
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. The Board believes that the existing
risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)
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Number of individuals

HENEE (B T) AE
Nil to 1,000,000

ZEZ%1,000,000 4
SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS (M) MREREIE

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to the Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with the provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, interim reports,
annual reports and the Shareholders’ circulars on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).
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(M) SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS (CONTINUED)

(N)

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of
the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. As at the beginning of the meeting, the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll
will be explained by the chairman of the meeting.
Vote results are released by way of publication of an
announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye- law 58 of the Bye-laws,
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the
right to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meseting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong
Telephone:  (852) 2153 1688

Facsimile:  (852) 3020 5058
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone:
By post:

(852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk

Procedures for making proposals at general
meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.
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RE  HERERBWE

COMPANY PROFILE

The Group principally engaged in the property
development in the second and third tire cities in
China. The head office is located at Hong Kong.
The property project included residential properties,
detached housing, apartments, retails as well as
commercial properties.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange since 22 July 2011 (Stock Code:
1663).

The Group is committed to integrating environmental,
society and governance considerations in its daily
operations. Sustainability principles have been
established with four crucial areas: Environment,
People, Products and Communities.

Key material aspects ranging from occupational
health and safety, environmental protection, quality
assurance to harmonious communities were
pinpointed to illustrate the sustainable performance
of the Group. Regular meetings, workshops, and
feedback programmes have been conducted to
collect stakeholders’ views in order to retain a bilateral
communication channel.

ABOUT THIS REPORT
2.1 Reporting Scope

2.1.1 This is the second ESG report being
published by the Group for the Year. The
scope of the report covers the Group’s
principal business operating areas,
including completed properties, properties
held under development, properties held
for investment and the Group’s own
property unless otherwise specified.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
2.2 Reporting Standard

2.2.1 This report was prepared in accordance
with Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide”
(“Appendix 27”) of the Listing Rules.
In preparation of this ESG report, the
Group strictly adhered to the reporting
principles in the Appendix 27 to reveal all
the material aspects of the business in
a quantitative, balanced and consistent
manner.

2.2.2 The corporate governance of the Group
was addressed in accordance with all
applicable code provisions set out in
Corporate Governance Code.

EMBRACING SUSTAINABLE PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT

3.1.1 The sustainable development of the
Group consists not only of establishing an
environmental, health and safety stewardship,
but also setting up a people-oriented and
integrated system. The system provides the
Group with opportunities to prioritize and value
stakeholders’ engagement and expectations.

3.1.2 The Group’s business sustainability strategy
is based on integrity, ethics, green innovation,
originality, quality and safety and shareholders’
value. With such strategy, green property
for sustainable future will be achieved. The
Group is therefore fully committed to resource-
efficiency innovations, environmental and social
friendly operations. Such engagement enables
the Group to operate its business with greater
transparency and effective risk management
framework.
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ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
4.1 Minimizing Environmental Impacts
Air emissions Control

411 1In accordance with the Group’s
environmental policy and green property
development vision, the Group has
developed preventive measures for
contractors to better manage the
emission on sites. Contractors are also
required to set up on-site preventive

measures for emissions control. For

property management, the Group has
installed a mechanical exhaust system
in underground parking lots. The system
measures the concentrations of the gaseous
emission to ensure the concentrations
are maintained within the safety range
stipulated in the relevant standards.

REKERLE
41 FAOREFE
BESRBERAIE#

411 IRAEBIREHER MY ERER
2 AKECAABEERDER A
B ERIRIG T W A BB AN E
BIGIER R - AIRHIBER - s R B 12
ME NREBE R MEES T KB
HREG - ZEGAERBHHHER
B UHERREAERSERBIEERTH
REHER-

4.1.2 Moreover, Greenhouse Gas emissions A2 N REBEMERBEE RIRQAE
control relating to electricity efficiency and TEFAEREBATENENETERNE
saving across the property development EREEES -
projects and office works.

Overview of Sino Harbour’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG)*
ERRERBHEREHNE
Scope 1 Direct Emission (tonnes of CO2 equivalent)(tCO2e) 4712
HE-HEFR(E_SthEE
Scope 2 Indirect Emission (tCO2e) 375.22
HE_EEFER(E_ESthEE
Total GHG Emission (tCO2e) 422.34

BEREBHFHAE(M_StREER

The reported figures represent greenhouse gas emissions
from the major business units of the Group.

The GHG intensity is not significant during the operation.

i B FIEA B BRI E AR ERBNE -
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ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Minimizing Environmental Impacts
(Continued)

Noise Mitigation

4.1.3 At every stage of property development,
noise levels generated from construction
are regularly assessed and monitored.
The contractors are required to implement
noise control measures in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations.
The Group encourages contractors to
adopt low-noise construction machineries
to further minimize noise pollution. The
purpose is to reduce the environmental
impact in all aspects of the Group’s
operations.

Waste Management

4.1.4 The Group is committed to reduce waste
during its operation. To effectively monitor
wastes, the Group has begun to collect
data on its solid waste emission.

4.1.5 Disposal records are regularly monitored
by the Group to identify areas of
improvements. A transparent and verifiable
waste recording system is set up on
each property to enable performance
monitoring.

4.1.6 During the reporting period, the operation
of the Group and its contractors have
complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations regarding waste
handling.

RE- HERER®WE

REKERE (H)

N

41 RBAOREFE(E)

PR &

4.1.3 REBR Y X5 3% 0 R BOE BT
RERNEEELNRIT QM -ABAEEA
RIBFAEBRERERE R ZIEHIEG -
AEESB AR RARE T RER
2 WE—TRRERRRIES N
MDA EBLEMATENREVE -

BRYEE

ATARKEINRNBLBETHNERD B
BERERERY ~AEBEHARES
P BRI BE -

A1 AEEERE DR ELE UHAFR2
WENTH - BEYMEHERILBERA
RENBEYLERS  UERRRER -

416 RMERE AEEREARENHKLE
EESTAA RERYREEMERNRER
EZNR

Overview of Non-Hazardous Waste Data*

BEBRZVBEHE

Paper consumption

HIREFE

The reported figures represent non-hazardous waste from
the major business units of the Group.

*

0.51 tonnes
0.51M8

& 8 TR R T BRI EELREZERY)
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4 ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

4.2 Smart Use of Resource
Energy Saving

4.2.1 Efficiency in energy consumption in terms
of electricity, gas and fuel, is crucial to the
Group’s business sustainable performance.
The Group strives to achieve energy
reduction through a variety of initiatives
across the property development projects.
During designing and planning phases
of its properties, preference is given to
energy saving building materials and
equipment.

4

REKERE (H)

42 BRAEMFEH
BIAIBEIR
421 BBE N R RIREHRE R H RS
HAREBEKNIBELRRRBERE
D AEEBNBEERYERABEBEE
S TEEEmEIRERE  AEERYE
Rt RREIRREBLAE B EEME
ETE

Overview of Energy Consumption*

REFUH AR B

Electricity Consumption (kWh in ‘000)
HEE(TTER)

Energy Produced from Fuel (kWh in ‘000)

MBELENER(TTRE)

Total Energy Consumption (kWh in ‘000)

MEEE(TTEE)

Energy Intensity (kWh in ‘000/RMB’M revenue)

ERZE(TTER BWAARYEET)

Water Preservation

4.2.2 Water efficiency is another important
aspect of resource conservation. The
Group has also incorporated various water
conservation apparatus in its building
designs, including central water reuse
facilities and water-saving toiletries to
efficiently manage water consumption.

*

The reported figures represent the energy consumption from
the major business units of the Group

612.80
191.95
804.75

6.00

BRI 2k

422 KM ARBHNERN S —BEE)
He ARBEZARHTEE SELH
KRR - BIE T R EEKF A AR B K B K
BSERm WEREEKERER -

BT 8l FIE AR B T E TS E U BYBEFHFER
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ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION

(CONTINUED)

4.2 Smart Use of Resource (Continued)

Water Preservation (Continued)

4.2.3 Proper water consumption monitoring
system is implemented to achieve
continual improvement of the efficiency
and consumption optimization. Contractors
are strongly encouraged to implement
appropriate measures and prevent
freshwater wastage on site.

RE- HERER®WE

REKERE (H)

42 EREBEMFERE)
BA K (4E)
A23AEEERSBENKERBERELENR
G ANBERBFENE R ME(LERE - K
EEBINEFADEEHEE AL
TERHIRIG KK IBHE

Overview of Water Consumption*

KXEFH R

Total Water Consumption (m3)
KEFRHFEEE (LK)

Water Intensity (m3/RMB’M revenue)
KEREBE(IFKWAAREBET)

CREATING VALUES FOR OUR PEOPLE

5.1.1 The employment policy ensures the selection
and promotion of staff are based on merit
without bias toward gender, religion, race or
other similar factors.

5.1.2 An attractive and competitive remuneration
packages are provided to the Group’s
employees to keep potential talents. The
packages comply with the relevant labour law
for developing an emolument management
system in regards to working hours, rest,
vacations and wages. Moreover, reasonable
allowance or annual leave for overtime work on
statutory holiday are provided to employees in
order to encourage work-life balance.

The reported figures represent the water consumption from
the major business units of Group.

11,196

83.50

AETIRAEEE

511 BREBRBRENEHEENENER &l
Bl R R EAMARUE RS ERERAE -

512 AKEREEREE RSN BT IOHH -
M BBEANT - FMTAEMSEER X
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5  CREATING VALUES FOR OUR PEOPLE 5 AEIRIEEEGE)
(CONTINUED)

5.1.3 Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
Group. Age confirmation and identification check-

S513AKBBACAETIRAEHS T - EAA A
NEREAERFRLIBE S () - %22 RHE

up shall be carried out by Human Resources
Department before employment to avoid child
and forced labour which against the relevant law.
Furthermore, whistleblowing mechanism was
established to encourage employees to address
the above concerns through confidential and
comfortable reporting channel.

5.1.4 No relevant complaint has been received during

the reporting year.

RAARERET RBHS T - pih AEMERK
BEEHS USBEEEERELZ2NRE
RIEFOR ERRNE -

514 NMEFEN  AEEHEKDIERIIRF o

5.2 Employee Training and Education EEEZIREE
5.2.1 Front-line staff needs to handle high-risk 521 2REE —GEIZTERIESAMRE

activities during constructions and they B WESEMZEMRERENTD
are offered adequate vocational trainings i A HEBITEE N BETE
regarding safety and environmental EIBIR S MY AR TEEEY
protection to support their duties. Moreover, EXRER -EA—RARANMAEDN K
the staff should be equipped with job- SETHEEEARN MRRNE TR
related professional skills through trainings HEHHE - Bor A TR
to improve their capability. Be a responsible TIVERE -
developer, the Group has been regularly
monitored their contractors to ensure if
enough trainings are provided to the staff
to enhance their knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.

5.3 Providing Healthy and Safe Workplace 53 REBEZEZNIESEAHR

5.3.1 The Group believes that it is its responsibility 531RKEMEE AEEEAREEBREREMN

to provide a safe workplace for employees. TESFT - WRIBMERAS N AZE  BEIES
The employees shall be notified their MEBHETERB - MIN HRTEE
working conditions by the employer in BEARETHA R ZESEATHA -
accordance with the relevant labour law.
In addition, authorized permit is needed to
access the construction site for the sake of
safety enforcement.

5.4 Anti-Corruption Mechanism 5.4 REGHE

5.4.1 The Group upholds integrity, fairness,
transparency, accountability and tolerates
no corruption and fraud. Additionally, the
Group is providing a level-playing field to all
contractors and suppliers.

5.4.2 Internal control manual and project bidding
management system were established to
fight against bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering among the contractors
and suppliers. Whistle-blowing policies were
implemented to all stakeholders to report
suspected misconduct, malpractices or
fraudulent activities. Reported cases shall be
investigated by the Group’s Audit Committee

and executive management.

541 AEBEEHE AF -EH BT T
BRESRIEE - BN AEERPIAA
BEkEERREAEHRFIRE -

5.4.2 N5 BB Hl 7 W EME S F i 2IE B AE
EEGIE TEABE RHEEHNEH
B R BEFRARE - AKESME
FNEBRERBE  URERUTE
1T EREMEEES - RERGIAAN
SEEZZEENRAEEERSE -
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CREATING VALUES FOR OUR PEOPLE
(CONTINUED)

5.4 Anti-Corruption Mechanism (Continued)

5.4.3 During the reporting year, the Group did
not work with any contractors or suppliers
who failed to comply with the laws,
regulations and the Group’s policies.

PROVIDING THE BEST TO OUR CUSTOMERS
6.1  Supply Chain Management

6.1.1 Effective communication between the
Group and contractors and suppliers is
necessary for assuring quality, enhancing
efficiency and creating sustainable living to
the construction projects.

6.1.2 A comprehensive, impartial and transparent
bidding procedure has been developed
for selecting building materials, equipment
and services from contractors or suppliers.
All contractors and suppliers are expected
to meet environmental and occupational
health and safety policies required by the
Group for ensuring compliance during the
tendering procedure. Moreover, Tender
Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire tendering process to combat
unfair business practices.

6.1.3 Regular assessments and monitoring on
procurement process, health and safety
performance shall be conducted to ensure
contractors and suppliers operating in a
sustainable manner and to uphold the
highest reliability commitments.

6.2 Quality Management System

6.2.1 The Group is striving for excellence to
provide premium properties and services
to clients. With the view to achieving high
service quality, an independent “Completed
Construction Works Examination Report”
(R TI2% T B U TR %) was produced
after the completion of construction works.
The construction work shall be completely
inspected by professionals before being
concealed by subsequent work. Once
the building is completed, all relevant
information including but not limited to
examination result and improvement shall
be included in the report.

5
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6 PROVIDING THE BEST TO OUR CUSTOMERS 6
(CONTINUED)

6.2 Quality Management System (Continued)

AEFRERTFHRE (H)

62 HEETERR(R)

6.22In order to achieve continuous
improvement of sustainability performance,
the Group strives to be accredited as
certified green buildings by complying with
the international new building standards.
By adopting an affordable range of best
practices during design and planning
stages, the environmental impacts were
minimized for constructing a new building
as well as improving the environmental
quality and user satisfaction.

Intellectual Property and Data Privacy

6.3.1In order to pursuit continuous
improvement in quality, the Group has
developed its own policy and code of
conduct as internal guide for quality
control. The guide includes the protection
of intellectual property rights and client
data. All contractors are expected to
follow the same practices.

6.3.2 The group has received no complaints
about the products with regards to health
and safety, advertising, labelling or any
privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress
during the reporting vyear.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH

7.1.1 As the business continues to evolve and

develop, the Group has remained steadfast
in its commitment to make a positive change
in the communities. The Group firmly believes
in its role in invigorating the communities
through sharing its prosperity. Understanding
that different segments of the communities all
have their own distinct challenges, the outreach
programs have been developed to address the
particular needs of each group.

7
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH (CONTINUED)

7.1.2 In collaboration with the partner organization,
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited (“Hanyun
Incubator”) has provided assistance to the
local communities through the following charity
programs:

“Dream of Flying.Walking with Love” “i{7
BREF T

7.1.3 Representatives of Hanyun Incubator took part a
charitable activity “Dream of Flying, Walking with
Love” 1o visit primary school in China. Donations
with learning tools and toys were given to the
school during the visit Through the participation
in the activity, the Group demonstrated its
caring to the children by improving their learning
environment.

RE- HERER®WE

HER ()
7TA2IEEMMREARAR(NEY TR )5
ERHARE FRUNTARE AR it
[ :

[BREE - EBEET ]
7A3EMPLBRNRRSMT [HRES - BER

TIREES 2BEN/NE - 2ERRER
BETEBRRETA -AEESMZEE -
BANERERERE RAUTENHEE -

Hanyun Incubator ‘s charitable activity
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LOOKING FORWARD

8.1.1 Looking ahead to the coming years, the Group
is fully engaged in promoting sustainability
culture into its business practice and daily
behaviour to its employees and contractors.
Greater performance is expected from
green design and the integrated sustainable
development management approach that values
stakeholders’ expectations.

8.1.2 The Group expects to drive potential
opportunities for innovation from its sustainable
development ambition for adapting challenging
economic environment, and fully endorse
its social responsibility. This will increase the
corporate reputation, stakeholders’ satisfaction
and the market recognition.

THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX

9.1.1 This report has been prepared in accordance
with the ESG Guide of the Stock Exchange.
General disclosures are indicated in the table
below that directs readers to the relevant
sections.

REARRK

811 RERKHF AKEREZHB AWK A HE
BR(CHEEBEIEETHABHNERERR
FBIIRT  AEEERACR LA RER
RIZAEE ERFNEYPE BHSERE

BERRHE-

BA2 AREA BN AIFHEERB P EFEELH
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9 BXMRE HEREARHEESIRS

9.1.1 ARE HIRIBI X FAIRE - L& RERIESI R

o NEREH
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Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
B FIRIR - e R BRI EIEEI R

EEMEREE

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
B HEREREM BRit, & BR
A. Environment
R
A1 Emission
HHY
General Disclosure The Group is not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to
air and GHG emissions, noise emission and
waste during the reporting period.
— MR HER AEBSNABUAEEFEATENER
BHRER R E R RS HERREYH
TEREREEIELR
A 1.1 The Type of emissions and respective 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 58 and 59
emissions data
HeniE A MARRE B BUE 4.1 BIRIRBEZE 58259
A 1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 58 and 59
(in tonnes)
BERBAHNE (AN E) 4.1 RIEREZE 58559
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

RE dHE8RESR

wE

9 BXHMRE HERERREESIRS(H)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
B FRIE - B RER|EIEEI R

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
RIE MERERER PRt EF =P/
A 1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) The Group does not produce hazardous
(if appropriate) waste in the operation during the Year
PEARZEEDEE UETE)(WER) AFER AEERNELSP I RELBTER
)
A 1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 58 and 59
(in tonnes)
ELEEREEYHEE (AEAE) 4.1 BRIRRIER 58559
A 1.5 Description of measures to mitigate 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 58 and 59
emissions and results achieved
URE BE 2 B9 b PTG R 41 REREZE 58259
A 1.6 Description of how non-hazardous wastes 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 58 and 59
are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved
N EEREFERYNT L AEELE 4 1RERFETE 58259
B b S PTG R
A2 Use of Resources
BREH
General Disclosure 4.2 Smart Use of Resource
—MRHBEE 4.2 BRAIBEMR
A 2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 60 and 61
by type and intensity
REAREREEIONERR XEEER 42 BREEFER 601261
HFE
A 2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 60 and 61
BRKERZE 4.2 BIRABER 60161
A 2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 60 and 61
and result achieved
B R0 A e v 8 R FTIS R 4.2 BRAIEER 60561
A 2.4 Description of water efficiency initiatives 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 60 and 61
and result achieved
K B s At 8 R PTS AR 4.2 BRAIBER 601261
A 2.5 Total packaging material used for finished  The Group does not use packaging material 60 and 61
products, if applicable for finished products
X mABEREMENEE(nER) REBNEK I AREABEME 601261




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERKRSE

9

THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING

GUIDE

INDEX (CONTINUED)

9 BXHMRE HERERREESIRS(H)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
B FRIE - B RER|EIEEI R

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
RIE MERERER PRt EF =P/
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
RERAARER
General Disclosure 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 60 and 61
—MRIXEE 4.2 BRAIBER 605261
A 3.1 Description of the significant impacts of 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 60 and 61
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them
M EBEHHIRIRERAARERNEKR 42 BREEBEA 60561
CHEPOENEEEEYENTH
B. Social
e
B1 Employment
1EfE
B1 General Disclosure 5. Creating Values for Our People 61 to 63
— MR 5. RETRIEERA
The Group is not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations concerning its employment
practices.
REEW A NEEBERRBE R RETIE 61%63

B 1.1

B12

Total workforce by gender employment
type, age group and geographical region
MR EREE - FiRER Ktz 85
BEE B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

R FERRAER iR E D HEB MK
g o

BRREARRBER -

The Group is in process of refining its data
collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
REBEFEECEBRBRKE RS - N E5H &
RRIREEZE R

The Group is in process of refining its data
collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
REBEFEECEERBRKE RS - N EGH S
KA B ENR o
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

RIE HE8RE

A E

9 BXHMRE HERERREESIRS(H)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
B FRIE - B RER|EIEEI R

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
RIE MERERER PRt EF =P/
B2 Health and Safety
BRERZZR
B2 General Disclosure The Group has complied with all laws and 61 to 63
—ARIREE regulations relating to occupational health 61263
and safety.
REEDETEARERRRL 2B X
BIER -
B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalites ~ The Group is in process of refining its data
ETEBEEMITTAAZ KX collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
REEFEE(CEBIBIE RS - REEGE
RRBERZE R -
B 2.2 Lost days due to work injury The Group is in process of refining its data
ATGERTEAR collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
REBFEE(CHBIBRKE RS - NEEGHE
RARIREEZLE R o
B 2.3 Description of occupational health and 5. Creating Values for Our People 61 to 63
safety measures adopted 5 BB TAIEEE 61263
PR ER AR ) BB SR fE FR B 2 B R B
B3 Development and Training
BRRIEI
B3 General Disclosure 5. Creating Values for Our People 61 to 63
— MR 5. BB TRIEEE 61263
B3.1  Percentage of employees trained by The Group is in process of refining its data

B3.2

gender and employee category

BB REBENISNZIEREB D
5d

Average training hours completed

by employee by gender and
employee category
RUERIRIEBERIE D  FEESTK
A TR 8L

collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.

REBE FEECEBRBRKE RS - N EGH S
RRBERZE R -

The Group is in process of refining its data
collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
REBFAEE(CHBIBRKE RS - NEEGHE
RAIRFRZE R o
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

9 BXARE HERERREESIRS(H)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
B FRIE - B RER|EIEEI R

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
RIE MERERER PRt EF BR
B4 Labour Standard
ZIER
B4 General Disclosure 5. Creating Values for Our People 61 to 63
—MRIXEE 5 REIRIEER 6163
B4.1 Description of measures to review 5. Creating Values for Our People 61 to 63
employment practices to avoid child 5 BETARIEEE 61263
and forced labour
AR BB EANERABREET R
SRS T
B 4.2 Description of steps to eliminate such 5.Creating Value for Our People 61 to 63
practices
B R B BRSSP BRER B P B 5. BETAEEE 61263
B5 Supply Chain Management
HEEERE
B5 General Disclosure 6. Providing the Best to Our Customers 63 and 64
— R 6. REFRHKTHRES 63 %64
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical The Group is in process of refining its data
region collection system. The Group plans to
i &5 H R E R 2K B disclose the information in the future.
REBEEECHBBRKERS - NEEGH S
RRBERZE R
B5.2 Description of practices relating to 6. Providing the Best to Our Customers 63 and 64
snagging supplier, number of suppliers 6. A& F IR HERTHRE 63264
where the practices are being
implemented and monitored
BRI AR BN mERITR
ERBHENINMEEESA
B6 Product Responsibility
EmEE
B6 General Disclosure Group is not involved any incidents of 63 and 64
—MREE non-compliance with laws and regulations 63164

that have a significant impact on the
Group concerning product responsibility.
In cases where a complaint is received,
formal investigations are launched and
appropriate follow-up actions will be
taken.
AEEVTEESRETEUERBENERE
ERBHAEEBEERTENEMEM - 40
WEIHRER - BETERAS  WHEREEE
BYERMETTED o
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9 THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

RIE HE8RE

A E

9 BXARE HERERREESIRS(H)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
B FRIE - B RER|EIEEI R

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
RIE MERERER PRt EF BR
B6.2 Number of service related 6. Providing the best to our customers 63 and 64
complaints received and solutions 6. ARFIRMEHKITNIRS 63564
BEMN RSB E U RBBR T R
No complaint was received during the
reporting Year.
WEFE AW IR
B6.3 Description of practices relating to 6. Providing the best to our customers 63 and 64
observing and protecting intellectual 6. A% PR &ITH RS 63264
property rights
T B 4 B R AORPR AR E R VB 01
B6.4 Description of quality assurance 6. Providing the best to our customers 63 and 64
process and recall procedures 6. ARFPIRMHEHKITNRY 63564
B S E BIE R EmE K
B 6.5 Description of consumer data 6. Providing the best to our customers 63 and 64
protection and privacy policies, 6. A% FPRERITHNRSE 63564
implementation and monitoring
HIUH B E BRI RFLBECR - #1117 R
B
B7 Anti-Corruption
RES
B7 General Disclosure The Group is not aware of any material 61 to 63
—MREE non-compliance with any relevant laws 61263
and regulations.
REEW THAERERNETHBERERDN
1BES e
B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases During the reporting period, there was no
EEENERRGHE concluded legal case regarding corruption.
RmEHE TEEHRESHERENER
ESLE
B7.2 Description of preventive measures, 5. Creating Values for Our People 61 to 63
implementation and monitoring 5. BETRIEEE 61263
AP S A - T RER
B8 Community Investment
B8 General Disclosure 7. Community Outreach 64 and 65
— MR 7. AR 64 %65
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 7. Community Outreach 64 and 65
B ERE 7. R R 64 565
B8.2 Resources contributed 7. Community Outreach 64 and 65
e REIR 7. 1R AR 64565




Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBZBERFE

CHAIRLADY AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHAN Heung Ling (FRIA¥), aged 59, is one of the
founders of the Group. She became the Chairlady and
the NED on 4 July 2011. She is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. CHAN is mainly responsible
for the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group. She
has engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 20 years. She participated
in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings, and was
the deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011. Ms. CHAN is
the wife of Mr. Wong, and is the mother of Mr. WONG Lui,
one of the Executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (FAl£), aged 60, became the Deputy Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director on
4 July 2011. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. SHI is responsible for the management of
project plans, quality control, coordination with contractors,
and the management of the Company’s subsidiaries. He
joined Pan Hong Holdings in September 2002 and was an
executive director of Pan Hong Holdings from January 2006
to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC (R A R FHEMEIE T 2£:5) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an
assistant civil engineer at the construction technology
department of Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction
Company under the Ministry of Metallurgy (A& T 25
T =R ER AR IEITER) from 1982 to 1983. He
served as an engineer at the Changsha Design Institute
of the Ministry of Light Industry (& T % 28 & ) & &t b))
from 1983 to 1992, where he specialised in the structural
design of buildings. Mr. SHI subsequently joined Huilong
(Group) Ltd. of Huizhou City, Guangdong Province (EH&
EMTEEEEARAQA) in the PRC from 1992 to 1999
as the deputy general manager, responsible for real estate
development and technical construction management.
Between 1999 and 2002, he was the general manager of
3A Electronics Co., Ltd. (fTEBMN=BFEFER QA in
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. SHI is now a member of the Chinese People’s Poalitical
Consultative Conference of Donghu District of Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. He is also the standing
director of the Second Nanchang Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association.

WONG Lui ((£%), aged 35, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (F8E4LAE5E) and Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#EMNZEZFERT) in the PRC. He joined
Pan Hong Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to
the chairman of Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of JX Asia City
in 2008 and was mainly responsible for management of
construction works. He was also appointed as the general
manager of the Company’s subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan Hong
Kai Xuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Pan
Hong”, ¥R EEEF AR A E]), Hangzhou Ganglian
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (‘Hangzhou Ganglian”, #7/N7&5
AR A7) and Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited (“Hanyun
Incubator’, JT 78 )% B9 % {t 28 B BR 22 7)) in 2009, 2014
and 2015 respectively and was mainly responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and the daily management
of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou Ganglian and Hanyun
Incubator.

Mr. WONG is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province,
the PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG is the son of Ms. Chan and Mr. Wong.

GAO Lan (&), aged 52, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as
an Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a
member of the Nomination Committee.
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EEREREEBZBERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(IPAT 3 KE) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (F9& K2, in 1987 with a bachelor’s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was
certified as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as a class 2
constructor in 2003.

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate department of
Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development Co., Ltd.
FEMmMK LEMAEAFR AR) from 1987 to 1993. She
joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (&REIERIZ(HIE)
%) in 1993, acting as the director of the chief executive
officer’'s office, and as the deputy general manager of
Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. (B#F3R
T EMEMEARAT). Ms. GAO was the deputy general
manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable Investment
Consultant Co., Ltd. (E B & ETHERERZAER A
7)) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she was the
deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (8 S EH R B R 7). Afterwards, she joined
Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (LFas8/8E £ AR ETAR)
as the general manager from 2009 to 2010 before joining
the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (M), aged 53, became an INED on 4 July
2011. He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which period he was responsible
for the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA group.
From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’'s
degree in computer science in July 1988.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

LEE Man To (Z=#UH), aged 45, became an INED on 4
July 2011. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. LEE is an executive
director, the financial controller, qualified accountant and
company secretary of Combest Holdings Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8190). He is also currently an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee
and member of each of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of PacRay International Holdings
Limited (K& BB ERAF), a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1010)
with effect from 15 April 2018. Mr. LEE has over 22
years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance
including acting as accountant, compliance officer and
financial manager for various private companies. Mr. LEE
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1995. Mr. LEE is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

ZHANG Juan (5R18), aged 34, became an INED on
4 July 2011. She is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. She has been the legal
representative of Shanghai Jinfu Trading Company Limited
(BBREREARAR) since 2009, which is principally
engaged in the business of retail of jewellery and artworks
and accessories trading. Ms. ZHANG is responsible for
product design and product manufacturing and sales
process. She has also been a director of Shanghai Yunteng
Investment Management Limited (E/&EEREERGREA
7)) since 2010, which is principally engaged in the business
of financial investment management and consultancy.
Ms. ZHANG is in charge of the said company’s financial
regulatory matters, budget analysis, as well as overseeing
the said company’s internal controls. Ms. ZHANG graduated
from the Shanghai Ocean University (/88 % X&) (formerly
known as Shanghai Fisheries University (/87/KEAEY), in
the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in finance in 2005.
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EEREREEBZBERFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI Ming Yuan (Z 8§ Jt), aged 55, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in 2004 as deputy general manager of JX Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (IFEEEEEBRAA) in
the same vyear.

Mr. LI was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University (L 78 & 1 & 1% X £) in the PRC,
where he graduated in 1989 majoring in industrial and
civil construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (AEM MEIEMAERRAR]). Mr.
LI was certified as an engineer in 1997.

QIU Si Yuan (EB2UF), aged 58, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over
25 years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (1
HETERDTRARAR) (formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (¥ T2
ERDEET) from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd.
(Hm AR IZEERET AR AT as the deputy head of the
institute and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong
Holdings thereafter. Mr. QIU was registered as a certified
class 2 architect in 1997.

LIU Lin Yu (8/8%E), aged 66, is the Group’s director of
project expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Holdings in 2000,
and had been responsible for costs management of the
development projects of Pan Hong Holdings. Since joining
Pan Hong Holdings, he has served as the deputy general
manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real Estate Co. Ltd. ({&f57%
EEEARRAF) and on-site engineer of Huzhou Liyang
Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. (51 EEF5
EHEFIZ AR A 7). He had also served as the budget
forecast manager and the deputy general manager of JX
Asia City.

EREERE

ZHAL 6558 mAKEMEEEAE - WN_FTTNF
MAONE R - FEAET P8 MBI AR AR T2 « BRI E
“ERAF R RAFERERIASKEREGRA
Al BB AETE -

EEER—N \NFEERTBTIAEEERAS £&
TEHERARE -R—N/\NEE—NNAFHE B
REEMMRIEREERARETLEERNEER £
ERBRE - EIER ZEER WAL FERT A
T #2AM -

BRIR - 6855 RAKERERTAE -BEER_FF
NEMANBIERL - EERBIRTRE -

BAERERETERB _THF BER-NANZFE
—MANAEFERTPERIERDTRER AR (FIEET
EHEDRAR) - R—NANEFE-ZZT/\FHRHE  B5E
HRRRIABAREERTERARETRREERE
JE R EERM - RBER INAONB IR - BE AR — NN F
R AR MEEERD -

BBE 66 SAKEIREBRE - BN _TTTF
MAONEZR - BENBERFAEERR ZKAER - BN
NRBZRE  R-BEREBGREFRMERR A RER
2 ORI ERSEER BB R QR T TR - {5
BETIAEMRTEETRRIE IR FRE B LIS




Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LIU was certified as an assistant engineer by
Chaozhou City Science and Technology Committee (8
MHRIZBRMZE B ) in the PRC in 1989. He graduated
from an intermediate level professional civil engineering
correspondence learning course (F 5 T REZE T2 &
¥ K &% ¥I) from the Sichuan International Technical and
Economic Management Training Centre (79)|| B[R iy B2 4%
BB AEEHIF L) in the PRC in 1990. In 1991, he was
qualified as a budget forecaster and worked for Chaozhou
City Qiao Dong Construction Company (&1 g 2 A 7).
The said qualification was granted by Guangdong Province
Construction Standard Authority (5 & 2 2812 4 F 58 48 ufh)
in the PRC.

CHAN Chun Kit (BREE#), aged 38, has been the Group’s
financial controller, the Company Secretary and one of
the authorized representatives of the Company under the
Listing Rules since 31 July 2015.

Mr. CHAN joined Pan Hong Holdings in 2008 as the
financial controller and company secretary and had been
responsible for the finance and accounting functions of
Pan Hong Holdings. He was also responsible for statutory
compliance, corporate governance and coordination with
the stakeholders of Pan Hong Holdings. Mr. CHAN was
appointed as an executive director of Pan Hong Holdings
in 2011 until 31 July 2015.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. CHAN was an
auditor with an international public accounting firm. Mr.
CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy.
He is also a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
England and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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IBDO

% - +852 2218 8828
55 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8828
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 85 to 189, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to notes 3.7, 4.1 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale of RMB134,082,000 for the year ended 31
March 2018. Revenue from sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties held for sale to
the customers, which is dependent on the contractual
arrangements for the sale and the laws in the relevant
jurisdiction and may require management judgement.

Our response

QOur procedures in relation to the management’s recognition
of revenue included:

- Assessing the management’s control over the point of
time at which revenue from sales of properties held
for sale is recognised by obtaining an understanding
of the management’s control process and testing the
control on a sample basis; and

- Reviewing the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis, and obtaining
evidence regarding the completion and the delivery of
properties, on a sample basis, including completion
certificates and delivery notices, to assess whether
the criteria for revenue recognition set out in note 3.7
to the consolidated financial statements have been
met.
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B B

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.13, 3.14, 4.1, 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and together represent the largest
category of assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position at RMB1,908,201,000 as at 31 March
2018.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and their
net realisable values.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs to
complete their projects.

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s net
realisable value assessment included:

- Assessing the calculations of net realisable values of
properties held for sale and properties held under
development, and challenging the reasonableness
and consistency of the assumptions used by
management;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

- Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.
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VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.9, 4.1 and 14 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located
in the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 16% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2018.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to
be used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions
to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied in deriving at the capitalisation,
discount and terminal yield rates i.e. a small change in the
assumptions can have a significant impact to the valuation.

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

- Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s 2018 annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

B B

BB B ETREMBHRREABE Z2EE(H)

BRRFESKFHORE  ETRBR(EEEE
ANETHERET AEX - ERERBULFERBREHER -
A AR BRI AT A BXFF SR AR 5l i - MR A ETAHEMIEE
K E AR A BE R B AR A M IS R (6 R B KRR I I R
FTEH DR TE - R B REEVSE SRR AL RT AR E K

ERB(EBETEIDETETEEST RAERTE
EHE - REF T BEBEAEE - I

o BN EANKEFRBERMERES M BEHRERT
HEEAHERBR R R - R RTTEIZF AR
LR - AREEGE R MEE WENRE (S
BAERNER - AR REFA e MR R BE &
BER EREUL - g0 BR ARSI Z £ BibR
BE T IR I BKRF M B B A R B 0 B e m AR
AE 3R A SA SR T G B B A SE AR BRA RO R

TRRERTHBOAIES URFTEENEE
FFrEBmMI3EY BEREABEHNEREER
2R

o HEEZTRAEHABENREUERIEL S A
MAERA R R A IR -

s HEERARKELLSTEARNREMFELERR
RIEMERNENERE BERLFEREERAE
MERNBEBATHEEN KMA SNy H%HE
MFFECERNELERRE - WRUMBA/EFE
BEATHEN AV EESBEMBEPIRFER
FABGAMBRTNEBRE REGENKE
T AIRMEERRIFEREER - RANGERZ
ENZBEN RS B ILPTEISETRE A KK
EREFIERATERER BERETRSELE -
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B B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 15 June 2018

BB B ET R MBHRREAE Z2EE(H)

o  EGAMBHRNEBIBIN EBNAT B2

ERE URGAMBBRERS $ﬁ&%x%ﬂ$
TH o

e Bt ERBERNERIEBLEINUBESEDRT
ROBEENRIER WEHSAMBHRRELRE
Ro-BMAE BESEZANIM - BBEMHRT K
MRETERARERHEE-

FREMEEIN RMEBEEZLZBE QBB THINENER
B BER EAEFERSE  ERMAEEHE
BB 2 I O (E T B AR B

BfERECZESRIEBH  FARMENSBREL
MR EBEXBRER  TRMFIERE A B R
RETERMBIMENMERENEMSER  AREER
BB - ARV e HE it o

feEBEREBOERT  HIIREEWL RGN ERA R
BHREROETRAER AMBEKERETFE - RME
RHEREFHAGELER  BRIDERERTAFRFH
BELFHE ERELNERT  MRAEBEHER
MmEPARRERERNNBEHRRBBELN RN
@ RIFPRE T EAERS T ABZEE

BRUGEREEHOEBRERAR
HE B AN

IR
IR IEP05412

78 - \FXA+THA




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZHWERE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

bEzS AR®T R ARETTT

Revenue WA 6 134,082 693,512
Cost of sales FHER A (89,321) (5659,414)
Gross profit ER 44,761 134,008
Other income and other gains and losses  E-fth I A A Rz E ez K &8 6 62,996 53,929
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (10,776) (17,920)
Administrative expenses EEEMA (48,750) (40,341)
Operating profit B ERF 48,231 129,766
Finance costs 3= I 7 (5,113) (5,888)
Share of results of joint ventures JERA B DERE (501) (500)
Share of result of an associate FEARES & A R AR (1,315) (414)
Profit before income tax FRETIEBLADEF] 8 41,302 122,964
Income tax expense FiSfif = 9 (40,114) (49,290)
Profit for the year FRER 1,188 73,674
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 Uk (HRBIE)
(net of tax)
ltem that may be reclassified HESeEH s BEBH2EE

subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEBRY SRR ZEN =58

financial statements of foreign operations 13,512 (566)
Other comprehensive income FRHMEERE

for the year 13,512 (566)
Total comprehensive income FREHEWFHETE

for the year 14,700 73,108

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LA T A £ (G ERER,(EE):

Owners of the Company ViN/NCIET P SN 4,883 52,364
Non-controlling interests IR A (3,695) 21,310

1,188 73,674




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-Z— \F=A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BifeE ARBTT ARETT
Total comprehensive income RDTATELEZEREELE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRRHERA 18,395 51,798
Non-controlling interests FEFER R (3,695) 21,310
14,700 73,108
Earnings per share for profit FREATREAELERZER
attributable to the owners of the BR(ARED)
Company during the year (in RMB
cents)
- Basic and diluted - ERR#EE 11 0.20 2.13




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BRI R

Asat 31 March 2018 W-Z—N\E=HF=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

bEzS AR®T R ARETTT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 13 67,697 56,163
Investment properties KEME 14 552,984 536,754
Intangibles B EE 15 11,400 -
Interests in joint ventures RESDE RS 17 184,265 184,764
Interest in an associate REFE R R 2w 18 4,358 5,673
Other financial assets Hiv e Rh&E 19 28,357 8,627
Financial assets at fair value through profit 1Z A ERIBZHEY S REE
or loss 20 7,690 7,070
Pledged deposits [REERCEEE=N 26 5,500 5,500
Deferred tax assets BERIBE E 29 11,514 12,658
873,765 817,209
Current assets REBEE
Properties held under development Ry 21 1,664,440 1,379,470
Properties held for sale FEME 22 243,761 360,016
Accounts receivable FE U BR SR 23 321 1,524
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE I E A FE W R IA 24 268,271 106,664
Tax recoverable AR EFIE 17,557 20,813
Structured bank balances EREIEIRITER 25 - 1,500
Pledged deposits BT 26 224,882 216,058
Cash and bank balances e RIRITERR 26 222,147 264,392
2,641,379 2,350,437
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable FERBRRX 27 52,115 79,897
Accruals, receipts in advance and other  JEEHZRIE - T8 UK 3R IE 12 E b JE (< 3K
payables 15 27 510,689 466,773
Current tax liabilities BNERRi B B tE 123,565 110,863
Bank loans RITER 28 458,884 228,258
1,145,253 885,791
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,496,126 1,464,646

Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 2,369,891 2,281,855




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBARRE

As at 31 March 2018 W-Z—N\E=F=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE ARETT ARBFT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 28 684,167 604,565
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 29 83,618 80,036
767,785 684,601
Net assets FEE 1,602,106 1,597,254
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the Company’s 22 Bl#H AL
owners
Share capital A&z 30 20,735 20,735
Reserves B 31 1,345,606 1,349,059
1,366,341 1,369,794
Non-controlling interests By 235,765 227,460
Total equity R 1,602,106 1,597,254
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
BRIEES va)ld
Director Director
EF EE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

AATREAEGRR
Non-
Share  Statutory  Exchange Retained controlling
Share capital  premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests  Total equity

ks BOEE  iERE  EXRE  gRER & FERER  ERAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 31())  (Note 31(i)
(Wtsnp)  (Wsi)

At 1 April 2016 RZE-FNA-H 10,193 575,754 70,386 1,636 660,027 1,317,996 205,750 1,523,746
Transaction with onners HEEAIRS

Capital contribution to a subsidary ~ FINEBARTE - - - - - - 400 400
Proft for the year ERgh - - - - 52,364 52,364 21310 73674

Exchange differences on tansiation &S5 ER HER 2B
of financial stetements of foreign 2%
operations - - - (566) - (566) - (566)

Total comprehensive income FRZEYREE

for the year - - - (566) 52,364 51,798 21,310 73,108
Issuance of bonus shares Bk 10,542 (10542 - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory resnes ERTTEE - - 5846 - (5,846) - - -
At 31 March 2017 RZS—+E=A=1-H 20,735 565,212 76,232 1,070 706,545 1,369,794 227 460 1,597,254
At 1 Aprl 2017 RZE-+ENA-H 20,735 565,212 76,232 1,070 706,545 1,369,794 227,460 1,597,254
Transaction with onners BREEANIXS
Capital contrbution by non-controling 3EFRiER T A

interests - - - - - - 12,000 12,000
Proft for the year EREN - - - - 4,883 4,883 (3,695) 1,188

Exchange difierences on translation £ E AN EBHERR 2 ER
of finenciel statements of foreign ~~ Z%
operations - - - 13,512 - 13,512 - 13,512

Total comprehensive income FR2ENmEE

for the year - - - 13,512 4,883 18,395 (3,695) 14,700
Dividend paid to owners of the R AATEAAZRE

Company - - - - (21,848) (21,848) - (21,848
Transfer to statutory resenves EREETEE - - 1,260 - (1,260) - - -
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=fA=1-R 20,735 565,212 71492 14,582 688,320 1,366,341 235,765 1,602,106

* The aggregate amount of these balances of - ZEREBEHERARIE1,345,606,0007T (ZZE—+F - AR
RMB1,345,606,000 (2017: RMB1,349,059,000) in surplus is #1,349,059,0007T )5t A5 & IR R 2 2 (AT
included as reserves in the consolidated statement of
financial position.




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-Z— \F=A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE ARBTT AREFTT
Cash flows from operating activites E&ZBHFELBRESRE
Profit before income tax R PSR 7 41,302 122,964
Adjustments for: R THBEEELFAXR
Interest income F 2 A 6 (9,200) (4,956)
Interest expense FERX 7 5,113 5,888
Amortisation of intangibles B EEH 8 600 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME R REEBITE
equipment 8 2,855 3,053
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEWE  HE L& E 2 EBE
equipment 8 91 -
Impairment loss on other financial assets ~ H {4 & & & 2 FiE E5 18 8 360 -
Share of result of an associate JEREG & R R EE 1,315 414
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEEEEE 501 500
Net fair value gain on financial assets at AR BERIERVEZ SREE 2
fair value through profit or loss DABERZFERE 6 (620) (2,292)
Net fair value gain on investment WEMEZ AR EWRZEFEE
properties 6 (14,327) (30,542)
Operating profit before working capital EEESEEA 2 KERT
changes 27,990 95,029
(Increase)/decrease in properties held FEhyEREFEMEGEM),
under development and properties held kA
for sale (98,840) 364,651
Decrease in accounts receivable P g BR SO 1,203 1,133
Increase in prepayments and other FEA FRIE K E At R U R TE 3 0
receivables (175,932) (1,581)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable  FEHEEER (R4 ), /10 (27,782) 31,088
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, receipts in & 5T 7X T8 ~ T8 Y X TE N H fih JE
advance and other payables g, Crd) 45,537 (347,8406)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations  #& & EE)(FTH ), FTiSR & (227,824) 142,474
Interest received EFIE 9,200 4,956
Income tax paid ERFTSE (19,430) (47,691)
Net cash (used in)/generated from LT EN (BT ) s F5E
operating activities (238,054) 99,739




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

bEzS AR®T R ARETTT

Cash flows from investing activites REFEHFIELRESRE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment B & Y12 - &= K& 54 (14,773) (695)
Proceed from disposal of property, plant  HEWE = KRGS HIE

and equipment 5 -
Purchase of other financial assets BEHEMSREE (21,890) (8,627)
Proceed from disposal of other financial & H fh & & & PS5 20E

assets 1,800 -
Decrease/(increase) in structured bank HERMIRTTESRR D (g m)

balances 1,500 (1,500)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits  BEIBF R (12h0), /A (8,824) 89,402
Advance to a joint venture MG & PERAR 2 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZE(FH) FELHLFHE

investing activities (42,184) 78,580

Cash flows from financing activites FEEEFELRESRE

Dividend paid to owners of the Company B AR F#EA AR E (21,848) -
Capital contribution from non-controling  FE¥Z & EZS MM B A BT &

interests to a subsidiary - 400
Proceeds from new borrowings e ETERIA 571,604 398,918
Repayments of borrowings BAEBFTRR S FR (249,287) (381,296)
Interest paid EfFIE (62,055) (51,886)
Net cash generated from/(used in) B EE AR (BT ) B FaE

financing activities 238,414 (33,864)

Net (decrease)/increase in cashand BRERBEEEYWOR D), &M
cash equivalents FE (41,824) 144,455

Effect of foreign exchange rates, net MER 7 g/ 25 (421) an

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HE & LKIEESZEM
of the year 264,392 119,526

Cash and cash equivalents at end of FEXREERBESEEY
the year 26 222,147 264,392




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 5 January 2011 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is located at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom
Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. Prior to the completion of the
proposed distribution by Pan Hong Holdings Group
Limited (“Pan Hong Holdings”) announced on 25
August 2017 (“Proposed Distribution”), Extra Good
Enterprises Limited (“Extra Good”) (a company
owned as to 48% and 52% equity interest by Ms.
Chan Heung Ling (“Ms. Chan”) and Mr. Wong Lam
Ping (“Mr. Wong") respectively), Mr. Wong and Ms.
Chan were indirectly, through Pan Hong Holdings,
interested in approximately 73.05% in the issued
share capital of the Company and, together with Pan
Hong Holdings, were the controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Immediately following the completion of the Proposed
Distribution, Pan Hong Holdings ceased to be a
controlling shareholder of the Company and Extra
Good, Ms. Chan and Mr. Wong have received a total
of 1,153,103,153 shares from Pan Hong Holdings,
representing 46.80% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report,
and remain as the controlling shareholders of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages
85 to 189 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”) which collectively includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2018 were approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 15
June 2018.

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for its financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 April 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Annual Improvement to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to the
cash flow statement, note 38(a). Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group
has not disclosed comparative information for the
prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in
note 38(a), the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of
fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify that
the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other than
the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity’s interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has
no impact on these financial statements as the latter
treatment is consistent with the manner in which the
Group has previously dealt with disclosures relating to
its interests in other entities classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS
5.

The following new and amended HKFRSs which are
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group:

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications of
HKFRS 15)'

Amendment to HKFRS 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities (Continued)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendment to HKAS 40

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Leases’

Insurance Contracts®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty Over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28!

Amendments to:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKAS 12 Income Taxes?
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

4 The amendments were originally intended to be

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments of the
amendments continues to be permitted.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification
and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes
the classification of the transaction from cash-settled
to equity-settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change
in fair value attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group has commenced its preliminary
assessment of the classification and measurement of
its financial assets and financial liabilities, and does
not expect any significant changes to the classification
and measurement of its financial assets and liabilities
currently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss upon adoption of the standard.

The Group currently accounts for its investments in
unlisted equity securities at cost less impairment,
if any, as disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements. On the adoption of HKFRS 9, the
Group will be required to measure such investments
in unlisted equity securities at fair value, with the
difference between the previous carrying value and
the fair value recognised in the opening balance of
retained earnings.

No financial liabilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, therefore the Group also do not
expect the adoption of the standard would result in
any impact to the Group.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 introduces a new forward-looking
impairment model based on expected credit losses
to replace the incurred loss model in HKAS 39.
This determines the recognition of impairment
provisions as well as interest revenue. For financial
assets at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group will now always
recognise (at a minimum) 12 months of expected
losses in profit or loss. Lifetime expected losses
will be recognised on these assets when there is a
significant increase in credit risk after initial recognition.

The new impairment requirements are expected to
result in changes to and likely increases in impairment
loss allowances on accounts receivables and other
receivables, due to earlier recognition of credit losses.
The Group expects to adopt the simplified model for
its accounts receivables and will record an allowance
for lifetime expected losses from initial recognition. For
other receivables, the Group will initially provide for 12
months expected losses under the three-stage model.
The Group is still in the process of determining how it
will estimate expected credit losses and the sources
of forward-looking data.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment (Continued)

The Group plans to adopt the standard in the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2018 and will
include additional disclosures in its financial statements
for that financial year. The Group is still assessing the
transition choices available.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Save as discussed above, other than HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15, all new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations issued but not effective
are not likely to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Currently, sales of properties is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the properties are transferred to the purchasers,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the properties,
that is when the construction of the relevant
properties has been completed and the properties
have been delivered to the buyers pursuant to the
sale agreements, and the collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, revenue from the
sale of properties will be recognised when control
over the properties is transferred to the purchasers.
Judgement will be required to assess whether control
transfers over time or at a point of time. Properties
that have no alternative use to the Group due to
contractual restriction and when the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group will
recognise revenue as the performance obligations are
satisfied over time by applying an input method for
measuring progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group has assessed that the sale agreements
used by the Group are standardised in a large
extent and in the case of precompletion sales using
standard agreements for sale and purchase, the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date in accordance
with HKFRS 15, and accordingly, the criteria for
recognising revenue over time are not met for the
majority of the sales of properties. The Group expects
to recognise majority of the sale of properties until
the point in time at which the Group delivers the
properties to the purchasers. The Group does not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing of revenue recognised
in the respective periods.

The Group pays commission to the sales agents
when agreement for sale and purchase is signed with
property buyer. Following the adoption of HKFRS 15,
incremental costs of obtaining a contract, including
sales commission, if recoverable, are capitalised as
an asset and shall be amortised on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the transfer of the
related property to the customer. Currently, the Group
expensed off the sales commission associated with
obtaining agreement for sale and purchase with
property buyer. Accordingly, the Group expects the
recognition of an asset would result in an increase of
opening retained profits as at 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction
price for the time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing component, regardless
of whether the payments from customers are received
significantly in advance or in arrears.

In assessing whether advance payments include
a significant financing component, the Group has
considered the difference between the length of time
between the payment date and the date when the
customers obtain control of the properties based
on the typical arrangements entered into with the
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
customers (Continued)

Where advance payment includes a significant
financing component, the transaction price will
need to be adjusted to separately account for this
component. Such adjustment will result in interest
expense being recognised to reflect the effect of the
financing benefit obtained from the customers during
the period between the payment date and the date
when the customers obtain control of the properties
with a corresponding increase to revenue on sale of
properties recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer. However, the
actual extent of impact of this new accounting policy
will also depend on whether and by how much such
interest expense can be capitalised as part of the
cost of the properties under HKAS 23, Borrowing
costs. If the interest expense is to be capitalised until
the construction work is completed, then this new
accounting policy will not have a material impact on
the Group’s net profits during the construction period
and gross profit from the sales of properties. The
Group is in the process of assessing the implication
of the significant financing component identified from
the property sales on its capitalisation policy.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether
it will choose to take advantage of the practical
expedients available and which transition approach
and reliefs will be adopted. Upon adoption of HKFRS
16, certain amounts included therein may need to
be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets
and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but
not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-
value assets and short term leases, other practical
expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases
entered into before the date of adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property —
Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will
occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to
support a transfer.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an
exchange rate to use for transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The
entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, then the entity should measure current
and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty
in the determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, removing transition provision exemptions
relating to accounting periods that had already
passed and were therefore no longer applicable.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a
Venture Capital organisation’s permissible election to
measure its associates or joint ventures at fair value is
made separately for each associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss which are stated
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’ 000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgment of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (note 3.3) made
up to 31 March each year.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEAEEREBEHE)

TEEABERBEER)

combination (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition
date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —_Z— N\F=A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. ESTEBERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEAEEREBEHE)

combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

R T TR I RS ARE T IREE R
Mz RAEER - HRERE 2 HEENRHE
RERFER(REAKEBSRET12EA)
WA AR B2 AR B2 AR
TREERER - NEREEXRABZRARE
Z A A E R BN B P iR -

AEERMB AR 2 R BB INL T EEHK
KRG AR BEER S  ARE#D
FOFfER s 2 BREES TIARE  URBRE
FEERMBARZ D 228 - KRABRIFE
BiEm e REMMNEMEREARBEZEFE
BOHEEREDZTER YRBRAARESR
Ao

BARKEKREWNE A BIE B - HEMREL
ENREBRATME 2 Z58  (IBRREZ
R EEEFARERED AR EZ B R()%
MEBARZEE(BREE) B BERIMHE
ERER BEREE - WEBEEXAEBD

HE - BIDAE 7O EL ) 2 0 Wi e 2 B Y JB8 X )
BRAZ & BAPTRE 2R AR

RUBER - SEE R st (RN B 2 A 2 3R B
FRAtEME S ) 2 BREE R 1) 5 MR % F 48
B EE AINFEER S EIG 2 LRSS
B 2HWEAERBNIFERER - BIE
S & B R hIR A A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # & —-%

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates decisions
of except that losses in excess of the Group’s
interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The

investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4

3.5

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost
less impairment losses, if any. The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable
during the year.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities
of the arrangement to the group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under
the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

- Joint ventures: where the Group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

- Joint operations: where the Group has
both the rights to assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

Joint arrangements (Continued)

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

- The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in
the joint ventures’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interest in joint
operations by recognising its share of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance
with its contractually conferred rights and
obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —_Z— N\F=A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6 Foreign currency translation 3.6 IhE@mE
The consolidated financial statements are EAMBREUARKEZE W AREIR AR
presented in RMB, which is also the functional NAZNREEH -

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of REEEERE 2 ERIBISREAR  INERR %@'ﬁﬁ
the consolidated entities, foreign currency MR GHBIIZIERBELEREEE ZINEE
transactions are translated into the functional Mo PRiREHER LA&I\’#%DHEZEMQE&Q
currency of the individual entity using the BEURZ BB BITIMNEERBRE - AL EZ
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the Ex%&##&iﬁ%ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁgéﬁﬁﬁﬁ
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary i B A 2 PE VU e K S IR R 1B 2 iR o

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that RAREYIERBAINESIE 7 FFEEEIE R TYiR
are denominated in foreign currencies are ETAREERBRTEREFHRE TERA
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date NREWESEIE 2 — &5 o LAINERE B pk AR
when the fair value was determined and are HECEEBEETNTFEHBRE -

reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, RIFBMERERT BEAGRIRAEEZYE
all individual financial statements of foreign w2 B2 8| 2 BINERE 2 BT BRI B SRR
operations, originally presented in a currency ERBAARE EENBENLZBRERA .
different from the Group’s presentation currency, WaglE R E A AR - WA REZ THER 5
have been converted into RMB. Assets and H 2 877 & = ok fisf (EE = 0 8 K 0R R &) - Bl AR
liabilites have been translated into RMB at the LHEZ FHEREBAARK BB EL 2
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and EH%EEEE’\\H\WQEW S FERRND P HE 2 I 2
expenses have been converted into RMB at HREBRDRIZRET -

the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such B HERINEKRE  GRAE R%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁni%ﬁ
exchange differences are reclassified from equity S ARBRRIEATYERETEERZ —H

to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on

disposal.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of properties, rendering of services and the use
by others of the Group’s assets vyielding interest
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers.
Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of
the legal title or the passing of possession to
the buyer or a completion certificate by the
relevant government authorities, whichever is
the later. Deposits and instalments received
from customers prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in current liabilities as
receipts in advance.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease terms.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvement 25.0%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the financial statements until they
are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or
disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair value,
any difference between fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property
are classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.11

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or cash generating unit.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Leases (Continued) 3.11 HE(HE)

Leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets remain within
the lessor are accounted for as operating lease.
Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold interests in land are up-front
payments to acquire the land use right. The
payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

For leasehold interest in land included in
properties held under development and
properties held for sale, the amortisation of
prepaid land lease is capitalised as part of the
building costs during the development period
but charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for completed properties.
Other amortisation of prepaid land lease is
expensed.

Certain properties leased out under operating
leases are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as investment
properties. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line-basis
over the lease term. The recognition of rental
income is set out in note 3.7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.12 Financial assets 3.12 SREE

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets are set out below.

- Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

- Financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables

- Financial assets are classified as available-
for-sales financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date. All financial assets are
recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of financial assets not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
receivables/investments expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss includes financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # & —-%

3.

—NF=ZA=+—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

0}

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

The Group has designated contingent
consideration arising from acquisition
of associate as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category
are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

At each reporting date, loans and

receivables are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

3.12 SREE(HE)
(i) EBFNRERKRNE)

(i) Loans and receivables (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes
observable data that come to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the
debtor; a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

(b) it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

(c) significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtors; and

(d) a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its costs.

Loss events in respect of a group of
financial assets include observable data
indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and,
national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which
the impairment occurs. In relation to
accounts and notes receivables, a
provision for impairment is made when
there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of
the amounts due under the original terms
of the invoice. Except for accounts and
other receivables, the carrying amount of
loans and receivables is directly reduced
by any identified amount of impairment.
The carrying amount of account and
other receivables is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any
part of account and other receivables is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —_Z— N\F=A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

EEREME )

3.12 SREE(HE)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (i) AHRHELHEE
These assets are non-derivative financial ZEAERETERAIHEEXTEENRE
assets that are designated as available- M EERRNERRNETETBHE

for-sale or are not included in other
categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses.

Where a decline in the fair value
constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-
sale debt investments are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment
that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13

3.14

Properties held under development

Properties held under development which are
held for future sale are included in current
assets and comprise land held under operating
lease (note 3.11) and aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages,
and other expenses (“development costs”).
Properties held under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Other expenses included (a) those costs that
are incurred in bringing the properties held
under development to their present location and
condition; and (b) a systematic allocation of fixed
overheads that are incurred on development of
properties. Fixed overheads are indirect costs
which remain relatively constant regardless of
the size or volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes 3.15 FisBiz st RE
Income tax for the year comprises current tax FERNFEHR ISR IE RIEEFIE -

and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities ENEAAEHEER, SHAaBEaEE guaER
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, 2 HA 1 FE 1m) B BUM A S A< sl R T AR SR 5 B
fiscal authorities relating to the current or WA 2 B EKRE - THiR R H G 780 B H
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the Mz BRAMELBEEN RBAFE 2 ER
reporting date. They are calculated according FaMtE AR EEERBE I ZF
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the PIBREER ARIER Y — 35

fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as
a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability EIEFRIEG A RS B SRR N EERBIE
method on temporary differences at the ZEABEEEESANERCERERE K8
reporting date between the carrying amounts of BEETE - — T A ERR TR =R AR
assets and liabilities in the financial statements R TBEE B IBEEE ST A o &
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax FFER - O AETHIEERE R E A KRB B IER
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable R EEBERTEN(BEREERD
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets kA )R] AR INEE R ERE K
are recognised for all deductible temporary BREEE N RS EHRER R -

differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not W ¥ 2F R (EBE HBRIN) TR B BRIk
recognised if the temporary difference arises RN BB IR GV EERBEBES TR
from initial recognition (other than in a business EZ8 AT THRAECHBEEERAE-

combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable FEERBAGERENBARRBE AR ZIRE
temporary differences arising on investments EAZERFERZEER  EAREE A
in subsidiaries and associates, except where TR ER BN EREEA R TER A R
the Group is able to control the reversal of the TRFEE B BIBR b

temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

TEEABERBEER)

3.15 FiEH 2 a5t EE ()

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income or directly to
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@ the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

(o)  current tax assets and current tax liabilities
are presented in net; and

(c) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

EEFBATE  REMERARTERESK

B E R HETARE B HE EERARE
W52 B A -

HRG2ELH B ERERETEATEY
—RHAEMS A EGIIMER AR EME
RBBEFEGTEAFI0R [ REYE MR
RAEIIR - BRIFZBRERER TR FR
EMEZEREBRBSRR/NHENRFRENE
RATERZ X RERRE AR ZREER
B WEREVMERUTELRAXERARTE
MR R 2 B 8 7%BE & s B A OB FERX
MR PTEEIR 2 B BD 0 N & (T I FF 58 48
&) B - B BRE R R -

FAEBUR AR TR 2 RN AR o
HEL Kot 2 T s o L AMERS TR St A
ZIEA AW AR o 2B RS EE RS
B -

AHHBEEERRAHHRARBESRATER
PUFEEZ S -

(@) ARBEFEABIBITEAAGD R
TREEEH

b) AHMHBEEEMAHRHAEBELNFEZ
5 R

© HENFEEEREARANEREAER

== (==
wHEaE-.

i




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

3.16

3.17

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(o) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, less pledged deposits.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issuance of shares over the par value.
Any transaction costs associated with the
issuance of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18 Retirement benefit costs and short-term

TEEABERBEER)

3.18 RUKBA AR EHEEEF

employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which
is available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the
Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the Scheme
are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —_Z— N\F=A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEBERBEGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial liabilities 3.19 £REAaE

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
and other payables and bank loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policy on borrowing costs (note 3.22).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in respective carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Bank loans
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
loans using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Accounts payables and other payables

Accounts payables and other payables are
recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

3.21

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured
at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of
the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above
and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within accounts
and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20

3.22

3.23

3.24

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

In addition, provisions are recognised if and
when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation,
where appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are completed.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability
when they are approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements.
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared and consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.25. Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

U}

(ii)

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date
of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives as follows.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Copyright 15 years

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are
tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts (see note 3.10).

If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.26 Related parties

@)

(b)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

Key management personnel are those
persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing, and controlling the
activities of the Group or the Company,
directly or indirectly, including any directors
(whether executive or otherwise) of the
Group or the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE_—_Z— N\E=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.26 Related parties (Continued) 3.26 BAES (&)
(0)  (Continued) ) (&)
(v)  The entity is a post-employment (v) ZERATSENHEANEEGHEE
benefit plan for the benefit of the B AR B FZE L BRET
employees of the Group or an entity BER

related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly (Vi) FZEEBEF(a)THAI AT
controlled by a person identified in (a). 7ol o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has (i) RE@OFFRBIATHZERESEA
significant influence over the entity HENSB Zﬁ HEEA - PAS:
or is a member of key management NENZEFEEEEKE -

personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii) the entity, or any member of a (vii) ZEBXIEMBEE ZARKER
group of which it is a part, provides AlMASEES A EEG AR RHEE
key management personnel services EEBABRK -
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person —BATZERBB A EHNETE

are those family members who may be BETRINBEEZAALTHZZS

expected to influence, or be influenced by, ANTHEZZERKEKE  WBIE:

that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or ) ZBALZFEREBHKRE :
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or (i) HmBALTZEBIRBZFH: &
domestic partner; and

(il dependents of that person or (i) ZBAALTHZBALTZRBHRE
that person’s spouse or domestic ZRBAN

partner.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.27 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties and
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties of the Group were
stated at fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy. The fair value of the
investment properties is determined by a firm
of independently qualified professional surveyors
and the fair value of investment properties as
at the reporting dates and properties held for
sale upon transfer to investment properties are
set out in notes 14 and 22 respectively. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of accounts and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the
collectability of accounts and other receivables.
This estimate is based on the credit history of
its customers or counterparties and the current
market condition. Management reassesses the
impairment loss at the reporting date.

Net realisable value of properties held
for sale and properties held under
development

Management determines the net realisable value
of properties held for sale and properties held
under development by using prevailing market
data such as most recent sale transactions
and valuation of the projects in its existing
partially completed state of construction taking
into account cost of work done, and cost
to completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Net realisable value of properties held
for sale and properties held under
development (Continued)

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of
new property sales, marketing costs (including
price discounts required to stimulate sales) and
the expected costs of completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s properties held under development and
properties held for sale as at 31 March 2018
were approximately RMB1,664,440,000 (2017:
RMB1,379,470,000) and RMB243,761,000
(2017: RMB360,016,000) respectively.

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale
of properties held for sale during the year as
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.
The assessment of when an entity has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyer requires examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases,
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or
the passing of possession to the buyer or a
completion certificate is issued by the relevant
government authorities. The Group believes that
its recognition basis of sales as set out in note 3.7
is appropriate and is the current practice in the
PRC.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision
of taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. Where the final tax outcome
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in
periods in which such determination are made.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # & —%

4.

e MR R M

—N\F=ZA=+—RLFE

REFHEET 5 (8)

4.1

BAREF T RER ()

FEYWFERAZRFYRZ T2 L FE(E)

WS HEELXERI B 2T HHEERS
MEHEER HEBR(BEREMGEERT
BINBREATKMECER EEREE
ZRBELA R —MTN  HIEEEEEL HE - A
SEEREPMERSEMER=_T—/\F=A
—t+tT—HEHEEEIANOAARE
1,664,440,0000( — & — £ F: AR K
1,379,470,0007t ) & A R #243,761,0007TC
(ZZ—+%F : AR#360,016,0007T)°

WA TR

MM MK O EE - AEEE#R
NHERENE WA - EHEERKEEE
ZEARRMEREREE S ZHREE A
ZHEREHRE - EAMBABERT - BB
BRERR KB BREA AR E D EBAE X
RERB IR EIARBTHAZ LR TES
ZHRE - AEERR/MATHE 2 HEER
HEEBEE ANATEEFER -

BN %18 RAEAE B R G 5t

AEBERGRT R BLERER 2 IR - EERA
Bz 2R RN AERBRZKREGAELE
RHAVE - WHREFBERTRARKVICHES
B ABERSEELREEE YR MEN
SR ETR AR BELRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # & —-%

4,

—NF=ZA=+—RLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax
(Continued)

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation
Tax (“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of this tax varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount
of the land appreciation and its related LAT. The
Group recognised LAT based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding
of the tax rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and
is identified on the basis of the internal management
reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of
the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors have determined that the Group has only
one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the business of sale
and lease of properties which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment,
the location of the operation. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s
operation and centre of management are sourced
from its subsidiaries in Jiangxi Province, the PRC,
which considered that the operation base of the
Group is domiciled in the PRC, as one geographical
location and therefore, no analysis of geographical
information is presented.

4.

REFHEET 5 (8)

4.1 EXREFHHFTRER(E)

EP R %18 RAEFE B R 14 51 (4E)

AEEBRHMPE LB ET(] LB E
Bi)e 2R P EIEIH ARIBAE 8 E %
BMIBZ T RAEETERER - A B =R E
REEM SRR EEEIMEERAHE

BASIT% - Btk - B E LB ER N HAE R
THIREWE AR ERHE - AEEREE
BRSBTS R R 2 BB E L 2 REMF

FER L IR ER -

7 RPER
LENBRAEEVRIRARELERZHEE
AKX ARERERETHITES L AR

FEMEHAMERERD B BB G A 2 A B
BEERENETEENH MEIFEME - A
RASEENEHEREEMERBL ALIERSD
ERRAGEEE RN AERTEFETELSE
BRAEE—RKHH A2/ -

FEEFREEEMEME 2 RN TIAZEEFTEH

REE WAME  BFERREARLE AT

HREE - KARABERR AREAZHEERE

BhOEREENTEIIAE 2MBAR AR

AREE 2 EEEWMNPE - E— R Bt &
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DERER(E)
The total revenue from external customers is mainly IR ZIMABRETIEREDE WA LERE
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed A6 o
in note 6.
There is no single customer that contributed to 10% HE-_Z-)/\Fk-_ZFT—+tF=A=+—HILF
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended B WEE —XPEAREE10% A EBA -

31 March 2018 and 2017.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA -HMtWAUREMWKEREE
GAINS AND LOSSES

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, other FERUWA(BIARER 7 S5 ) U A R E A
income and other gains and losses recognised during Wk M EEIn T

the year are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Revenue WA

Sale of properties held for sale HEFEME 134,082 693,512
Other income and other gains and losses E b A LA H b U35 & 548

Exchange gain/(loss), net [E 5 Was(§598) /58 4,479 (10,869)
Government grants* BT & By 7,791 4,187

Net fair value gain on investment properties 184 Y% R E LB 2% &2
and properties held for sale upon transfer Z AR EWEFEE(HAE14)

to investment properties (note 14) 14,327 30,542
Net fair value gain on financial assets at far IZ QAR ERBRIIIRZ EREEZ R
value through profit or loss EWEFRR 620 2,292
Interest income FBHA
— from bank deposits —RERITFR 9,089 4,876
— from structured bank balances — R AR TAA R 111 80
9,200 4,956
Rental income HEWA 22,515 21,374
Sundry income FIEWA 4,064 1,447
62,996 53,929
* The Group received unconditional discretionary grants * R EE [E JE 1S AT 5 FE B R B T R A B B ETTE D
from the relevant PRC government authorities in EIENENIREEIE A D -

support of enterprise operating in specified industry.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 6.07% (2017: 5.80%) per annum for the year.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

—+4F : 5.80%)°

8. PFRFTEHATER

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WERK

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT

Interest charges on financial liabilities — RE#ERRIRz SREBE 2 FI S

stated at amortised cost: *
Bank loans RITER 62,055 43,195
Other loans HEER - 8,691
62,055 51,886
Less: amount capitalised in properties held 3 : 2 ENMEIEARETE S

under development & (56,942) (45,998)
5,113 5,888

FREEZMETFHERAMEREF6.07%(=F

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after BT EBATREFEIG,GEA)UT
charging/(crediting): KRIATLER -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE 841 805
Cost of properties held for sale recognised — FE:R/AB St 2 FE MR AN
as expense 86,330 526,658
Amortisation of intangibles (note 15) mR B ERE (HEE15) 600 -
Depreciation (note 13(b)) e (MaE13b) 2,855 3,053
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BE KRB EE
equipments 91 -
Impairment loss on other financial assets EfbomEE OREBE(FF19)
(note 19) 360 -
Operating lease charge in respect of land THIRIEF EEHERT
and buildings 2,537 393
Outgoings in respect of investment properties E24F NI B EFTES 2 S A
that generated rental income during the BREZHAX
year 329 278
Employee costs, including directors’ BERAN(BIEESME)(FF12)
emoluments (note 12)
— Wages and salaries - IEKkFE 28,596 27,028
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — 3R R FIIEH &40
defined contribution plans RS 3,086 3,076
Less: amount capitalised in properties held 3 : 2 EARNIE AR 2
under development Z&E (5,296) (7,129)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. MEHMAX

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
Current tax - the PRC BHABIIE —  E
Current year REE
— Enterprise income tax (‘EIT”) — ST EERER) 4,550 34,234
- LAT — T HIRER 30,838 6,815
Over provision in prior years BT BREREE
— LAT — IR (ER - (1,749)
35,388 39,300
Deferred income tax (note 29) EREFTSHL(F15129) 4,726 9,990
Total income tax expense Frisfipa %8 40,114 49,290

EIT has been provided on the estimated profits of

EEMBRIBMESRBRLE 2 M B QR Z

subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25% (2017:
25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at 5%
(2017: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred upon
transfer of property ownership. There are certain
exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising
in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

1#25% ( —ZFE—H4F : 25% ) {EH BHE -

RIBEPBCEMERE  HINBEKEEEFIRINEE
EMEEZEHMNDIRZ KBRS EEBNAE
BeoANEEBRZENAMBHEME AN (T —+
F:15%)e°

THIRERZ T EE B EARERERI0%E
B0% UL - 3B E < 1B R 3H & V) 3 P 1S SR IRR
FIHURR S BT E B A BERA  Z X
BMEMBEMEERFAX -REARYMERERERE
EL-HE—RETWEAEETHR  EIBEET
AEBAIRIAR (EX R ARTENE) @B
20% - HERENET BEERESEBRR -

BRENERIZF QG ERTEFNIA16.5%(—F
—t£F 16.5%)F E - ARAKERNZMEFER
WEBAERBELERESEA G ERBER - A
BEHBBNGHEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE_—_Z— N\E=A=+—HIFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. FRiEHBAX (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and RERAMERAEMESMBE Y EBE %M 2 EEEWN
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: T
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —+t
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Profit before income tax BRPS A AT A 41,302 122,964
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated — FFTSTBHFIFIIE - BRI Rl EME
at the rates applicable to profit in the @M @B RE
jurisdiction concerned 10,326 30,741
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRI A BEE (1,131) (2,010
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR RS 2 BIa R 2 4,074 11,619
Provision of LAT for the year FR T HIBER 30,838 6,815
Under/(over) provision of LAT in prior years — BEFE HISERTE (HREEEE) - (1,749
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable FERT T HIE(ER 2 PSR
T (7,710) (1,266)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERIBESIE 2 HIE & 1,556 1,974
Tax effect of withholding tax TEHF 2 BIE 2 2,161 3,166
Income tax expense FrisHips 40,114 49,290
10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —+tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year at gt - —4E G EE@AZ0.01EB T
HK$0.01 per ordinary share Y REARR S 21,848 -

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK$0.01

ExeEm

?}t&:ﬁ— =

—NFZA=t—HILFE

(2017: HK$0.01) per ordinary share, amounting
to approximately HK$24,640,000 (equivalent to
RMB19,712,000) for the year ended 31 March
2018 (FY2017: HK$24,640,000 (equivalent to
RMB21,848,000)), and will be submitted for formal
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 30 July 2018.

IREFAR0.01ETL(ZE—F « #REBER0.01E
T0) 2 REARE B A ££4924,640,000/8 70 (FHE R A
R #19,712,0007t) (== — 8 4 : 24,640,000
BT (HE R ARK21,848,000T) ) TR - =
—N\FELAZTHETEERRBFAE LHIRE

DA RS 3R IE U HEE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT 11. XRAFEEAEEEINZ2EREF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Profit for the year attributable to owners Z~42 F1#EA A FEAG & REF

of the Company 4,883 52,364
Number of Number of

shares shares

BB EE qE 4=

’000 ’000

TR T

Weighted average number of ordinary i ESREERFZER
shares for the purposes of calculating  HEEFZHH
basic earnings per share

Issued ordinary share at 1 April RIMA—Hz B3I TE R 2,464,000 1,232,000
Effect of bonus issue HERTTHIRE - 1,232,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7= F=+—H 2 Z@RINETFHE
at 31 March 2,464,000 2,464,000

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

Basic earnings per share for the year BZE=A=1+—HLLFE

ended 31 March (in RMB cents) BEREFBA(ARED) 0.20 2.13

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the BRAEBTEAFE RBAFEALEETHER
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no 7 WEREERFEGRERZF ERR -
dilutive potential shares during the current and prior
years.
On 27 May 2016, the Board resolved to allot and RIZE—ARNFRA-++tH EFEHRRE R
issue new shares on the basis of one bonus share TIBAR I — IRAT AR Y A E A AR A B AR BR BD B A0 B
for every one ordinary share to the shareholders of THFRG -RZE—A"FNAT BB RET
the Company. A total of 1,232,000,000 new ordinary 1,232,000,000% %7 & @M °

shares were allotted and issued on 11 August 2016.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-Z— \F=A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFH IR FMALIRSHREEENS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMe
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the RIE R A R BB R AMEOIE TR 2 e T
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements of BUEEMESWT
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
E2 =42 RINEF
e  REMERN A HE 23 ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARETR AR®TR ARRTR ARETR

Year ended 31 March 2018 BZE=-Z—-/N\f

ZACt-HLRE

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Feng ABLE 156 - - 19 175
Mr. Wong Lui TarE 550 178 46 15 789
Ms. Gao Lan BEZL 132 - - 16 148
Non-executive director FWTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BRim¥e 22 £ 733 181 61 - 975
Independent non-executive BV HEHTEE

directors
Mr. Lee Man To THERLE 153 - - - 153
Mr. Xie Gang SRR 102 - - - 102
Ms. Zhang Juan RIBR T 102 - - - 102

1,928 359 107 50 2,444
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFM IEBRSFMALIRSHREEENS

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR (&)
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM<(H)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
5o 28 RIKEEM
we  REMERN BB BE a5 mit

RMB'OOO ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ARBTT  ARBTL  ARBTL  ARETR  ARERTRL

Year ended 31 March 2017 BZE=-F—+#

ZA=T-BLFE
Executive directors HIEE
Mr. Shi Feng yall-3 s 328 - 132 19 479
Mr. Wong Lui ot tact 562 85 146 15 808
Ms. Gao Lan sRZt 244 - 99 16 359
Non-executive director FHITEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BimB it 750 399 89 - 1,238

Independent non-executive BV HEHTEE

directors

Mr. Lee Man To EURELE 156 - _ _ 156

Mr. Xie Gang i e 104 - - - 104

Ms. Zhang Juan RIBR T 104 - - - 104
2,248 484 466 50 3,248

There is no arrangement under which a director FRN HEEENEIRERERATWNE 2%

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments H(ZZE—+tF : #)e

during the year (2017: nil).

Mr. Shi Feng is also the Chief Executive Officer BEEETRARNARIZERANTE M LA

of the Company and his emolument disclosed WERZHE 2N BREEEAEEHRITE TiEH

above includes those of services rendered by RS2 B o

him as the Chief Executive Officer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-Z— \F=A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include two (2017: four)
directors, whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures above. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2017: one) highest paid
individual, whose emoluments fell within the
salary band of nil to HK$1,000,000, for the year
ended 31 March 2018 were as follows:

12.

EZFM LERSFMALIRSREZENE

(&)

(b)

EEBREHFMAL

AEBRERSHFHALTBERE(ZZ—+
FNR)ER EReEN EXZHE-HE
TE-N\FE=ZA=Z+—"HIFE #T=%
(ZE2—+tF: —R)BEaFHFWATZHME(F
SEHENFZE1,000,000/8 T2 BT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 ~ 285 & E 1&g | 815 533
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 268 46
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R A& FI 5T 2 2k 43 16
1,126 595

No emolument was paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2017: Nil).

FA-AREBEATAESIESHFMAL
SHEAIN 2 (E A INASINA R SR B 2 22 )
SEEREE( T —+F - E)e
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFM IEBRSFMALIRSHREEENS

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR (&)

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Senior management emolument (c) EHREEEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to members ENSEMIEFEESREEERKE 2HeHE
of non-director senior management were within NN

the following bands:

2018 2017
—E-N\F T4

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 4 4
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total
418 HE
Rtk RE gF MEEE Bst

RMBOOO ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ARRTT  ARBTE  ARBTLE  ARETR  ARERTRL

At 1 April 2016 RZE-X<FNA—-A
Cost AR 5,639 5,707 56,434 - 67,780
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (3,341) (4,376) (1,367) - (9,084)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,298 1,331 55,067 - 58,696
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E—t%

ZA=t+-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount HYUEBFE 2,298 1,331 55,067 - 58,696
Additions RE 228 320 - 147 695
Depreciation e (1,319) (497) (1,423) (37) (3,276)
Exchange realignment 5 AR - 48 - - 48

Closing net carrying amount ~ HIRIEEFE 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. YW BERRZREE)

(CONTINUED)

Computers

and other Motor Leasehold

equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total

EEK HE
HitR1E RE BF MERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETH

At 31 March 2017 and R-E-+tF=A=+-H
1 April 2017 R-Z-tFEMmA-A
Cost A 5,867 6,075 56,434 147 68,523
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (4,660) (4,873 (2,790) (37) (12,360)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-Z2-\%
ZAE+-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount R E(E 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163
Additions NE 3,077 599 - 11,007 14,773
Depreciation e (657) (539) (1,423) (489) (3,108)
Disposal & (70) (26) - - (96)
Exchange realignment [ 5 - (35) - - (35)
Closing net carrying amount  HREREEE 3,557 1,201 52,221 10,718 67,697
At 31 March 2018 R-E-N\F=ZA=+-H
Cost AR 8,818 6,379 56,434 11,244 82,875
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (5,261) (5,178) (4,213) (526) (15,178)
Net carrying amount IREHE 3,557 1,201 52,221 10,718 67,697

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s certain buildings
of approximately RMB52,221,000 (2017:
RMB53,644,000) were pledged for Bank loans (note
28) of the Group.

R-ZE—NFE=ZA=1+—8 KEBHARES2221,000
T(ZZT—+4F : AR¥ES3,644,000T) 2% TEF 5
REB 2 RITER(HIFE28) 1R IR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W BERRZREE)

(CONTINUED)
Notes: st -
(a)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. (8) AEEFHEFRAE -
() Depreciation charges have been included in: (b) WERZEEA -
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—t%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position RETBARRE
— capitalised in properties held under development — — &AL ERIZ T Y% 253 223
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 424 & EEEER
- selling and distribution expenses —HERDHER 35 51
— administrative expenses —EIEEH 2,820 3,002
2,855 3,053
3,108 3276
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14, BREWE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
At beginning of the year F4) 536,754 491,934
Transfer from properties held for sale BEEY X 5,129 21,405
Net fair value change credited to the FFAGZEEEkER 2
consolidated statement of comprehensive N ELE)FRE
income 11,101 23,415
At end of the year FR 552,984 536,754
The investment properties included property interest WEMEBHEMNPR Y LRz HEER
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring —EN=FE_ENLFIEA(ZE—EF ZF
from 2043 to 2047 (2017: from 2043 to 2047). As W=FZ_FTN+FM)ER RE-—NFK=
at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the building ownership E—+FZA=Z1+—H AEBETREWEE LK
certificates of certain investment properties of the BEEEMEEREE AEBE 2B PR EREEMN
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of RE NEBEEDNSEEMAEEM I & LAERE
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group, B BN FERNEEMAE B ERIEEME -

the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2018, investment properties
of approximately RMB507,626,000 (2017:
RMB484,039,000) were pledged against bank loans
of the Group (note 28).

Investment properties are leased to non-related parties
under operating lease (note 33).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, properties
held for sale and with the carrying value of
approximately RMB1,903,000 (2017: RMB14,278,000)
(note 22) were transferred to investment properties
respectively as these properties were under operating
lease arrangements with third parties during the year
to earn rental, rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business of the Group. The fair value
of these properties upon transfer to investment
properties was approximately RMB5,129,000
(2017: RMB21,405,000). The total net fair value
gain of investment properties approximately of
RMB14,327,000 (2017: RMB30,542,000) was credited
to profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31
March 2018 and 2017 was revalued by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors
who have the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, which was based
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale
of the property interests in their existing state with
the benefit of immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market while appropriate
adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; and the income approach by taking into
account the net rental income derived from its existing
leases and/or achievable in the existing market with
due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the leases, which have been then capitalised
to determine the market value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.

14. REWME(ER)

RZE—NF=Z/A=+—HB REWEHARKE
507,626,0007T( —ZF — £ 4F : A R #484,039,000
T TMEARER 2 RITER 2 IR (KIFE28) -

HWEYMEDRE FEELHAOBETAIERES (W
33)e°

HE-Z—)\FZA=Z+—HLEFERN FEEY
A AR ®190300m( =2 —+F: AR
14,278,0007C (M 5H22) 2 (S EMEE R EREY
¥ FERAEZEVENREBEFREE = FAILZE
EHETHRDES MIERAEBAFEERAR
PHE ZSEBRZREMEZYERIRAEHNAA
R¥5,129,0007t( = F —+F : AR#21,405,000
TT) e HEF# A AREE14,327,00070( ZZE—+HF : A
R¥30,542,00070) 2 HEWME A R B TIETA
AEEZBIHEA -

REMER _Z-N\FR_ZE—+F=A=+—H
ZRRBEHEBEBREEYRMBAE RIER
IR BIEERBEEREMITHERTD
EFERBABERATDETENGE HEDNE
ELEEAKE RRUERZRARAR N
REHE U2ER@MSIAELBRHERS 8
AELBMERBERMEELE  REREMRE
FHZEZERELRBEERARBREON  UERBAER
KB G REEREEERERLESAERKTS
EABBZHERAFE URHEZ A ERELE
WAL EEZE #HERAREE ZERN L
REMMABETHEE-
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWHE(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 KEME T AR BEEBEIRE TR AREE  FX]
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of RERANL(BEER 7 EREHWOT -
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FE #4588 ( EIRI BN 1E) 536,754 491,934
Transfer from properties held for sale B EyEEE 5,129 21,405
Change in revaluation of investment KREY XS HEB T AHAMUA
properties included in other income 11,101 23,415
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F R4 (B3RS B AL E) 552,984 536,754

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the FR=A=+—HEHEEEST A

year included in profit or loss for assets Bz ENREH YK
held at 31 March (note 6) EREE(H+6) 14,327 30,542
The following table shows the significant unobservable TRIREEEXNPFARNE AT B8R A
inputs used in the valuation model. o
Fair Significant Range of Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs
Properties hierarchy technique inputs inputs to fair value
EXRTATER TUBE TUBEERAHE
ES ARERR ER BARE BABEEE HHARBHEE
Commercial offices in 3 Direct comparison  Discount on quality of 11.9% The higher the discount, the lower
the PRC approach the property (2017: 12.0%) the fair value
HEEERRE BEEXEE NEERITE 11.9% rEds AREEE
(225 1 12.0%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison  (Discount)/ premium (17.7)% - 2.9% The higher the discount, the
approach on quality of the  (2017: (4.7)% - 3.9%) lower the fair value; the higher the
property premium, the higher the fair value
2 AN BRHEE  WEEEZ(NR)/ (177%-29%  FHRHEE DAEKE : HEL
HE (Z2—t&: " AREYS
(4.7% - 3.9%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.0% - 4.5% The higher the term yield, the
(2017: 2.0% - 4.5%) lower the fair value
B s E W T 2.0% - 4.5% MHEEEES AR EBE
(ZF—+tF:
2.0% - 4.5%)
Reversionary yield 2.5% - 5.0%  The higher the reversionary yield,
(2017: 2.5% - 5.0%) the lower the fair value
BEEE 2.5% - 5.0% ERkREER ALEVE
(ZZ—+#:

2.5% - 5.0%)
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14, REWE(E)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques FRIEERTI e E o
during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above AREFENERLIMEZESRRERR(HE
properties’ highest and best use, which does not HERARITE=ZSR).

differ from their actual use.

15. INTANGIBLES 15. BREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Copyright, at cost hi e - =K AN 12,000 -
Amortisation iy (600) -
Net carrying amount BRENFE 11,400 -
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. AMBATZ#ER
(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—"H EZWELAF
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (Z2AABEBREAR)ZHEHIWOT -

March 2018, were as follows:

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
Bauzae ERTRBELER
ARER B R E %R BA/EMEE B# BiE TEEY
Sino Harbour Property Holdings  British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited (‘BVI")
Sino Harbour Property Holdings #BR A E 1E¥T BEHZ100 - REER
Limited ((RBELZHE])
Sino Harbour Bio Technology ~ BVI USS$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited
Sino Harbour Bio Technology ~ HEELEE 12T 92100 - BBk
Holdings Group Limited
Sinotech International Holdings ~ BVI USS$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited
ERERERERAF RERUHE 1ET BH2100 - REER
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
EBERAR BE 10,000/87T - BHZI00 RAER
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding

BAZ2100 REEK

BREEREARDE BE 1007C
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2018, were as follows: (Continued)

16. RME AR 2R (H)
RZB-NF=ZA=+—H TEHBLF
(ZFERBRRAB)ZHBEHIIMT (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
S ERTRAREER
ARER ZANSEE S BA/EMRER E# B TEEK
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate  PRC US$25,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IR NREREREERLR TE 25,000,0003 7T - BEAZI00 RHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
Property Development Co., (2017
Ltd. RMB280,000,000)
WINRBH R ERE FE AR 100,000,0007C - BAZI00 FiERE
BB (Z2—t5F: AR¥
280,000,0007T)
Nanchang Liyang Decoration ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Interior design and decoration
Limited (‘Nanchang Liyang’)
(note ()
HMEMBRENTIRARAR FH AR #5,000,0007T - AHZ100 ERFFREE
(BRI )(HH)
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55% Property development
(‘Nanchang Dingxun’)
HERNEEERAR FE AR 100,000,0007C - BAZ5S FHERE
(FaE&A])
Leping City Fenghuang PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51% Property development
Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd.
(‘Leping City’)
LITREEAEXRERRA FE AR%24,500,0007T - BHZ5 RHERE
(I#¥RE])
Sino Harbour Development Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
BEERARLNF EE 1T - BAZ100 REER
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding
Development Group Limited
RHREEREBERAT HE 100%7T - AH2100 REER
Sino Harbour Development and  Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% Dormant
Investment Limited
EBRRREFRAR ) 18T - BAZI00 LEEE
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate PRC RMB370,575,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Limited (2017:
RMB325,734,549)
MMEBREZERAR HE AR#370,575,0007T - BEAZI00 RBiEME
(ZF—% : ARK

325,734,5497T)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2018, were as follows: (Continued)

16. RME AR 2R (H)
RZB-NF=ZA=+—H TEHBLF
(ZFERBRRAB)ZHBEHIIMT (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
S ERTRAREER
ARER B R E bR BA/EMRER E# B TEEK
Capital Manager Investment BVI US$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
Capital Manager Investment  HBRELEE 50,0005 7T - BAZI00 BEER
Limited
Sino Harbour Bio Technology ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
EBEMRRARAT Bt 15T - AH2100 REER
Sinotech Digital Company Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
EBHEABRLNF BE BT - ASZ100 BEER
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator PRC RMB4,500,000 - 100% Corporate and investment
Limited management
TEEBFRERAR FE AR #4,500,0007T - BAZI00 GEREEER
Shanghai Han Yun Information ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - 80% Information technology
Technology Limited development
HEREEERMABRAR] FE AR #5,000,0007T - EBEH280 FERmEE
Jiangxi Sino Harbour PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
Technology Limited
IREBRRARAF i AE#10,000,0007 - ASZ100 BEER
Jiangxi Mengma Makerspace ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Dormant
Technology Limited
TREEFEIEEAREERRR P A& #10,000,0007C - AHZ100 EEEH
Jiangxi Hanxun Technology PRC RMB2,000,000 - 80% Wholesales & household
Limited products
IEEARBERAR HE AE#2,000,0007T - BH280 FEMmitE
Guangxi Gangrun Bio PRC RMB10,000,000 - 60% Transfer and consultation
Technology Limited services
ERERERIMAR LA HE A& #10,000,0007C - EH260 BN RAARE
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical PRC RMB60,000,000 - 75% Pharmaceutical inspection
Technology Company Limited services
IMIERAEERBBRAR FE A& 60,000,000 - BAZB EoRilRE
Zhejiang Sino Harbour Bio PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Dormant
Technology Limited
HDER LRI BR LA HE AK%10,000,0007 - HAZI00 BEEHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
@)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2018, were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 19 June 2014, equity interests in Nanchang
Liyang held by the Group were transferred to
Nanchang Gangrui Trading Company Limited,
which held on behalf of the Group under trust
agreement dated 19 June 2014.

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

16. RME AR 2R (H)

(@)

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—RH TEMBRA
(ZFERBRRAB)ZHBEHIIMT (&)

et -

()  REF-MOFNATNA AEEREZEST
BEREEEZHESEHESFRAR LRE
HE R —F—E AT NAZEERHARAK
EERA -

Set out below are the summarised financial b) TXHEHI-—REAHAEETSBEBEAZAS
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary IR AERERS T M B A B B SR Y B AR
that has a non-controlling interests which is Eo
material to the Group.
Summarised statement of financial position B IRR R E
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Current RED
Assets BE 1,011,692 830,583
Liabilities afE (429,481) (211,480)
Total net current assets MENEEFEEE 582,211 619,103
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 100 125
Liabilities afE (121,000) (154,354)
Total net non-current liabilities FRBEEFELE (120,900) (154,229)
Net assets BEEFE 461,311 464,874
Accumulated non-controlling interests 23t RAERS 223,332 224,935
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16. ABAT =z (&)
(o) Set out below are the summarised financial b)) TXHEHI-—ZREEHAKEMEBERAZAR
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary SEIE N R 2 B A R & il 2 B S & Lt
that has a non-controlling interests which is Eo(4E)

material to the Group. (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HBBEREBE
income

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+t—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Revenue WA 17,931 357,265
(Loss)/profit before income tax SRR (B, F (3,563) 48,981
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (EE) W EHE (3,563) 48,981

(Loss)/profit allocated to a non-controling 77k FIEiERk#5 ~2 (E518), 5% A
interest (1,603) 22,041

Dividends paid to a non-controlling ST IR 2 IR

interest - -
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(o) Set out below are the summarised financial (b)
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary

16. RME AR 2R (H)
TXE -FZAEEHAREMEBERNZAE
IR R 2 B A AR B Rl 2 TS B R

that has a non-controlling interests which is Eo(4E)
material to the Group. (Continued)
Summarised statement of cash flows ReEFRERPE

For the year ended 31 March

BE=RA=1+—HILEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activites K& EEBFELERSRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations £&45EEN(FrA), FREAIRS (117,677) 152,061
Interest received 2UFE 3,937 165
Income tax paid =ENIZIEST (18,337) (19,882)
Net cash (used in)/generated from ST EN (BT ) FTELE
operating activities B/ FEE (132,077) 132,344
Cash flows from investing activites RETEBFELERLSRE
Purchase of property, plants and BEVE WEREE
equipment (25) an
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T Fg N (2,472) (6,916)
Net cash used in investing activities K& LB TS 2 %5 (2,497) (6,933)
Cash flows from financing activites BEEZEBMELRESRE
Proceeds from new borrowings e ESHIE 160,000 190,000
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (38,000) (145,000)
Net cash generated from financing BETB T EL RS FE
activities 122,000 45,000
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BRERBREZEYWCOHL)
cash equivalents EINEEE (12,574) 170,411
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHRERBRESEEY
of the year 197,023 26,612
Cash and cash equivalent at the end E£XRBERREZEY
of the year 184,449 197,023
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17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELEZER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

Unlisted investment, at cost JELHIRE KA 50,000 50,000
Share of post-acquisition loss h U B B e (6,168) (5,668)
43,832 44,332

Amount due from joint ventures JEUE & TR 140,433 140,432
184,265 184,764
Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements are RIEBEMEMEERFE115E RELS L LHEE
classified as joint ventures and have been included BEELERTABERSF T AGEMBHREFT N
in the consolidated financial statements using the E-NE=ZF=1+—H AXEEBEUTAZEPER

equity method. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had AR

interest in the following joint ventures:

Issued and fully

paid ordinary share Percentage of

Place of Principal activities and capital/ registered equity interests

Company name establishment  place of operation capital held by the Group

ERITREHE

GRS BRI 2 TEXBREXBE BERRA GGMEX AEEREREGS L

Jiangxi Ganghong PRC Property development, PRC RMB100,000,000 50%

Investment Co. Ltd. (2017: 50%)
(“Jiangxi Ganghong”)

IPEHERBRAR R FIERE  hE AR #100,000,0007T 50%

(IfEER]) (Z2—+%F : 50%)

Sino Grace Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong General trading, Hong Kong HK$2 50% (2017: 50%)

EHREEARAR &k —RESH BB 28T 50%

(ZE—+F :50%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 17.

The aggregate amounts relating to Jiangxi Ganghong,
which is considered as a material joint venture of
the Group, that have been included in the Group’s

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

consolidated financial statements as extracted from
relating financial statements of Jiangxi Ganghong are

set out below:

REELE R (H)
UTHEBARIAEA(HEALEEANERAE
TERBERAEENLGREPHRER)WEFTHRT -
Tyfask B T P B ARRI B SRR -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Results for the year ended 31 March BE=ZA=+t—HLFEXE
Income ON - -
Expenses fisZ (1,000) (1,000)
Loss for the year FREE (1,000) (1,000)
Group’s share of result of a joint venture REEREEEGEEDERER
for the year (500) (500)
Group’s accumulated share of result of a AEEBRFTELEEDEEE
joint venture (6,168) (5,668)
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HWEERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
Current assets MENEE 278,693 278,693
Current liabilities mEAE (191,029) (190,029)
Net assets BEFE 87,664 88,664
Group’s share of net assets of a joint venture ZNEEBEIE(ES S ¥ EEFE 43,832 44,332
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade mEe R e E(EMAEREEM
and other payables and provisions) JFEAS FIE R BEBRSN) (191,029) (190,029)
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17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 17.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not
individually material:

REELE R (H)
TRERASETEEFAESATENRELEN
B ERBE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E L5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Share of loss and total comprehensive FAEEEETENERKL
income of a joint venture for the year A LB 1 =
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ ANEBERA L1 ¥R
interest in a joint venture IRTAE 1 —

* Represented the amount less than RMB1,000

On 30 March 2018, the Group and Jiangxi HongKel.ong
Industrial Limited (IFEAREEZBRAT) ("Jiangxi
HongKeLong") entered into a designated operating
agreement (the "Agreement"), pursuant to which
subject to the fulfiiment of certain conditions,
Jiangxi HongKelLong designate all the rights
and responsibility of the management, operation
and financing of the Yichun Elderly Apartment
undeveloped project (the "Undeveloped Project")
to the Group and all the future costs and revenues
in relation to the Undeveloped Project will belong to
the Group with a compensation of RMB244,000,000
payable by the Group to Jiangxi HongKelLong.
The ownership of all assets and liabilities of the
Undeveloped Project are remained held by Jiangxi
Ganghong.

As at 31 March 2018, deposit of RMB122,000,000
was paid to Jiangxi HongKelLong and the remaining
RMB122,000,000 to be paid when Agreement is
effective.

At 31 March 2018, certain properties held under
development of Jiangxi Ganghong amounting
to approximately RMB146,253,000 (2017:
RMB146,253,000) were pledged against bank
loans of the ultimate holding company and a fellow
subsidiary of Jiangxi HongKelLong which held the
remaining 50% equity interest in Jiangxi Ganghong.

Except for above, at 31 March 2018 and 2017,
neither contingent liabilities nor capital commitments
are shared by the Group.

Amount due from Jiangxi Ganghong was unsecured,
interest free and not repayable within 12 months from
the reporting date.

* HELRA 1,000 T2 %5

MRZE-N\E=ZA=1H AEERIELERE
XERAR(GCIBERER DIV —HETEE HE
([ZW&E]) B 58 TIRMFERE TR RE
BEEEEEF ABRAREE([REHER DK
ERE - KENBENMEEIIREAZRTASE
B KkFEIEE KRR A KA RIKA G ERANE
B AEEARTALFEREARE244,000,000
Lo AMBBEMBEENEBENMEREDEITA
BEE -

RZE-NEFE=ZA=1+—H L2 ARK
122,000,000 2 FII A ERE - 88 N AR
122,000,0007T #8178 5% 1p e A SR SZ 1+ ©

RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H ITEABEOHOARE
146,253,00070( —Z & —+F : AR #146,253,000
BLIZETERTYMEDRBEIASERG
AR A TREMIAARRE 2 &EIERAR R—
RAZM B AR 2 IRITE R -

B Lt & o

R-E-NFR-_T—-—LF=A

FENOT B AR REEA - R ERBAR RS
HEAe+ —EAANEE-
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REE AR zER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
Share of net assets DIREERE 4,200 5,615
Goodwill on acquisition WEEFTEE 2 e 158 158
4,358 5,673
Detail of the associate is as follows: BN RIEEIET ¢
Paid-up Percentage of
Place of Principal activities and registered equity interest
Name establishment place of operation capital held by the Group
A BROL it B FTEETBREE M BHRZEMESX FEEHERETIL
Zhejiang Davi PRC Research and development, US$6,180,104 30%
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. manufacturing and sale of
(“Zhejiang Davi”) pharmaceutical products, PRC
WMIRBERER AT HE MR ERE RUEREE 6,180,104 T 30%
(IIRED BEED E
In November 2015, the Group entered into a RZE—RAF+—A NEFFT—DREH=H
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) ([RBHE D) UREINT A ASIE R GTMIEER 2
to subscribe for 30% equity interests of the enlarged B0%IRIE-MIRKBHE=-"FTEREFHER QT
registered capital of Zhejiang Davi. Zhejiang Davi was =D ESZ Y TR
wholly owned by a third party, Smartway Trading
Limited (“Smartway”).
The Group had paid up 30% equity interests of HE  T—RE-A=+—HIEE K~EFEER
Zhejiang Davi with a consideration of RMB11,273,000 BERETZFRASUREBARE11,273,00070 8

in accordance with the Subscription Agreement by AT KB Z30%HEH#E -
cash during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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18.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Under the Subscription Agreement, Smartway would
irrevocably guarantee the Group that the net profit
after income tax expense per annum from Zhejiang
Davi should not be less than RMB7,000,000,
RMB9,000,000, or RMB11,000,000 for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 (collectively “Guaranteed Periods”) respectively;
or the total net profit after income tax expense should
not be less than RMB27,000,000 for the Guaranteed
Periods (collectively “Guaranteed Profit”). Contingent
consideration represented amount to be received
by the Group if Zhejiang Davi fails to met the
Guaranteed Profit and were recognised at financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss during the
year. At the acquisition date, the fair value of the
contingent consideration arrangement was estimated
by independent valuer.

The fair value of the contingent consideration on the
acquisition date was approximately RMB3,483,000.
As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the
contingent consideration to be RMB6,107,000 (2017:
RMB6,625,000) (note 20).

The Group was also granted the right to resell entire
equity interests to Smartway at a consideration
equivalent to the net of investment cost paid by the
Group plus a 13% premium amount per annum and
net of any dividend received during the Guaranteed
Periods. As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the
right to resell was estimated by an independent valuer
as approximately RMB1,583,000 (2017: RMB445,000)
(note 20).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a
commitment of approximately RMB9,127,000 (2017:
RMB9,127,000) in relation to capital injection to
Zhejiang Davi.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group provided corporate
guarantees for bank borrowings amounted to for
RMB3,500,000 (2017: RMBS3,500,000) of a related
party for Zhejiang Davi.

18.

REE QAT 2= (E)

BIERE RS SRS T REMRBIREE T
—RNF ZE+ERE-N\F+_A=1+—H
F=FAFESF (LB REH D AEEEFHRINT
TARBESHRITERBX % ZEFDBAELRA
R #7,000,0007T * A K #9,000,0007T 3 A R #
11,000,0007C : kRN RFEB B ATSHFAS &40
FMiaERE LR AR BE27,000,0007T (42 78 [ R 3%
BWH D MARBHEMINTI KAARETRRE LG
AAEEZERZRBINAFERRBEAREBER
BaEzemEE -RIE RS SRR ELHE
ZARERBIBEMER -

AR ERIEE BB A R EHARES,483,000
T-RZEBE—NEFE=ZA=+—B HAREBHLR
BEAAR®B6,107,000(ZF —tF: AR
6,625,0007T )(Fff5E20)

AEBVEREUARSERNBRAEEBM S 2RE
RANBF13%RE SRR R E B WA AR
BZREEE2BRETFERH - R —/\F=A
=t+—H8 @EEENARELEHEMGE ALY
AR ¥1,583,00070( ZF — £ F : AR 445,000
J0)(Ki7E20)°

AZE-NE=ZA=+—8 KE=EEEE@E BN
TIRAETE ZEELNAANARE 127,000t = F
—+F : AR¥9,127,0007T)°

MR- N\EFE=A=+—B REE®RIIKE—
R 2 R1TEE ARK3,500,00070( —FE—+
£ ARWEZ,500,0007T )2 H A THER ©
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 18. MEtE ARl 2= (&)
The aggregate amounts relating to Zhejiang Davi, RSEEMIANAZEBMBREBEHEHNAEBL
which is considered as a material associate of the SMBBRERZEBNIARB(BEARER &K
Group, that have been included in the Group’s Bt N T)) 2 RIBLEFEE Y| T

consolidated financial statements as extracted from
relating financial statements of the Zhejiang Davi are
set out below:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E L5
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARETTT

Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=ZA=t+—HZEEREE

Current assets BB E 58,091 57,131
Non-current assets EmENE E 35,470 28,752
Current liabilities mENBE (79,563) (67,501)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - -
Net assets BEFE 13,998 18,382

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in Z<&EEREE N TREBZYER :
an associate:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBETARELLHI 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of an associate  ZN& @ fE(E — BB L A T & E FE 4,200 5,515
Goodwill on acquisition WEEE 2 mE 158 158
Carrying amount of the investment HAREE 4,358 5,673
Other disclosures Hini TESE

For period from date of acquisition to WEHE=A=1+—H =M

31 March
Revenue A 14,560 20,607

Loss and total comprehensive income Rk EER B (4,384) (1,381)
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19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. Htht&mEE
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
Available-for-sale investments AHRHERE
Unlisted equity investments, REMRERE
— at cost — FRRAR 28,357 8,627
The unlisted investments of the Group are designated REBEF ITHRAEETANHEESHEEALT
as available-for-sale financial assets and have no fixed EETFEIE A EmAE -

maturity date or coupon rate.

These investments do not have a quoted market ZERBEERMSTEMSHRE  BARETE
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot BESe

be reliably measured.

The directors have assessed the financial assets for EFCHEREECRECRERE  BRAH
objective evidence of impairment and concluded that 22T )\FZA=+—HLEFEBELREEIE
impairment loss of approximately RMB360,000 (2017: W AREE360,000L(—F—+HF : ) o

nil) had been made for the year ended 31 March

2018.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. BAABERERVIEZSMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Contingent consideration in relation to B —EBE QR 2 SARE
acquisition of an associate — at fair value — RAfE(HEE18)
(note 18) 6,107 6,625

Derivative financial instruments — unlisted put #T4 4t TH — IE MR Bk

option (note 18) (KtaE18) 1,583 445
7,690 7,070
For more detailed information in relation to the fair EBNLFHEEARENEELEHMER  F2H
value measurement of the items above, please refer FIEE36(f) °

to note 36(f).
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21. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. FRPYE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Leasehold interests in land T SR 918,712 918,712
Development costs RN 561,217 332,600
Finance costs capitalised B AR R & R AN 184,511 128,158
1,664,440 1,379,470
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC THEERERUATE HEHR _TONFEE=
and have lease terms expiring from 2044 to 2077 Tttt FEER(CE—+F ZENFEE-F
(2017: 2044 to 2077). At 31 March 2018, certain TtEtF) R ZE—N\F=Z=A=1+t—"H AR
properties held under development of approximately 1,069,425,0007t( —ZF—+F : AR®S809,791,000
RMB1,069,425,000 (2017: RMB809,791,000) were T)ZETHEPYED FTEM NERAER 2R
pledged against Bank loans of the Group (note 28). TE(MIEE28) -
22, PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22, FEYME
Properties held for sale included property interests HFEYEAREEPR M YERER HEN -
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring TU=FE2_TN\TFZAEN T —tF: —_F
from 2043 to 2080 (2017: 2043 to 2080). As at 31 N=FZ2=FN\TF)R_F-NF=ZA=+—
March 2018, the carrying value of the operating lease B tlHERE 2 AEHEBRNAERENAEA
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land R 36,922,000t (=& — 4 : AR¥97,852,000
amounted to approximately RMB36,922,000 (2017: L
RMB97,852,000).
During the year ended 31 March 2018, properties HE-_ZT- N\E=BA=1+—HIEER EREASA
held for sale with carrying value of RMB1,903,000 FR#1,903,000t( —ZE—+tF: ARK14,278,0007T)
(2017: RMB14,278,000) were transferred to ZEEMEERETIREME  RRABZEMETIRE
investment properties as these properties were under FRNEFE =T 2KEHELHREES (M
operating lease arrangements with third parties during 14)e°
the year to earn rental (note 14).
At 31 March 2018, certain properties held for R-ZE—NEF=A=+—8  HAEE109,047,000
sale of approximately RMB109,047,000 (2017: T(ZZ—+tF : AR¥162,556,0007T) H#E T
RMB162,556,000) were pledged against bank loans BEHEMERERSBERTERNEMR(M28)-

of the Group (note 28).




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-Z— \F=A=+—HILtFE

23.

24.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The aging analysis of accounts receivable, based
on invoice date that were neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

23.

FE W R K

3 (8 5| o B2 B8 KR A IRE 2 R AR SR IR 3 R
AT E BRI T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREETTT

Less than 3 months PR=MEA 321 1,524

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent buyers. Based
on past experience, the Directors considered that no
impairment allowance is required as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

EEHERRE BEFRES TBLET AR -
REBEBEER EFAR/BRNEEERYRERE
B R AR DA AR 2 Bkl - it A VR R E
B

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, FHHEREAEKHKE
2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREETIT

Prepayments TR /IR 241,111 72,382
Other receivables (notes) E b pelorE (A aE) 27,160 34,282
268,271 106,664

Notes:

As at 31 March 2018, other receivables included amounts of
approximately RMB280,000 (2017: RMB280,000) due from
Zhejiang Davi. The amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

None of the other receivables is either past due or impaired.
The other receivables related to counterparties for which
there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their
fair values as these financial assets which were measured at
amortised cost, are expected to be repaid within a short
time scale, such that the time value of money is not
significant.

FifeE -

R-ZF—/\F=A=4+—H BEtERFECEREYITTAS
ZFAKIA R #280,0005C (= F—+14F : ARKE280,0007T)°
ZENIEELS BB RBIRESEE -

WA E A JE KR o 15 B - BT B 81 F A R E) B AL IE K
HREAT I SERE K)FOER

% E 2 B LR AR A B - LA JE Y R A AR (B (£
ARERE  FHREREAES KRB EREEYTE
S




25.

26.
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STRUCTURED BANK BALANCES

As at 31 March 2017, the structured bank balances,
denominated in RMB, were interest-bearing and not
quoted in an active market. The principal and interest
earned are linked to the investments associated
with equity instruments, debt instruments including
corporate bonds, and money market instruments
of certain banks in the PRC. The principal amount
together with the interest would be returned to the
Group anytime upon request. The structured bank
balances carried an effective interest rate of 3.65%
per annum.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

25. EWMEBITERR

E-TLEZ A=+ B BB RTESIN
AREEEHE - 118 B8 A ERTIBMIE A RATHK
DRl REEETRAMESTA EHTAE
HEARES) RIEE TS T AR AR - A S
B RN SR B KB RE T AR - AR
TR R IR ATF3.65% -

26. CEARERUARRERBITELR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizF ARBTR ARETFT
Cash and bank deposits R MIRTTFR 452,529 485,950
Less: Y
Deposit pledged against banking BRI ABERITRE MR
facilities granted to the mortgages MTF @ (46,732) (65,344)
Deposit pledged for bank loans BRI TE KRR (b) (183,650) (156,214)
Cash and cash equivalents for the AR ERERM MRS R
purpose of the consolidated statement IR & Z(EY)
of cash flows 222,147 264,392

Notes:

(a) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as
security in the PRC as detailed in note 34. These
banks provided mortgage loans to purchasers for
acquisition of properties from the Group. The pledge
will last for the period from the date of draw-down of
mortgage loans to the date when the certificates for
housing ownership are granted to the property
purchasers. Such charges will be released upon the
certificates are granted to the property purchasers.

(b) The bank deposits of approximately RMB178,150,000
(2017: RMB150,714,000) and RMB5,500,000 (2017:
RMBS5,500,000) were pledged against bank loans due
to be settled within twelve months and over twelve
months respectively after the reporting period (note
28) as at 31 March 2018. The effective interest rates
of these deposits were ranging from 0.35% to 1.75%
(2017: 0.01% to 3.1%).

et -

(@) ZOMEE34pTE A - kI E TIRITE FIE R BRI
#im e ZERITINRBAEBYF B K Ie R ER
K B H RIS BN A EYNEE X R TEE
FTERE LN - BTN YR ERERTEE
P 35 B B -

b) RZFE-NF=A=1+—H HARK178,150,0007T

—E— £ F: AR K150,714,0000T ) K A K ¥

5,500,0007T ( = F —+4F : AR ¥5,600,0007T ) ) iR

TTIEF A B AR & B4 + — M8 A A K + — M A 4 2 B4

B IRITER(H15528) (I - ZE 7N EBRFIE
FO.35[EE1.75/B(—F—+4 : 0.01EZ3.1/E)-
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26.

27.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2018, approximately RMB438,082,000
(2017: RMB484,868,000) were cash deposited with
banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS
IN ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26.

27.

BEARERARE & RBITHEE(E)

RZZE—N\F=ZA=1+—8 " # AR¥438,082,000
T(ZZ—tF : ARK484,868,00070) B1FE R
PEMBTHEMSREBENIRS - ZEEBIUA
R¥EEHE - AR R] B (BB INE o iRIK A Bk
P & IR0 R 4508 - S IE RTESERTE  AEE ]
FRPN A EREETTINEEFRIRITIEARKE
HHAHNES o

FEASRRR - FERTRUR - MR R At B 5KE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bifet ARBTT ARETT
Accounts payable i AREEN @ 52,115 79,897
Accruals, receipts in advance and FEStFUIE - FEWRFUER Hitb
other payables FE{SFIE
Receipts in advance TR IE 335,549 267,839
Accruals and other payables FERT B K E b BT FRIE (b) 175,140 198,934
510,689 466,773
Notes: Bist
(a)  The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on (a) ENMERAEEEZEARAEZ RSN -
invoice date, is as follows:
2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
Less than 3 months DR=1EA 3,455 1,687
3 - 6 months =@EAZENEA 2,512 1,363
6 months — 1 year ANEAE—F 23,227 50,263
More than 1 year —F LA 22,921 26,584
52,115 79,897
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27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS
IN ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(6)

Accrued construction cost and other project-related
expenses were included in accruals and other
payables amounted to approximately RMB70,987,000
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: RMB122,182,000). The
amount was accrued based on the terms of the
relevant agreements and project progress and was
not due for payment as at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2018, other payables included an
amount of approximately RMB490,000 (2017:
RMB490,000), which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing
Property Development Limited (/T PR =S EREE
R 22 7]) which held 49% equity interest in the Group’s
subsidiary, Leping City. These payable balances were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand in
cash.

As at 31 March 2018, other payables included an
amount of approximately RMB2,461,000 (2017:
RMB3,661,000), which was payable to Jiangxi
HongKelLong, which held the remaining 50% equity
interest in Jiangxi Ganghong (note 17). These payable
balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

27. BERR - ERTROR - RUGER RN RR

(&)

(b)

R-F—NF=H=+—H it AEAHBE LA MEN
SRR FEAT A2 A R B 18 B 165 I 55 /9N R S
70,987,0007C ( ZZF—+14F : AR122,182,000T )°

JERT BT I IRIRAG R ez AV IS0 R IR B /R ATE - AR
R H B R 2 B o

R-ZE—-NEZA=+—AH EMENFEEREHAR
#490,0000T (= F —+4F : AR ¥490,0007T) fEST
R EEMEREGRARIMNE Bz A EENE
R AT BE49% R IE - % S ET SRS tr BAEH T -
BB RARBEKIFA B EIE -

R-ZE—-NE=ZA=+—A EMENFBEEEHAR
#2,461,0007C( = F —+4F : AR#3,661,0007T) fE
TR EE (R #6082 B B50%81#) 895
H(WaE17) Z S E KB IE - T3 ELAR

i
ESEN

28. BANK LOANS 28. HITEMR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BifaE AR¥F T ARBFT
Bank loans — secured MITER - BEM @) 1,143,051 832,823
The analysis of the carrying amount of the Bank loans BRITEZZERMESTOT -
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT
Current B
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR—FRIHEESIREREE
within one year or on demand ZIITERE S 458,884 228,258
Non-current FERE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —FERREEE B TER
after one year 2B 684,167 604,565
Total borrowings BEE 1,143,051 832,823
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28. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s Bank loans are repayable as follows:

28. WITEM(E)
AEBEEEZRITEZNT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETTT

Within one year or on demand —FRNFIREK 458,884 228,258

In the second year REZFA 408,292 98,849

In the third to fifth year RE=ZZFERFN 103,675 505,716

More than five years HEME 172,200 -

684,167 604,565

Total borrowings BEE 1,143,051 832,823

Notes: Htat -

(a)  As at 31 March 2018, the effective interest rates of (a R-FE—NEZA=Z+—H FREFCHEFRITERE

the Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from
2.20% to 7.50% (2017: 1.92% to 7.50%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Bank loans are
denominated in the following currencies:

BRFIR BN FEF220%27.50%( —F—+4F :1.92%
E£7.50%)°

AREBERTERZREEHATEEHE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTFT

RMB AR 943,640 663,394
HK$ BIT 199,411 -
US$ E7T - 169,429
1,143,051 832,823

As at 31 March 2017, the outstanding balances of
Bank loans in US$ was US$24,880,000.

As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding balances of
Bank loans in HK$ was HK$249,263,000 (2017: Nil).

RZE—+F=A=+—08 RITERZARNREA
LAZETTEHE £24,880,0003 7T ©

R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 BITERZARNHRE
TCEHE A249,263,000/8 0 ( — T —+4F : £)-

LA
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28. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)
As at 31 March 2018, Bank loans were:

U

(i

(i)

)

(vi)

secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB52,221,000
(2017: RMB53,644,000) (note 13);

secured by the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB507,626,000 (2017:
RMB484,039,000) (note 14);

secured by the Group’s properties held
under development of approximately
RMB1,069,425,000 (2017: RMB809,791,000)
(note 21);

secured by the Group’s properties held for
sale of approximately RMB109,047,000 (2017:
RMB162,556,000) (note 22);

secured by the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately RMB183,650,000 (2017:
RMB156,214,000) (note 26); and

secured by entire present and future issued
share capital of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

n=

(i)

(it

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

e MR R M
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28. WITER(E)
T \EZB=+—R BTEH:

HAEBEYE BEAREHARE
52,221,0007C(=F—t4F : AR¥S53,644,000
TOVER IR (F7E13):

R AREEIRE YEL AR 507,626,0007T( =
T— 4 1 ARMEA84,039,0007T ) VEHE I (Hf
F14):

PR 5 B 5 2 R ) 2 40 A R #51,069,425,000
TT(—Z—+4F : AR#S809,791,0007T ) 1EH
R EE21):

AAEBEFEYELNARKE109,047,0007T( =
T—4F : ARME162,556,0007T ) VI (H
5¥22):

AN S BRI TF R AR EE183,650,0007T (=
T—4F : ARME156,214,0007T ) VEHE IR (H
¥26): &

MAKEETHERRNMAERA ARD B
TTRRAAE I -
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. EEMREBEEE (&E)

At 31 March 2018, deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2017: 25%). The
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising
from temporary differences are as follows:

RZZE-NE=ZA=+—H0 ELHEEE (&
B)ATRER25%( B —+1F : 25%)sHEBE - BE
BERELAZERRBEEE (BB)2E€8H0NT :

Deferred tax

liabilities in
Deferred tax respect of
assets in fair

respect value change
of provision of investment

for LAT properties Total
HREYE
B+ b IBEF AREES
BiEERAZ BRZIEL
BEERBEEE HEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT AREFTT ARETT
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—XEMA—H 15,012 (72,400) (57,388)
Deferred tax charged to the profit  MEZREEIIG 2 IBIETH 1B
or loss (note 9) (Kiz39) (2,354) (7,636) (9,990)
At 31 March 2017 and 75@: —+F=A=+—HKk
1 April 2017 —t&FMWA—H 12,658 (80,036) (67,378)
Deferred tax charged to the profit #}Emﬁﬁ?ﬂfﬁ?z ERIE
or loss (note 9) (HfE9) (1,144) (3,582) (4,726)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\FE=A=+—H 11,514 (83,618) (72,104)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses
to carry forward against future taxable income at 31
March 2018 and 2017.

Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2018,
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB27,861,000 (2017: RMB28,424,000) in respect
of aggregate amount of temporary difference
of approximately RMB557,212,000 (2017:
RMB568,483,000) associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised.
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is
in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

BRI BEERTAS 2 HIEEE TR M
A BEBARERR AN EREERBENEA
R-R-—T—N\ER—_T—+FE=ZF=+—H A&E
B 8 5 AR MR IE B 18 AR S B I 5 R PR FEER
FRULA ©

DR TN E F 2 B TR TE T R5%E AN T
HeRZE—N\EZA=Z+—8 BHBRAREXDIR
BNE@EERFERBLSENARKKS57,212,000
T(ZZ—+HF: AR%568,483,0007T ) 7 IEIEFH
BEBHARE27,861,0000(—F—+4F : AR
28,424,0007T) (MK T LATERR o R AR S [E A 15 5l
ZEWBRARZIREBR BEAEBMEZEIBETER
AR ERER MU ERZSEEERRELERES

&
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Note:

(@)

On 26 July 2016, the Company undertook a bonus
issue of one new share credited as fully paid, by way
of capitalisation of an amount equal to the aggregate
par value of the new shares from share premium
account, for every one existing share held by the
shareholders (the “Bonus Issue”). Upon the
completion of Bonus Issue, a total of 1,232,000,000
new shares were allotted and issued and the issued
share capital was increased by applying
HK$12,320,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,542,000) charged to the share premium
account at par of HK$0.01 each.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the

Com

pany nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

st -

(@)

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BA&
Number of
Notes shares RMB’000
BifaE BeEEE AR¥T T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FILEEO.ONE T T Bk
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 R-ZE—R"&FMWA—8-
and 2018 ZE—+FRZE-N\F
—A=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: SRITREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEO.ONB L Z L iBAk
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—REFEMWA—H 1,232,000,000 10,193
Bonus issue KRR EEAT @ 1,232,000,000 10,542
At 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 R-_E—+HF=A=+—8H"
and 31 March 2018 “E—+FMYA—BK
—E—\E=A=+—A 2,464,000,000 20,735

REZF—NFELAZFNH KAGIETARETT &
BAEAEE R R R (ERR PR R B B 2 AN LT
X WEFEE—REBRG 2 REZT—RABRIEH
BZHR(AIRBIT ) THARZETTHE &£
1,282,000,000 f& #7fR 17 L % R %77+ A BB
12,320,000 T (HHERLIAKKE10,642,0005T) 1% &
[R0.01 BT B R 17 )% BAR P HIBR S I E BT

WHE-F—N\EZA=+—BLEFE FRAR
I EA T BEEIE - 46 R E AL R R
S




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - —N\F=A=+—HILFE

31.

RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as
follows:

31.

(i) Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue
of shares of the Company at premium.

(i) Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries’
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than upon the liquidation of
the subsidiaries.

The Company

(E3i]

AEBEZREZDFBEERNGERAEHER B
ZHEERBMIT

(i) MmRDEE
REE Z R a EERIEAR AR R EHITRD
FREEE 2 (8

EERE

RIERETEER WEBAREKRETERE
FORRTEE ZBRBEENED10% B HE
EEFR EERBRRERNEQREME
R Z250% ° RIRHEFHEBAN D IRIE THE
NRAERBEAAZAET EAERETAD
I - MEH B A BS BRI RR ) o

(i)

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
B3R 1E RTS8 &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT AREFTT
At 1 April 2016 R=—ZT—NEmA—A 575,754 (4,377) 571,377
Issue of bonus shares (note 30) BAITHIR (BY2E30) (10,542) - (10,542)
Profit for the year and total FRHEMNERFAZE
comprehensive income for the year Uizs4E%8 - 27,246 27,246
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=A=+—AH
and 1 April 2017 F—ZF—+FNPA—H 565,212 22,869 588,081
Profit for the year and total FRNRMNEFRER
comprehensive income for the year Uiz84E%8 - 21,056 21,056
Dividend paid to owners of the SR FAREHEBEAZEE
Company - (21,848) (21,848)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\E=A=+—H 565,212 22,077 587,289
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EREE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial Bz BRREMIBOTIRBEIN  NEB A LA
statements, the Group had the following outstanding TRTTEEAREAYE -

capital commitments:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T N

Contracted but not provided for in BEACTHNERRE
respect of
— properties held under development of - NEEZ AR
the Group 68,030 152,803
33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. RKREHERE
(@ The Group had future aggregate minimum lease @ AEEGREVERBETARBELEEHEMNEK
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases RUE Y KB EEZENT -

in respect of its properties as follows:

2018 2017
—EB-N\E —T+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Not later than one year —FR 4,142 3,870
Later than one year and not later —FL BB RF

than five years 4,806 7,946
Later than five years HFU 766 1,083

9,714 12,899

The Group leases out its investment properties REBERINEMERFEYME VS EHA
and properties held for sales which run for initial —ERNE LA ERREE - AEES
periods of three to sixteen years, without option RIS o

to renew the lease terms at the respective
expiry dates. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating RAENEFEARER D AR A S H B WS & E
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating ERIE-

leases.
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33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(o)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of properties as follows:

33. REHEEREE)

b) AKEYERENAIRBELEHEMNARK
Xz &EEERBRMOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETTT

Not later than one year —FR 14 130
Later than one year and not later —F AR

than five years TBBAT - 20

14 150

The Group leases properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial period
of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease terms at the expiry date. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB834,739,000 (2017:
RMB871,976,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one
or two years after the purchasers take possession
of the relevant properties; or (i) the satisfaction of
mortgaged loans by the purchasers of properties.
No provision for the Group’s obligation under
the guarantees has been made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the loans would be default.

AEBERBEEHERFHEENE VL FH
ARFEZF YANERAEREEOR
H-HEMERAEE -

34. BIEER
REBEALETYESEBNERTHIEBEZ 15t
MRZEERETCRBER-R=2F—/N\F=A
—+—H EENERELN A ARS34,739,000
TT(ZZ—+F : ARHS71,976,0007T ) % ZER
BRATRERRERIL  (\BHEMEMBER
(—BREREFHEDEEL —SIMERNRZMH)E
HIPEEREBRIBERF -AREERATK
ARETEEER B AH AN EENERETIE
R -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEAFRS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances () BRZEFBEREREMTSERE XD RER
disclosed elsewhere in these financial Gh REBBEETUTEREERRZS

statements, the Group had the following material
related party transactions:

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Rent paid to a fellow subsidiary ERRRMBAR < HE 305 312
Car park rent paid to a non-executive ENERNTEE 2 FES

director He 51 50
Rent paid to Pan Hong Investment Limited mEZDRAAEERAZMBAGNEKRES
(‘Pan Hong Investment’), a fellow subsidiary RABABREDMEFEECHAETMES
of the Group prior to the Proposed Distribution, NzBEems  BNBREZHE HIREL
for rental of an unit of office premises which BEWE R ZHEREERTET RHEER
is held by Pan Hong Investment, based on BUENARBENTEER TR LT 2F
the terms agreed and signed on a tenancy BIEHES NIEREN DR 2B ERZIER
agreement. Car park rent paid to Ms. Chan, T -HNREBEHRERZENZFERS SR
a non-executive director of the Company and L HA3,000,00078 7T - i E A N EETT 258
the Chairlady, for rental of a car park based BER 5 EAEREE EHEBIE14A.76(1)
on the terms agreed and signed on a tenancy BEREABREIRR/KFERS BELSETSE
agreement. As the annual amount of the rents HeBTHRER FEEZ  AMMESEBILR
payable under the tenancy agreements are less WHEZFRE ©

than HK$3,000,000, the continuing connected
transaction contemplated thereunder will qualify
as de minimus transaction under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements.

(b) Compensation of key management (b) HAEBETEEEASTHH
personnel of the Group
Remuneration for key management personnel RNREBTEEEBEAB ZHM(BEDNARAT
of the Group, including amounts paid to the EENETRESHWNEE 250 ) BT LM
Company’s directors and certain highest paid 12 0

employees, are disclosed in note 12.
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety
of financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group currently
does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial
assets for speculative purposes. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed to be
described below.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks
and Bank loans which bore interests at fixed
and floating interest rates. Bank loans arranged
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the borrowing
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 28.

Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB2,017,000 (2017:
RMB2,520,000) respectively.

36.

MHEBEEBBRRBE

AEBEEBCAREAZSRBUBER BEMS
R (BEINERR LM ERR) 8RR MRS
EvEBR AKEBERREEEMENEH™T
B2 AR XS EAREM BRI 2 E
EANZEREREK NEERFIEETFAAXZ
R ERERERIES - A EESEHAMSHE
WREBEBABZESE DN KHIE RN
BIE R BRI o

AEEYTEEEURKSBERTZEREEEST K
SEESH 2 &EBMBGRRBMENT -

(a) FIREE

FlERERECRTIAZARBEIRSREAT
SR R E B IR E B 2 Bk o ANEE A
M ERSREER L TEMIGHEEB) 2 &
o REEHERREEREIZEFEFE R
FENFEET B2 IRITF R RRITER - LUEH)
FIERETEFEGFBEZRITERLSAEE DA
mEReREFNERREARBENERR -
WMEBREAREEZEE 2 FIRRERGRIE
TAMIFE28 ©

FI R BE

R E M R R FE XL I, 6 A 100 B E 25 MR
BHMEERFTIE  KEBFARB G KX
1R T Bl 0,6 A 49 A R #2,017,000
T(—Z—+% : AR¥2,520,0007T)°
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of
equity. The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the next twelve-month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
has been prepared on the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 34.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporate
this information into its credit risk controls. The
Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

The Group’s management considers that all
the above financial assets that are not impaired
for at the end of reporting period are of good
credit quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # & —%

e MR R M

—N\F=ZA=+—RLFE

36. MEEREEERERBEE)

(a)

(b)

M=Ek (&)
FIEGBE (&)

100fEE R HYIB B DR KR EEBHHER
HANEETEFERSE BHOMESIB A e
@mﬂﬁ'ﬁgﬂfﬂﬁﬂ$ﬁlﬁ@%\ﬂ

DY ELE - HRERRBFHSIRN - FRK
REPHER SRR MAKREEEH X
RARE+ @A HIEH =& s & B ¥
1t

BE_T-)\FZA=1T—BLFEIBRE
Pl BURE DT IR BRI R AR &L -

EERKE
FERKRESRTACZEHF A RERESRT
BV GRBITHEEEREAERERIHER
ZRB - AEEMAHZEERREZRAN
HORERBETRFAZEFREEE - AEET
MERERETHEERMEEZEFEERR &
B EN IS4 -

AEFEETRERNSANBR TS REM
%%HZ%Klﬁ,ihﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁAﬁﬁg

it - REE 2 BER A ERERLHERL
Zﬁ%ﬁx%°

AEBEZERERS A LA RN HREH
RABEZEREE(BECEARE)2EEE
RRUf

AERE 2 & BE E R R T s E A hnsa s
BEHEMIERR -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts and other receivables,
the Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty
or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for cash at bank
is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of most
of the group entities. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s
cash and bank balances, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, other receivables,
other payables and bank loans which are
denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures regularly and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Foreign currency risk exposure

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to foreign currency
risk from bank balances and bank loans
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

36. MEEREEERERBEE)

b)

(c)

FERR(E)

AR AR R e LA FE MR IR T & - NSRBI R
RERE—SFHREm—EAEERL ST
A MEEHEREREERR - R HF 77 /5
MEENRRY RBE R ZRTT  BULIRTT
Re 2 FERBIRSEN -

SRR
AEBRBORZAAREET MARET
REBAEEERZEER - EBEZER
RAARKEABETRETINEZETRE RIR
TSR RARERBRIIKZEREE H
fib FE UK IE - H M AN FRIA R IRITE R - A" &
B EERITES BT ANEREINE R -
AREEE Pimst HONE R - 2 B SE B
FRERINER R ©

SHE R B2

TR T REE BB A AN B LASNES (B
ARRREMBRRZNEEEININEZR
TTREBR M RTTE R Z SMNE R ©

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Bank deposits denominated in A3 EEFIME 2 RITF 3
- HK$ — BT 20,451 1,046
- Us$ —ET7T 3 76
Bank loans denominated in AN EEIEZ IRITER
- HK$ —BT (199,410) -
- Us$ —ETT - (169,429
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

36. MEEREEERERBEE)

(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (c) HhEEmEBs(4E)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis INESRE 5T
The following table indicates the approximate TRETIRAEE SEINE L KEE Z2IHEE
change in the Group’s loss for the year in EETHES %S - NEB BB 2 AN EE - AT
response to a 5% appreciation in respective GNES[E R AR A MRS 2 HM AR o I &
foreign currencies against the Group’s functional E o
currencies. There is no impact on other
components of consolidated equity in response
to the general increase in the following foreign
currency rates.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Effect on profit for the year and retained ¥4 X3 F1| S AR 88 Vi | 2 5228
profits
- Us$ —%7T - (8,468)
- HK$ — BT (8,948) 52
A weakening of the above foreign currencies THMpAEREREERETENBERLT MR
against RMB at each reporting date would FETRE BHEN EINE AR B #E 55 - {55 A
have had the equal but opposite effect to the AR S EEAH B RRNRATE-
amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.
(d) Liquidity risk (d RBESER

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of financial
liabilities, including trade and other payables
and bank and other loans, and its financial
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The cash management of all operating entities
is centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms,

RBETRBIEANRE G REBITEERIAKR
NREXHMBEBEETNEEZSRABEZ
BfERR - ARERENSRAGE(RREEN
FR RN H A FE A SRIR RRTT R E M B0 JA K
BITEMBEME UERARSRETEME
HRBHETER

FIEREERB RSUETER HTRRES
KESUBRNEBERRESFT R - AREZHEK
REREZAMNFERRDESFH AR
HERTRRERHEREREESREBIRH
FENEGERE  eMENEEHRERAZR
HESHF R
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

36. MEEREEERERBEE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (d RBESER(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRIEBTAYWIHESTAEE 242/ A
liabilities based on the remaining contractual E - RERFPBEZ A HRMIRIBER
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the =
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
Specifically, for term loans which contain a LTER MEERBETEENBITEZRE
repayment on demand clause which can be KEEERZEEHERME  ZOMBRME
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the RAES| HE SN B EMES T
analysis shows the cash outflow based on A BTN &FHECRESR T - BEHAm
the earliest period in which the entity can be RITEE BB AT HENSEER B BE
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to Flo
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.
On demand Total
or within More than undiscounted Total carrying
one year one year amount amount
FEERR
R—FR —FE RERAE BREAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
At 31 March 2018 R=Z—-N\F
=A=+-—H
Accounts payable JEABR R 52,115 - 52,115 52,115
Accruals and other payables et E R EM
e kIR 175,140 - 175,140 175,140
Bank loans RITERK 235,036 1,104,351 1,339,387 1,143,051
462,291 1,104,351 1,566,642 1,370,306
Financial guarantee issued: BAEH 2 A FBHER
Maximum amount guaranteed SaERESE 834,739 - 834,739 -
At 31 March 2017 R=Z—t#F
=A=+—8
Accounts payable TETBRE TR 79,897 - 79,897 79,897
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE R E A
e RIE 198,934 - 198,934 198,934
Bank and other loans RITRHEMEK 277,632 825,569 1,108,201 832,823
556,463 825,569 1,382,032 1,111,654
Financial guarantee issued: BAEL 2 IR
Maximum amount guaranteed EEERSE 871,976 - 871,976 -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

U]

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Company’s
held no material financial liabilities and the
Company ensure that it maintains sufficient
financial support from Group’s subsidiaries to
meet its liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of
immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilites measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

° Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets and liabilities;

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

36. MEEREEERERBEE)

(d)

(e)

(f)

B AR ()
RoB-NFR-F—LF=A=+—8 &
ARYBBEEASHEN  AADFARER
P SR 1 A R B A )2 B B S S L
ENERBHE TR -

EEECREEZRDECARERER
NEBAKERHY PHEEHESULNRE
MBESZERFR AEEBBEFTRRM
B ROIEERMARTEERE  MSEE
ERANERRSRE YRHEREERA
BEHEREERDE SRR

A

=]

HRARE 2 R T REE N A ENFRNE
HR2E AtZFERTAZ A AAERAR
EEYESAER - R HE AR REESR
NABEWBERNZR REKRWEIFRED SR
BERABRZAAE

=

RUBRRRERZAAETE

TREJNRBERABRBARIABRARE LA
BFfENEREENARE BRAMNBERE
ENABRIEXSEREERBBEMANE
2HABENREAIERESR=ZE - 2R
BRI RBAT=Z

o FiE: HREERABREERMS
M HR(E CRAEAR)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEREEEERBEEK(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()  Fair value measurements recognised in the (f) REBERRRBRAZAAEBTE(E)
statement of financial position (Continued)
e Llevel 2: inputs other than quoted o 2t BREARBENFREIN ZE
prices included within Level EXBENEE(FInER)
1 that are observable for the sk (PR 8 E18) AT &
asset or liability, either directly R7BAEUE &

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

e level 3: inputs for the asset or o  FE3: BEXEBEWIFKEAER
liability that are not based 5 SR8 A BUE (BN 7]
on observable market data B AHIR)-

(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which CREEETEESHEANRAAEEBRZERY
the financial asset or liability is categorised in AABEFEBEANTEBABIBEKTERE -

its entirety is based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in RPBRARE AR BAENESREESES
the statement of financial position are grouped WTNARERER :

into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ E— EZR @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETR

Year ended 31 March 2018 HZ=-Z—N\F

ZA=t-BLEE
Assets BE
Contingent consideration HARME ] - - 6,107 6,107
Unlisted put option JE FTRAH ERE (i) - - 1,583 1,583
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ EF—H E=/ Bt
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

st ARETT  AR%TE  ARETT  AR%T:

Year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=-F—+&

ZR=t-BLEE
Assets BiE
Contingent consideration ER AN () - - 6,625 6,625
Unlisted put option AL EE (i) - - 445 445
There were no transfers between levels during FARAZRZ EWEEE -

the year.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

U}

Contingent consideration

The fair value of contingent consideration
has been determined by a firm of
independent professional valuer. Details
please see note 20 for disclosures of the
measurement of contingent consideration.

The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of RMB6,107,000 (2017:
RMB6,625,000) was estimated by applying
the discounted cash flow method. The fair
value estimates are based on a discount
rate of 16.2% (2017: 15.8%) and assumed
probability adjusted results in Zhejiang
Davi ranging from loss of approximately
RMB2,726,000 to profit of approximately
RMB3,750,000 (2017: loss of approximately
RMB5,187,000 to profit of approximately
RMB2,753,000). This is a level 3 fair value
measurement. The key unobservable
assumptions in calculating this profit are:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—-Z— \F=A=1+—HILFE

36. MEEREEERERBEE)

() REBRRERERZAAETEGER)

RARFTERAREZ AR GERMTERAERS

SRR 3 R R
() HARE

HAREZRAEH - RELEXMGE
BITEE AR EAEZHEFIRSA
SBIMEE20 ©

KARBLZHEZ2REBEARE
6,107,0000.( Z & —tF: AR®
6,625,0007T ) J5 {3 F3R & 7t 2 BGER A (S
STETESE - AR EMFT T ERRE X
16.2%(ZF—+4F : 15.8% )58 WK
AT KBRS RAREEN TEIEY
A R #2,726,0007T & i Fl 49 A R
3,750,0007L( = —+F : BFEHAR
#5,187,0000C & & A £ A R
2,753,0007L ) ZE RAFE =R AR ER
B EZ RN EETAEEBRA:

Range
gHE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF

Assumptions: (TR
Revenue (RMB’000) WA(ANREETFT)
Gross margin (%) E R (%)

Assuming all other variables is held
constant; an increase in revenue by
RMB5,000,000 each year would decrease
the contingent consideration by a further
RMB453,000 (2017: RMB538,000), an
increase in gross margin by 1% each
year would decrease the contingent
consideration by RMB50,000 (2017:
RMB175,000).

73,394-89,479  96,041-130,930
20%-43% 20%-28%

BEAMEEMBEERFITE  FFRA
# 0 AR #5,000,0007T ¥ 5 Sk AR (B
AE#453,000T(—F—+F : AR
538,0007T ) * £ F| LG F L I11% A7
FARRBARKES0,00070( Z T —+ 4
AE#175,0007T)°
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE—-Z— \F=A=+—HILtFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIKEKMEEEEREE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
()  Fair value measurements recognised in the () REERIRERIZAABETEGE)
statement of financial position (Continued)
(i)  Unlisted put option (i) FEETHELHE
The fair value of the unlisted put option has FEMREME L ANER—RBLE
been determined by a firm of independent EHEMTEBERA _EXEEEEE
professional valuer by using a binomial RIEERE ©
option pricing model.
Significant unobservable inputs included: FETATER G ABIRBE
2018 2017
—2-N\F —FEF
Equity value Iz EE RMB19,400,000 RMB21,473,000
AR #19,400,0007T AR#21,473,0007T
Expected Dividend vield TEERE R Nil Nil
Annual risk free rate 4 [ B B R 3.39% 2.99%
Average expected volatility 978 B IR 34% 46%
Expected term TEERHARR 1.75 years 2.75 years
1.75% 2.75%

Increase in the average expected volatility,
expected terms and expected dividend
yield would increase the fair value of the
unlisted put option.

Increase in the equity value and annual
risk-free rate would decrease the fair value
of the unlisted put option.

e <7 5 78 H3 R 08 48 hn - TEHIRAMR Ko TR A
BEERAGEMIFELHRAREZAAE

B EE M EE R F B R E KR IE
EHREHEZ ARE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEREEEERBEEK(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9 Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9 SREEREGERENSS ZHME
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities AT HBREGEMBRARARZERMEERE
included in the consolidated statements of EEMAREMAZIER :

financial position and the headings in which they
are included are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets measured at fair value AR B2 S REE
Financial assets at fair value through BEAnBERERIIRZSREE

profit or loss 7,690 7,070
Loans and receivables B R ERFIA
Accounts receivable FEM AR R 321 1,524
Other receivables /H\Tﬂlﬁ’é WRIE 27,160 34,282
Structured bank balances EREIEIRITA SR - 1,500
Pledged deposits 2\ MIFR 230,382 221,558
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTH 222,147 264,392
480,010 523,256
Available-for-sale investments, at cost LRSI R AT PSR E 28,357 8,627
516,057 538,953
Financial liabilities cRAE
At amortised cost birg: iz ) DN
Accounts payable FERTBRSR 52,115 79,897
Other payables and accruals E At A BB R ERT OB 175,140 198,934
Bank loans IRITER 1,143,051 832,823
1,370,306 1,111,654
At the end of reporting period, the carrying RIREHIR B R e E Iﬁ)gg;ﬂgﬁﬁ;ﬂg$n-|—
values of loans and receivables and financial EVveRBEEMEREAAEMRE

liabilities at amortised costs are approximate
their fair value.
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37.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

()  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i) To provide capital for the purpose of
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group currently does
not adopt any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital. The
amount of capital as at 31 March 2018 amounted
to approximately RMB1,602,106,000 (2017:
RMB1,597,254,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity ratio
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

EXrEE
AEEEREAZBRER

() HRAKERSELLE 2 NEERERR
BNERE M

(i) XEAEEZBENMER: K

(i) EEEAINBAREZAREIERE

AEEEGRE R REEEERRE  AERE
BREEARBREHEERRD®R  UEBAE
BARKESFEENERNKR B RIER & HEE
N FBRRERSRE TR E AR LI 1
REHS - ANEE B AT\ EA EAXBSBER

EEESRTABERAER - R_E—N\F=A
—+—H EAXSEH A ARE1,602,106,0007T
(ZZ—+%F: AR¥1,597,254,0007T) BB ERK
ZRBEHEAAIRBIRBEHERERSE RA
ZEsBESE R T )\FER-_ZT—+tF=A
=+ HZEBFEEERLENT
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 37. EXREE(E)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Accounts payable FERTBRSR 52,115 79,897
Accruals, receipts in advance and other FEETFRTE  TEUGRTE I E b S FIE
payables 510,689 466,773
Bank loans IRITER 1,143,051 832,823
1,705,855 1,379,493
Less: Cash and bank balances IR MIRTTAE R (222,147) (264,392)
Pledged deposits EHEMER (230,382) (221,558)
Structured bank balances HERBIEIRITA R - (1,500)
Net debts BERFRR 1,253,326 892,043
Equity e 1,602,106 1,597,254
Net debts to equity ratio B FEEERLE 78% 56%
38. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 38. HE&REKRME

(@  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @@ BRekBELcEEWeIE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents for the RRERERMENRAESR
purpose of statements of cash flows REEEW 222,147 264,392
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 38. BERERMT(E)

(CONTINUED)
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued) @ RekBEaLSEYeRE: (8)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEEREFTEARNBELER
activities:
Bank loans
RITER
(note 28)
(Btst28)
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FWMA—H 832,823
Changes from cash flows: RERELT) :
Proceeds from new bank loans L RITE N TS FUE 571,604
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITENR (249,287)
Interest paid BFE (62,055)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSRELHRTE 1,093,085
Exchange adjustments: BEE 5 SR
Changes in fair value: NAEEH :
Other changes: EmEs) -
Interest expenses FE RS 5,113
Exchange difference [ =58 (12,089
Capitalised borrowing costs BETMEEERA 56,942
Total other changes HimEe)Eaa 49,966

At 31 March 2018 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H 1,143,051
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39. ERQBAHBMRE

FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
baF AREFT AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NURIFEYNG ol = 16 285,452 285,452
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TS 38 & B At fE U R IR 235 248
Amounts due from subsidiaries eI B A B FIA 330,414 499,884
Pledged deposits EEBER - 714
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHH 70 94
330,719 500,940
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K E A R 5B 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B A R FIE 8,083 8,083
Bank loans RITER - 169,429
8,147 177,576
Net current assets RBEEFE 322,572 323,364
Total assets less current liabilites ®REEBARBER 608,024 608,816
Net assets BEEFE 608,024 608,816
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the RATHEE AEMN
Company’s owners s
Share capital i@ 30 20,735 20,735
Reserves (G 31 587,289 588,081
Total equity RSB 608,024 608,816
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
PRI 2L Al
Director Director
EF E




Financial Summary
BB E

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE%E

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-NFE ZT—hF ZET—RX —T—tF ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETT AR®ETLT AR%®TR

Revenue PN 476,339 500,874 597,023 693,512 134,082
Profit before income tax FRETIS TR A 214,363 144,447 122,848 122,964 41,302
Income tax expenses FriSHiF = (78,400) (54,574) (29,743) (49,290) (40,114)
Profit for the year FRER 140,963 89,873 93,105 73,674 1,188
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company ANEHER A 143,768 92,926 94,966 52,364 4,883
Non-controlling interests FEIE S (2,805) (3,053) (1,861) 21,310 (3,695)
140,963 89,873 93,105 73,674 1,188

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REEE RaRkEE

As at 31 March

MR=RA=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E—mFE —Z=—hF ZT—RF T—+F ZB-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT AREBTT AREBTT AR¥TR

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets IERENEE 870,471 695,669 911,771 817,209 873,765
Current assets TRENEE 2,388,071 3,076,132 2,484,435 2,350,437 2,641,379
Total assets HMEE 3,258,542 3,771,801 3,396,206 3,167,646 3,515,144

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES #ZKkARE

Total equity MR 4AER 1,306,542 1,397,949 1,523,746 1,507,254 1,602,106
Non-current liabilities EREEE 793,566 534,411 520,909 684,601 767,785
Current liabilities REAaE 1,158,434 1,839,441 1,351,551 885,791 1,145,253
Total liabilities wafE 1,952,000 2,373,852 1,872,460 1,570,392 1,913,038

Total equity and liabilities N B EEE 3,258,542 3,771,801 3,396,206 3,167,646 3,615,144
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M EE

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO X 28It % 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E—mFE —=—HF ZFT—RX —T—tF ZE-N\F
Gross profit margin (%) TR (%) 31.9 271 13.4 19.3 33.4
Net profit margin (%) AR (%) 29.6 17.9 15.6 10.6 0.9
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) ERELEELLE (%)
Cizap, 48.0 48.2 37.1 42.4 59.9
Current ratio (times) MENLL R (F)(Hfaz2)
(Note 2) 2.06 1.7 1.84 2.7 2.3
Earnings per share BREF(AEES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (M7#3) 12.0 7.7 3.9 2.1 0.2
(Restated)
¢ ==x7)
Net asset value per share KA FIARHER G AFE(E
attributable to owners BRFEE(ARE)
of the Company (RMB)  (ffz4)
(Note 4) 0.9 1.0 1.1 0.6 0.6
Notes: Kzt

1:

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity.

Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total
current liabilities as at the end of the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of Shares in issue during the year.

According to the ordinary resolution approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of
1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued
pursuant to the bonus issue on 12 August 2016. The
weighted average number of Shares for the purposes of
calculating basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2017 had been retrospectively adjusted to
2,464,000,000 Shares (for the year ended 31 March 2016:
2,446,338,798 Shares) after completion of the bonus issue
on 12 August 2016.

Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the
Company represents equity attributable to the Company’s
owners divided by number of Shares in issue as at the end
of the year.

BARBRELLFAEE (RITEHARE) ARG 717 50 BF LA
BmARRREH

MBI F I REEEARER AR E R FR R RE R (EABEE

BREXBFZAFREAARRGRERT B AN S FIREF
BEAE BT EBRINETFIHREGTE

RIER-ZF—NFLA-FNNAETZREBAFASERE
MEHEBERER R_E—ANENA+ - AH
1,232,000,000% T AR IR IR AT AR 7T HE AL 38 J2 377 o ATAR 7T
R-ZF—NFNA+Z—HZRK#E BBz —F—+F=H
=t HIEFEEREREFZ AR REF 15 BUE W
$£2,464,000,00008 (Bl Z—F— A NF=ZHA=+—HIF)ZF :
2,446,338,798f% ) -

AR AIHEBAEN EIFEE A L Al B A E N 55 B A
RFRREHTTEBIRY -




Property Portfolio

MEAS

Site Area in Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Effective Group ~ Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m) Tenure Interest  Date
REEEN RH/8%
HHER BEER AREGEE RHAI
hE S (F5k) (Frk) %8 Bi AH
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BHRINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan No. 1568 Honggu Avente, RC 80,521 R 1,879 R: Bxpiring on 100%  Completed
Phase 2 Honggu Tan Central District, C: 445 16 September 2073
Nanchang Ctty, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
R i hEIRERET RR-Et=F BRI
HAEPLE AATABER
AAE 15603 CHZZm=%
NAT~BER
Various office units of Sino Harbour ~ No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C 80,621 (: 281 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Honggu ~ Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEMAT BRI HEIRERET C:RZEM=F BRI
ETETEEL HAETLE ARTABER
K& 15665
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West C 719,548 G: 6,174 C: Expiring on 55%  Completed
Kaixuan City Zone 1 Road, Nanchang 18 May 2052
- Low rise resiential Economic and Technology
annexed with commercial Development Zone,
Nanchang City, Jiangi
Province, the PRC
e ikl HEIRERAT C:RIZRZF BRI
-BEEFTERER BERERITEE TATNBER
BRMRO08H
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R 1,630 R Expiing on 55%  Completed
Kaixuan Cty Zong 2 Road, Nanchang C:676 18 May 2072
- Part A - Town house Economic and Technology C: Expiing on
Development Zone, 18 May 2062
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
R e N hEIEERET RAZZF+E BRI
- ARR BRI EER TATN\BER
EF 8865 C:RZFA=F
TATNBER
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West C 719,548 C: 1848 C: Expiring on 55%  Completed
Kaixuan Ctty Zone 3 Road, Nanchang 18 May 2062
- High rise residential annexed with ~ Economic and Technology
commercial Development Zone,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEEd e - hEIEERET C:HR-ZR=F BRI
RELTERAE BERERIFEE RATNBER

B 0003




Property Portfolio
YIEEE

Site Area in Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Effective Group ~ Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m,) GFA (sq.m.) Tenure Interest  Date
BEEEN RH/8R
HER BEER ARELER RHAT
% S (TAK) (Th%) 8 Bi AH
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (continued)
BRINES
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 R 1,088 R Expiring on 100%  Completed
Yuan Phase 1 Fuzhou Cty, Jiangxi Province, G:2027 31 January 2080
the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2060
BERER -5 HEIEEANT RK-E)ZF BRI
SRKETO6% —R=t-RER
C:N-F1ZF
—A=t-BER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jincheo Avenue, RC 190,753 R 772 R: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Yuan Phase 2 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi C:89 31 January 2080
Province, the PRC C: Expiing on
31 January 2050
B hETEEENT R RZE/ 55— BRI
SR KET66% R=T-RER
C:R-ZREF-
A=1-RER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R C 190,753 R 1,248 R Bxpiring on 100%  Completed
Yuan Phase 3 Fuzhou Ciy, Jiangxi Province, G712t 31 January 2080
the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
BERER =4 HEIREANT RK-E)ZF BAT
SERET66% —A=t-BER
CN=Z1ZF
—A=+-AEH
Yichun Royal Lake City No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RGC 607,084 R 23624 R Expiring on 100%  Completed
Phase 1 Yuanzhou District, Yichun Ciy, C:2825 29 March 2077
Jiangxi Province, the PRC C: Bxpiring on
29 March 2047
BROMI-5 HEIREEET RRZEHtE BRI
FMEERAE2995 ZAZThRER
C NZEmtE
ZAZThRER
Yichun Royal Lake City No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R 607,084 R: 35,240 R: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Phase 2 Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2077
Yichun Cty, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEUMI—H HEIRERET R RZEHtE BRI
RMERRAE095 SRAZThRER




Property Portfolio
YIEEE

Site Area in Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Effective Group ~ Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m,) GFA (sq.m.) Tenure Interest  Date
REEEN RH/8%
HER BEER AREGEE RHAI
hE S (TAK) (Th%) 8 Bi AH
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
LG
Han Zhi Yun Gommercial Southwest junction of C 20482 C: 81,285 C: Expiring on 100%  Q2CY2019
Centre Moganshan Road and 6 Aprl 2054
Shenhua Road, Gongshu District,
Hangzhou Cty,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
EZVEERL R AN THER C:RZTARE ZENEEC
BT RBEAERD BARBER FRT
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R 719,548 R 27,885 R: Expiring on 55%  2QCY2018
Kaixuan Ctty Zong 2, Part B Road, Nanchang Economic and 18 May 2072
- Town house Technology Development Zone,
Nanchang Cty, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEE el hEIRERETHELERIFRER R:AZELZERATN TR )\FEC
- RIS ERMTIA600% RER FRT
FUTURE PROJECTS
ARER
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R 746,425 R Expiring on 55%  Under planning
Kaixuan City Zong 4-13 Road, Nanchang C: 156472 18 May 2072
Economic and Technology C: Expiring on
Development Zone, 18 May 2052
Nanchang Ctty, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEEE-10EE hEIEERET L ita
BERERIREE RATN\BER
EF AR08 C:HR-ZR=F
RATN\RER
Yichun Royal Lake No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R C: 1,047,038 R: Expiring on 50%  Under planning
City Phase 3-6 Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2077
Yichun Cy, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 29 March 2047
BRI=EAH TEIREEET RAZELLE ital
FMEERAE2995 ZAZTARER
C:RZFMLE

ZR-thAER




Property Portfolio
YIEEE

Site Area in Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Effective Group ~ Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m,) GFA (sq.m.) Tenure Interest  Date
REEEN RH/8R
HER BEER ARELER RHAT
hE S (TAK) (Th%) 8 Bi AH
FUTURE PROJECTS (continued)
AREEE)
Leping Project Hushan Melyuan Reclamation Farm, R, C 333,341 R, C: 394,800 R: Expiring on 51%  Under planning
Leping Chy, Jiangxi Province, the 17 June 2074
PRC C: Expiring on
17 Jdune 2044
278 HETEEETH RRAZZtME ita
idlllszzp i ~ATLRER
C: NZFHmE
~ATERER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
HMEREENZ
Levels 1 and 2 of Block 2, Units No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, Honggu G N/A C: 4652 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
(2 t0 06 on Level 1 of Block 6, Tan Central 16 September 2043
Unit 105 and Level 1 of Block 7 District, Nanchang City,
of Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center Jiangxi Province, the PRC
and a 3-storey kindergarten of
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
HEAYE_E-RE hETEERET AR CR-ZM=%F BRT
NE-B02Z06E IARgRLE NAT~BIER
ESlet L E-E ATAKE1566%
105E R E=ERiiR
Various retall units on Levels 1-4 No. 1568 Honggu Avente, C N/A (: 25,880  C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
and various office units on Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043
Levels 6-24 of Sino Harbour District, Nanchang City,
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Honggu Kaixuan
REATIEE R hEIRERET 0 elii C:HZZR=% BRI
HAEETTERRRC1E HAETLE AATABER
ETRTIREN ATAKE1566%
Various retall units on Levels 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A (: 6,091 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
and 2 of Blocks 1103, 6, 7, 9, Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2047
10, 11,12 and 35 to 37 of Yichun Cy, Jiangxi
Yichun Royal Lake City Province, the PRC
EEUINIE1236-7-0 TEIREEET 0 el C:RZEMcE BRI
10+ 11+ 12RI6EITBE- FNBERAE295% ZAZTORER

RoEETRERE




Property Portfolio

MEAS

Site Area in Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Effective Group ~ Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m,) GFA (sq.m.) Tenure Interest  Date
REEEN RH/8R
HER BEER ARELER RHAT
hE S (TAK) (Th%) 8 Bi AH
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
HASBEE 0%
Various retall untts on Levels 1-4, No. 1568 Honggu Avente, C N/A G:6909 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Nanchang Cty, Jiangxi
Honggu Kalxuan Province, the PRC
BEMATIEER L hEIEERET AR C:R-Zm=F BRI
HEETEERER IAgPLE NAT~BIER
2511268 ATAKE1566%
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A R 166 R Bxpiring in June 2069 100%  Completed
the South Building of Minshi Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Garden Jiangxi Province, the PRC
ETRRERELI0E TEIRERETANE 0 elii R NZZFNERRER BRI
el
R:  Residential R (=
C:  Commercial and other C: BERAM
CY: Calendar year cy: EBFE

The “Planned GFA” and “Expected Completion Date” are based on
the best estimate by the management. These figures may change
as the projects progress.

[REELEEE R [BRT AR DERERE B REGTAER
o A E BRI BERE IR B A E T EE) -




EF Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
' REEREERRAF
EBER
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